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LALIN VISION

Lalin Property PCL is determined to become a leader
in residential property developer with continuous and
sustainable growth based on business developments,
technologies, innovations, and competitiveness in order
to deliver customers with quality, life of living, and good
society. We, as well as, attach great importance to society,

employees, suppliers, and stockholders.

LALIN CORE VALUES

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

LALIN MISSION

Lalin Property PCL is a residential property development
company that meets standard quality on outstanding location,
modern design, impressive service, value prices, and
professional management on good practices in corporate
governance in order to deliver quality of life, living, and society.
As well as, attach great importance to society, employees,

suppliers, and stockholders to achieve sustainable growth.

L AL I N represents the values held by Lalin Property as a guideline for human resources development and

business growth. LALIN is composed of the following:

long-term thinking with insight into the business’ continued survival and growth.

adaptability to surrounding conditions through analysis of various factors affecting

business success on a regular basis.

true customer understanding in order to respond to and deliver a good way of

life, life-style and society to customers through construction using only bricks,

rocks, concrete and sand.

the development of new innovations for the purpose of increasing competitive

capacity, e.g., tunnel form and precast methods, etc.

L Long Term Thinking means
A Adaptation means
L Life Style means

Innovation means
N Networking means

presence of networks and alliances to create sustainable business success.

Annual Report 2020 3



USBn ada wSowiwos# 911in (UKIBU)

SIYNIUNNUSSIUNSSIUNISUSKHIS

1 2563 tuidulifiendruniign Sudiasannilyunisfiatunienisd ?iﬁﬂﬁmmgﬁ@ﬂuﬂquﬁqim IRFSEEN
wagyiulsaszunnladn-19 Faunsnszangluvialan dl¥nanEunia LL@znfmﬁNmu@nﬂqmﬂuﬁl@ﬂummmmuﬁqim
z&qm@iﬁiﬂmﬂﬁ@ﬁmm@ﬁq@gLLﬁq L%émqmmmﬂﬁﬁm wsegialnelutl 2563 FnaLTi 6.1% Lﬁ@qmn@mmummﬁ@uﬁm
waznsgeeantsrauiingu doyninidnsnu nsulnaszaesi ganavataniadawnnailnmtzaesi LL@:ﬁq%uuqmm"%ﬁu
mﬂumﬁw’%maﬁLﬁ'mﬁumwiml,ﬁm

gRANITHEAMTINNIW e Asa 15% - 20% Lﬁaamﬂg?ﬁ@m@u‘ﬁmﬁtﬁﬂu Tnarndselullszmetzani uaziase
anAnslsznAnafiaufatun Wasanldanmnsaidunidld waranilymiAsegiaresdszimagnAnies i lvisen
adan Ritupaulpdidundilominei ‘luﬂmzﬁﬁiﬁ@ﬁ@@:ﬂ"lﬁﬁ WHILUAGATINY walagulaawin anvasunensnead
fnsdisnlumnden@ue seainanmsnis Loan to Value Ratio 78ssunansuviilszmelng wazanasmsidiasages

AUNANTNLTETLR

1310 ada ndawwais a1ria (unaw) Teliunagnsiuianiazedamny dananaassnt Tnaldueganisaing uazans
U S5 o o v ¥ dl 3| o Y a o M Yo a o K
21A"97ANININ 2 T Faanagniaugnsies wiunaiafiu Real Demand nldiudsmunulalAfunanseny 13Emnasaunsm
wsryiuln Heenduiaeldainisinaiuln 24% tnarinlsgniainnisaiiugsiatnmmiuin 36% wazwinaansnenisieie
(melgannnisiouaw) nlegnalull 2563 wuln 50%

lugusunu U5 afa nFennedi 41 (W1nT) 1918UAMT A NAuTTaNNeiaNLNaniaf diituglassd
I uld1e wazaeunmuaniiunis&u Suppliers wazgiginiszans NatuaywianssuaesLFEnuRLaNen

(weltadus 1AT0R)

192a1UNIINNITUTING

4 SIS 9N -REE S mmmmmmnatr =




Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Report of Executive Chairman

2020 was a most difficult year due to trade barriers causing global economic turmoil and the COVID-19 pandemic,
which made travel and work outside the home a major global issue. Consequently, the slowing global economy entered a
recession. In 2020, the Thai economy receded by 6.1 percent because of problems in the tourism and export industries,
unemployment, slowing consumption and slowdowns in many business sectors to the point of cessation of services

businesses connected to tourism.

The Thai real estate industry shrank by 15% - 20% with domestic foreign purchasing power nearly non-existent
due to inability to travel and economic problems in customers’ countries, causing problems for real estate companies
focusing on condominiums. Horizontal housing businesses suffered with less severity. In addition, commercial banks
were strict in releasing loans due to the Loan to Value Ratio measure of the Bank of Thailand and strict commercial bank

measures.

Lalin Property Public Company Limited modified strategies to manage the aforementioned real estate condition
by stopping condominium construction and sales for more than two years. With the right strategies and a focus on real
demand markets, the Company was practically unaffected, enabling the Company to grow and recognize a 24% growth
in sales income, a 36% growth in net profit from normal business operations and a 50% growth in net profis if special

items are included (expropriation income).

As a representative of Lalin Property Public Company Limited, | would like to thank everyone at Lalin for uniting to
overcome barriers. | would also like to thank financial institutions, suppliers and benefactors for having always supported

the Company’s activities.

C. Mt —

(Chaiyan Chakarakul)
Chairman of the Executive Board
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited
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Financial Highlights
$18mMs 2561 2562 2563
AunSwy (A1uunn) / Assets (Million Baht)
AudnAmiaa (Inventories) 8,527.92 10,063.12 9,944.70
AunIngdsan (Total Assets) 10,429.52 11,501.88 12,454.36

hiAUNAa:AsuZovgiioRu (Auun)
Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity (Million Baht)

uﬁawguﬁau (Current Liabilities) 1,820.54 2,720.72 2,712.65
uﬁauhimguﬁﬂu (Non-Current Liabilities) 2,612.82 2,217.42 2,269.28
wiliusaa (Total Liabilties) 4,433.36 4,938.14 4,981.93
vguﬁﬂ@mmzﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁwmﬁq (Paid up Share Capital) 925.00 925.00 925.00
douegfiatiu (Shareholders’ Equity) 5,996.20 6,563.74 7,472.43
@an1satuvu (A1uuin) Operation’s Result
se/lfannni3zne (Sales) 4,082.06 4,623.04 5,748.82
38/l fgan (Total Revenue) 4,098.66 4,640.93 5,920.22
fnladuiu (Gross Proft) 1,608.15 1,810.77 2,246.69
finlegns (Net Profit) 777.15 891.51 1,333.17

Ifouiludasidoru (UIn) Per Share Figure (Baht)

a

Anls (@1e7u) gna (Net Profit (Loss)) 0.84 0.96 1.44

yaA A NLeyT (Book Value) 6.48 6.83 7.67

yarfing 13 (Par Value) 1.00 1.00 1.00
SasdouanNwAAoININISINU (Liquidity Ratio)

ARINEIUGNINAREERY (Current Ratio) 4.78 3.74 3.71

ARsdauanInAfDImEUALWE (Quick Ratio) 0.33 0.08 0.42
dasrdosunaavAVAWIsSaiunIsimls (Profitability Ratio)

gnarinladusi (Gross Profit Margin) 39.63% 39.17% 39.08%

fR11113991NN19ALTLeU (Operation Profit Margin) 24.38% 24.74% 29.31%

8n9rinleqns (Net Profit Margin) 18.97% 19.21% 22.54%

dnsmanaLwugDeu (Return on Equities) 13.50% 14.19% 19.01%
dasrdouds:@Ansnwiunisaniliuviu (Efficiency Ratio)

hamanaLLIA MR IMNA (Return on Asset) 7.65% 8.13% 11.13%
das1douulgurgnunIsiiu (Financial Policy Ratio)

ﬁmaquﬁauﬁi@mumm@ﬁ@ﬁju (Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.74 0.75 0.67

ﬁmswﬁﬁqu%ﬁadqu‘nméﬁ@ﬁu (Net Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.56 0.54 0.48

AU FNG 19T (RuTfu)
Number of Outstanding Shares (Million Shares) 925.00 925.00 925.00
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Board of Directors and Management

1. Mr.Taveesak Watcharakawong 74 years old

Position

Date of Nomination
Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

Chairman

August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 18 Year)

Over 30 years experience in Real Estate Business

Still not participate in Director training courses of 10D

2003 — Present Chairman Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd

1998 - 2002 Chairman Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.

No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the

company in the past one year.

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended the 2020 annual general shareholders’ meeting

Direct Holdings 261,806,113 shares (28.30%)

Indirect Holdings 5,606,060 shares (0.61%)

Direct & Indirect Holdings 267,412,173 shares (28.91%)

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in one non-listed company which doesn’t have any conflict of interest to the company.

Annual Report 2020 9
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

2. Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 72 years old

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

Director

Executive Chairman

August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 18 Year)

Bachelor Degree in Commerce (honour) Thammasart University
M.S.Thammasart University

Real Estate Management, Chulalongkorn University # 8

Senior Executive Program 4 Sasin GIBA Chulalongkorn University and
The Wharton School University of Pennsyvania and “Kellogg” Graduate
School of Management North-Western University

The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 14
Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 7

Director Certification Program (DCP) class 65 - 10D

2020 - Present  Executive Chairman, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2003 - 2020 Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
1988 - 2002 Managing Director, Lalin Land and House Co.,Ltd.
No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the

company in the past one year.

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of nomination and compensation committees’ meeting
2 times out of 2 meetings.

Attended the 2020 annual general shareholders’ meeting

Direct Holdings 235,975,910 shares (25.51%)

Indirect Holdings 5,606,060 shares (0.61%)

Direct & Indirect Holdings 241,581,970 shares (26.12%)

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in three non-listed companies which don’t have any conflict of interest to the company.

Annual Report 2020 11
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit 76 years old

Independent Director

Position -

Date of Nomination -

Education -

Director Training -

Working Experience -

Disqualifications in the past one year -

Meeting attendance Last year -

Share Holder (%) -

Chairman of the audit committee

August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 18 Year)

M.SC in Commerce, University of Santo Tomas, the Philippines

BBA (Management) — University of the East — the Philippines

The National Defense for joint state-private sectors course, class 355
Director Certification Program (DCP) class 63 - 10D

2006 - Present  Director / Senior Executive Vice President

Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.

1996 - 2006  Senior Executive Vice President

Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.

1973-1996  Executive, Bangkok Bank Public Co.,ltd.

No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the
company

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.
Attended board of nomination and compensation committees’ meeting
2 times out of 2 meetings.

Attended the 2020 annual general shareholders’ meeting

Direct Holdings - None

Indirect Holdings - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

- Executive Director, Bangkok Bank PCL.

- Independent Director, Nominating and Remuneration committee Bangkok Insurance PCL.

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in two non-listed companies which don't have any conflict of interest to the company.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk 77 years old

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training
Working Experience

Disqualifications in the past one year.

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee

August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 18 Year)

Certificate in Real Estate Management University at Hawaii

M.B.A. International Trade and Finance, Gothenburg School of
Economics and Business Administration, Sweden

Bachelor of Arts, (Honour First Class) Faculty of Commerce and
Accountancy, Thammasat University

The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 7
Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 2

Director Certification Program (DCP) class 85 - 10D

1995 — Present Real Estate Management Program — Thammasart University
No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property

by dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with

the company

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.
Attended board of nomination and compensation committees’ meeting
2 times out of 2 meetings.

Attended board of corporate governance and sustainable development
committees’ meeting 2 times out of 2 meetings.

Attended the 2020 annual general shareholders’ meeting

Direct Holdings - None

Indirect Holdings - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

- Independence director and chairman of the audit committee — G J Steel Pcl

- Independence director — Aira Capital Pcl Non-listed Companies

Non-listed Companies

None

Annual Report 2020 15



USBNn ada wSowiwash 911A (UKIBU)

5. ugdAISa  FyYIFouna o1y 73U

ALUUILULSEN -

Yo & @ & 1
TASULAIALTIUNTTNMSTAILLG -
msAnE -

MSAUTNUNUIN UUINNTTNMS -
Useammsyinau -

AMANTRARINN -

msinsanszan lusautlneinunn -

ar

1 -~ v
ARIUMITNBUU -

N77UN19047%

NITUNNTIATIAGAL .

23 FUNNAN 2552 (ANUAUTINANTRNLILG - 11 T)

3yeynIn 13119990 (MBA) NMNANeNAesssnAans

ﬂ?‘tyt:y’ﬂw M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of Leeds, U.K.

FAINIINANARTTUTA (@AAIUNI9199971) ﬂWW@Qﬂ?ﬂNM’ﬁV}ﬂ'}@/ﬂ

Mﬁnqmmiﬂmﬁmwmmﬁmmﬂ?”gaﬁ'fauﬁul,faﬂmu (21l39.) uP 14

Inenauilasiusgennnansg .

WANGATINYINIIARIANL (IA9.) U7 5

‘vlf:fﬂ@. 57 Corporate Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries (CGlI) squﬁ 7

7] 2558 - 10D

ﬁﬁﬂ@m International Advanced Management Program, MIT, USA.

N Hubert Humphrey Fellowship AU Planning & Resource Management

 Massachusetts Institute of technology (MIT), USA.

1 APO #1 Effective Problem Solving for Decision Makers ﬁﬂizmﬁmjﬂqu

nuﬁ*ﬂm@mmimuﬁ A1 Industrial Quality Control Aaniu Bouwcentrum,

Rotterdam .

tunangms Director Certification Program (DCP) juﬁ 83-10D

2547 -2551  IAUNBNIANLENITNNNTANLATH
AINAUADILNITNNNTRUATNNNIAN L

2546 - 2547  TANLAUNENITATUTNITNNNTAILATU
A1INIUANIENITNNIRUATUNNIAIU

2544 - 2546 394UAANIENIWNGAGINNTIN  NIENIWNYAGINNTIHN

I’ JN o a a dd o o efyy o
LaiftlszaRnnsnsziinanuiiaanyi luanudanfaaiunindaaldnsein
IPey)aTn
TRt lszdRnnsvinmensiianaiiarnsdaution e lselemin B luseyd
e

y - L
dndandssguaniznssinieLEEm 5/5 A%
ingantlszanAnienssuNNINgIRdaL 4/4 A
dngantssguAniznasunIaLEnAMNIALE 2/2 AT
indaunstlszguandydnaiulszantl 2563

A % '
NelaunIens lad
nstiatuniedan Tad

) 22

mamsesmunudlea 9 lutamsusaasansauluilfenuan

13mannzidisn

- NIINNNINIAEDL LA uANVINdlalTe waa niil laaned

o M9 e =
13l g s nannzide

Wunssunng luiddnnldldussnaanaden eldldAantshuaedu viaiaaiesiugsna auau 2 uiis

16 siwoulds:9U 2563



5. Mr.Satit Chanjavanakul

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

73 Years old

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications in the past one year.

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee

December 23, 2009  (Years in position: 11 Year)

MBA Thammasat University

M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of Leeds, U.K.

Bachelor of Engineering (Industrial Engineering), Chulalongkorn University
The National Defence for joint state-private sectors course, class 14
Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 5

International Advanced Management Program, Massachusetts Institute
of technology (MIT), USA.

Hubert Humphrey Fellowship Scholarship - Planning & Resource
Management, Massachusetts Institute of technology (MIT), USA.

APO Scholarship - Effective Problem Solving for Decision Makers;
Japan

Netherlands Government Scholarship - Industrial Quality Control; at
Bouwcentrum Institute, Rotterdam

Director Certification Program (DCP) class 83 - 10D

2004 - 2008  Secretary General, Board of Investment (BOI),

2003 - 2004  Deputy Secretary General, Board of Investment (BOI)
2001 -2003 Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Industry

No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.

No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the
company

Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of audit committees’ meeting 4 times out of 4 meetings.
Attended board of risk management committees’ meeting 2 times

out of 2 meetings.

Attended the 2020 annual general shareholders’ meeting

Direct Holdings - None

Indirect Holdings - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

- Member of audit committee; Asia Plus Group Holding PCL.

Non-listed Companies

Be directors in two non-listed companies which don’t have any conflict of interest to the company.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

6. Mr.Churat Chakarakul 43 years old

Position

Date of Nomination
Education

Director Training
Working Experience

Disqualifications in the past one year.

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

Director
Executive Director
Managing Director
April 25,2012  (Years in position: 9 Year)
M.B.A. American University U.S.A.
M.S. (Economic) University of lllinois — Urbana Champaign U.S.A.
Bachelor of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
New generation leader in Democracy Program Class 3 —
King Prajadhipok Institute’s Society
Director Certification Program (DCP) class 161 - I0D
2020 - Present Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2014 -2020 Deputy Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2004 - Present Deputy Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2003 - 2004 Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2001-2003  SBU2 Director & Corporate Marketing Department Manager
Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2001 -2003  Assistant Marketing Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2001 - 2003 Analyst — Investment Banking -
Capital Nomura Securities Public Co.,Ltd.
2001 - 2003  Analyst — Investment Banking - Phatra Securities
Public Co.,Ltd.
No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.
No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the
company
Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of risk management committees’ meeting 2 times
out of 2 meetings.
Attended board of corporate governance and sustainable development
committees’ meeting 2 times out of 2 meetings.
Attended the 2020 annual general shareholders’ meeting
Direct Holdings 58,863,636 shares (6.36%)
Indirect Holdings - None
Direct & Indirect Holdings 58,863,636 shares (6.36%)

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

7. Mr.Nat Sangarsongkogk 61 years old

Position

Date of Nomination

Education

Director Training

Working Experience

Disqualifications in the past one year.

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

Director
Executive Director
Deputy Managing Director
August 30, 2002  (Years in position: 18 Year)
Master of Business Administration (MBA), Rangsit University
Real Estate Management, Chulalongkorn University # 11
Director Certification Program (DCP) class 67 - 10D
2012 - Present  Deputy Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2003 - 2012 Assistant Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2000 - 2002  Senior Project Management Manager,

Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.
1989 - 2000  Project Management Manager, Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.
No record in criminal case regarding the offence against property by
dishonest.
No record in doing any transactions having conflict of interest with the
company
Attended board of directors’ meeting 5 times out of 5 meetings.
Attended board of corporate governance and sustainable development
committees’ meeting 2 times out of 2 meetings.
Attended the 2020 annual general shareholders’ meeting
Direct Holdings 364,393 shares (0.04%)
Indirect Holdings - None

Direct & Indirect Holdings 364,393 shares (0.04%)

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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Mr.Seri Sintuas

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

43 years old

Position

Education

Working Experience

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

Assistant Managing Director
Company’s Executive Secretary
M.B.A. - Chulalongkorn University
B.B.A. - Thammasat University
Certificate in Real Estate Management University of California,
Riverside Extension U.S.A.
CSP Class 50 - 10D
2020 - Present Assistant Managing Director, Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2019 -2020 Senior Director (Finance & Procurement) -
Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd
2015-2019 Finance Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2008 - 2015 Finance Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2006 — 2007  Assistant Finance Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2003 - 2005 Trader — The Siam Cement PLC.
1999 - 2001 Internal Auditor - Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd.
Attended board of risk management committees’ meeting 2 times
out of 2 meetings.
Attended board of corporate governance and sustainable development
committees’ meeting 2 times out of 2 meetings.
Attended the 2020 annual general shareholders’ meeting
Direct Holdings - None

Indirect Holdings — None

Family relation withDirector & Executive - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

9. Mr.Wanchai Aranvutikul 54 years old

Position

Education

Working Experience

Meeting attendance Last year

Share Holder (%)

Assistant Managing Director - Construction
M.B.A. - Srinakharinwirot University
Bachelor of Civil Engineering, King Mongkut's University of Technology
North Bangkok
Mini MRE - Thammasat University
2015 - Present Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2013 -2015  Senior Project Construction Director -

Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
2012 —-2013  Senior Project Manager - TCC Land Co.,Ltd.
2007 - 2012  Senior Project Manager - Pruksa Real Estate Public Co.,Ltd
2003 - 2007  Project Director - Ktech Construction Public Co.,Ltd
Attended board of risk management committees’ meeting 2 times
out of 2 meetings.
Direct Holdings - None

Indirect Holdings - None

Family relation with Director & Executive - None

Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

None
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

10. MrKittichai Thitapanich 46 years old
Position - Assistant Managing Director - Management
Education - Master of science in Information Technology - Mahidol University

- Bachelor of Art in Sociology and Anthropology - Kasetsart University
Working Experience - 2019 - Present Assistant Managing Director - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 2018-2019  General Manager - VPLS Thailand Co.,Ltd
- 2013-2018  Senior Project Manager - NIIT Technologies Thailand Co.,LTd
- 2010-2013  Assistant General Manager at Nissan Motor Thailand co.,Ltd
- 2008 -2010 HR Manager at Packsys Global Thailand Co.,Ltd
Share Holder (%) - Direct Holdings - None
- Indirect Holdings - None
Family relation with Director & Executive - None
Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

None
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

11. Ms.Kanitha Thamviseth 57 years old
Position - Account Manager
Education - Bachelor of Accountancy — Bangkok University

- Mini MBA - Chulalongkorn University
Working Experience - 2003 — Present Account Manager - Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.
- 1988 -2002 Assistant Account Manager - Lalin Land and House Co.,Ltd.

Share Holder (%) - Direct Holdings - None

Indirect Holdings - None
Family relation with Director & Executive - None
Position taking in other organization in the past year

Listed Companies

None

Non-listed Companies

Be a director of Prosper company limited (Subsidiary company which Lalin holds 99.98% of total share)
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Change in Indirect and Direct Shares hold by Company’s directors and management

Positions Share as of Bought/ Sold Share as of
Received .

Jan 1,2019 during year during year | Dec 31,2019

1. Taveesak Watcharakawong | Chairman 261,806,113 0 0 | 261,806,113
2. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director and Executive Chairman 235,975,910 0 0 | 235,975,910
3. Suvarn Thansathit Independent Director and Chairman of audit committee 0 0 0 0
4. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 0 0 0 0
5. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 0 0 0 0
6. Churat Chakarakul Director and Managing Director 58,863,636 0 0 58,863,636
7. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director and Deputy Managing Director 364,393 0 0 364,393
8. Seri Sintuas Assistant Managing Director and 0 0 0 0

Company’s Executive Secretary

9. Wanchai Aranvutikul Assistant Managing Director 0 0 0 0
10. Kittichai Thitapanich Finance Director and Company’s Executive Secretary 0 0 0 0
11. Kanitha Thamviseth Account Manager 0 0 0 0

Change in Indirect and Direct shareholdings in the company by company’s directors and
management

Positions Share as of Bought/ Sold during Share as
Jan 1,2020 Received year of Dec 31,
during year 2020
1. Taveesak Watcharakawong | Chairman 267,412,173 0 0| 267,412,173
2. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director and Executive Chairman 241,581,970 0 0| 241,581,970
3. Suvarn Thansathit Independent Director and Chairman of audit committee 0 0 0 0
4. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 0 0 0 0
5. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 0 0 0 0
6. Churat Chakarakul Director and Managing Director 58,863,636 0 0 58,863,636
7. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director and Deputy Managing Director 364,393 0 0 364,393
8. Seri Sintuas Assistant Managing Director and Company’s Executive 0 0 0 0
Secretary

9. Wanchai Aranvutikul Assistant Managing Director 0 0 0 0
10. Kittichai Thitapanich Assistant Managing Director 0 0 0 0
11. Kanitha Thamviseth Account Manager 0 0 0 0
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Policy and Overall Business Operations

Significant Changes and Development

Lalin Property Public Co., Ltd. was founded on 8 September 1988 with initial registered capital of 20 million baht
and Mr. Thaweesak Wacharakhawong and Mr. Chaiyan Chakornkul as the first shareholders. The company conducts
housing business under the slogan “Home Built with the Best Intention”. The first housing project under the project name
“Lully Ville” was set up in two areas, namely, Srinagarind and Dhupateme Roads, with a total of 800 housing units on
88 rai of land and a project value of 1,100 million baht. The project has already been closed. Throughout the past, the
company has continually launched housing projects, even during the economic crisis of 1997 when the company was
one of only a few companies in Thailand that did not require debt restructuring and created no NPL for any financial

institutions.

During the time of crisis for the real estate industry, the company started marketing for new housing projects, e.g.
the project Friend-get-Friend and the implementation of escrow accounts to build customer confidence. As a result,
the company was one of only a few companies in the real estate industry with no need to re-negotiate its debt structure
with any financial institution. Moreover, the company was the leader in implementing the strategy to purchase projects
and land as collateral for the NPAs of financial institutions and asset auction from the Financial Sector Restructuring
Authority (FSRA) for further development. As a result, the company was able to develop projects continually and with

annually increasing sales figure and competitive operating costs under today’s conditions of fierce competition.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

The company has increased its registered capital consistently to support project development as follows:

1997 Increased registered capital to 250 million baht.
1998 Increased registered capital to 300 million and 400 million baht, respectively.
1999 Increased registered capital to 555 million baht.

2002 Converted to public company on 3 September 2002 and registered in the SET with registered capital

increased to 825 million baht.

2017 Increased registered capital to 925 million baht.

Throughout the past ten years, the company has expanded projects consistently to support business growth and
replace previously completed projects. The company has conducted regular research on market demand and developed
products to meet consumer demands and expand its customer base. In 2010, the company launched a new brand,
“Lanceon”, with single home and modern duplex home projects, designed by a designing company with performance
accepted worldwide with an Organic Contemporary theme blending contemporary work with nature. The following year,
the company launched another new brand, “Lio”, a 2-storey and 3-storey town home project in modern ecology style.
The two brands are for customer base expansion to the market of new generation consumers. As of the end of 2020,

the company had launched a total of 68 “Lanceo” and “Lio” projects valued at approximately 46,200 million baht.

Furthermore, the company launched an 8-storey condominium project to support specific consumer groups,
especially those who are new graduates who have just started working and people who want to live in condominiums
in the city. During 2011-2013, the company launched four 8-storey condominium projects under the brand “Levo” and
“Lib” valued at approximately 1,200 million baht. The first project began to generate income in late 2012. In addition to
expanding customer base to a wider age range, the company also expanded its customer base in terms of geographic
area. The company has expanded its business to provincial markets since 2012, to provinces with capacity such as
Chonburi, Rayong, Chachoensao, and Nakhonratchasima. At the end of 2020, a total of 18 new projects were launched

in provincial markets.
Business Goals

The company is determined to become the nation’s leading business in the housing business with policy focused
on stable, continual growth and business expansion by taking factors into consideration with prudence and caution and
seeking new business opportunities. The company is considering concepts for developing projects capable of meeting
customer demands from project location, housing development with consideration of functionality, modern design, cost
effectiveness as well as the building of quality society. The company’s motto is “Homes Built with the Best Intention”.
Under normal conditions, the company launches new housing projects every year in areas with capacity, according to
the Five-Corner Home policy, with fair selling prices and quality society, with emphasis on lower middle to high class
customers, and focus on customers with real demand. During the past years, the company continually launched 7 - 9
new projects in each year. And for 2021’s Plan, the company plans to continually launch 10 — 12 more new projects with
an approximate total value of 6,000 — 7,000 million baht. The company set revenue target in 2020 at 6,000 million baht.
In term 3-5 years target, the company set revenue growth at 10-15% per year, and target to increase market share in

townhome segment within price range 1.5-2.5 million baht from 8% to 10%.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Nature of Business

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is a developer of houses with land for commercial sales. The Company currently
has registered capital of 925 million Baht (of which 825 million Baht is fully paid-up). Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong
serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul as Executive Chairman. The Company is
the sole developer and owner of various residential housing projects, with a primary focus on detached house, semi
detached houses (new concept homes), and townhouses in the Bangkok and greater Bangkok area. The projects
comprise “Lalin GreenVille”; “Baan Lalin in the Park”; “Baan Burirom”; “Lully Ville”, “The Balcony Home”, and the two
new brands named “Lanceo” and “Lio”. The company launched a new condominium project branded “LEVO” in 2011,
and “The LIB” in 2012 to support customer’s needs. The company launched projects which cover 5 major regions of
Bangkok and vicinities, that is, the central city zone, the western zone, eastern zone, northern zone and southern zone.
This has provided the basis for the Company’s business direction for over 30 years. Moreover, since 2012 Company
has started to expand business to other potential provinces. At the end of 2020, Company had already launched 18
projects in up-country market.

With its extensive experience spanning over 30 years, the Company is the leader of the mid market housing
segment, targeting customers looking to purchase homes in the 1.5 - 6 million Baht range. This segment represents a
market supported by real demand, with consumers possessing a household income of between 25,000 -120,000 Baht
per month. This market also includes a significant number of the population. The Company is committed to ongoing
product development, to meet the needs of consumers, whether in terms of project locations; developing house designs
with a regard for functionality; contemporary design; and value for money. This reflects the philosophy carried in the
hearts of all Lalin Property employees: “Houses built on good intentions”.

The Company seeks to develop projects that meet demand for housing in areas that consumers want, striving to
make the Lalin Property name widely associated with value and quality. The homes in each project offer a selection of
designs to choose from. Customers can purchase either one of 3 options in the projects: pre-built homes, semi-pre-built
homes and built-to-order homes. This approach and business strategy has allowed the Company to fulfill the needs of
its customers, inspiring them with confidence in its operations. Company had registered trademark for project’'s names,
and each of project names have their own customer target. At present, Company has project names under management

as follow.

Lalin Greenville Luxe

L U X E

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 7 Million Baht.

Lalin Greenville

L - . Qaan3udaa
I~ YV ~ . The Executive
aaﬂ I\SUDG@ douyd & JumRdUTe Frssmamil

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 5 Million Baht.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Baan Lalin

U aaa

[ = =) The young Executive
YUrnidaa Y daa g

5 e TR SRR = fIssnn0

Project Type : Detached House
Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 3.0 — 5.0 Million Baht.

Baan Burirom

Thellnnovation Earr e

by Lalin Froperey

U’]UL! §/$EJ' UnuuSsuel

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept)

Target Customer  : Medium Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.2 — 4.0 Million Baht.
Lully Ville

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept), and Townhouse

Target Customer  : Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.0 — 2.5 Million Baht.

The Balcony Home

(c% @_f?.‘mﬂ e

By Lalin

Project Type : In town Townhouse

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 3.5 Million Baht.

LANCEO
1
PRIDE
Q20 onceon
bir Laltn Properry By Lalin Property
Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept) under concept Modern Organic

Contemporary

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 4.0 Million Baht.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

LIO
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Lalim Proparty
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Project Type : Townhouse for young generation under concept “Modern Ecology”

Target Customer  : Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.5 — 2.5 Million Baht.

LEVO Condo

Project Type

: 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Revolution of Life”
Target Customer  : Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station.

Selling price’s approximately 1.8 — 3.0 Million Baht.

LIB Condo

LIB

Project Type : 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Liberty of Living”

Target Customer  : Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station.

Selling price’s approximately 1.4 — 2.5 Million Baht.

The company’s main revenue comes from the real estate business, which can be divided into four types of housing
products, namely, single homes, duplexes, townhouses and condominiums. The revenue from each type of product
can be summarized as follows:

Product Types

Million B

Million B Million B

Revenue from Sales

Detached House & Semi-Detached

House 1,862.76 45.63%| 1,800.84 38.95%| 2,247.99 39.10%

Townhouse 2,205.61 54.03%| 2,819.91 61.00%| 3,500.83 60.90%

Condominium 13.69 0.34% 2.28 0.05% 0.00 0.00%
Total 4,082.06 4,623.03 5,748.82
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Overview of Real Estate Industry

The real estate business sector is an industrial sector intricately linked to the economy and usually shows growth
or recession corresponding with overall economic directions. In 2020, the world, including Thailand, had to cope with
COVID-19 outbreaks spreading worldwide since the beginning of the year, causing almost every national economy in
the world to have to cope with severe recession dependent on each country’s economic base and ability to manage
outbreak problems. Thailand was heavily impacted because the Thai economy relies on income from foreign tourists
who make up as much as 13 percent of Thailand’s gross domestic product (GDP) with many workers employed by the
tourism industry. In 2020, the number of foreign tourists in Thailand declined by more than 80 percent. Furthermore, the
manufacturing and export sectors were impacted by this sudden stop of the global economy starting a chain reaction
for consumption in both people sector and private sector investments with severe impact on the economy as a whole.
In regards to overall economic growth of the Thai economy for the year, there was a 6.1-percent contraction, the most

severe in over 20 years since Thailand’s financial crisis, or the Tom Yum Kung Crisis of 1997.

The real estate and housing business sector was also severely impacted. Overall, the market recession in 2020 was
the most severe recession in more than ten years. In particular, the condominium group was more severely impacted by
horizontal housing as a result of missing foreigner demand and changes in lifestyle behaviors. In addition, the housing
demands of consumers shifted from vertical housing to horizontal housing due to the New Normal after COVID-19
outbreaks, causing many people to need more personal space and work from home. Living in small urban condominiums
do not meet housing needs. Therefore, in 2020, new housing sales surveyed by the Real Estate Information Center
found new condominium sales in 2020 to decline by 40 percent while new horizontal housing sales remained stable,
because most horizontal markets are real demand markets, causing horizontal markets to be less impacted. Many
entrepreneurs have considered stopping new project expansions, particularly condominium projects. The number of
new condominiums launched for sale in Bangkok dropped by more than 60 percent when compared to the previous
year while horizontal housing dropped by ten percent. Furthermore, apart from negative factors such as economic
recession and the COVID-19 pandemic with its effects on housing needs in 2020, the real estate sector had to cope
with negative factors due to weaker consumer purchasing power from lower income including higher household debt
in the past several years in addition to strict loan approval conditions of financial institutes and the LTV control measure

of the Bank of Thailand, all of which pressured the housing real estate market in 2020.

Condition of Real Estate Industry in 2020
Registered housing units in the Bangkok and Vicinities

Number of newly completed and registered housing units in Bangkok and Vicinities during year 2016-2020

‘ 2016 ‘ 2017 ‘ 2018 ‘ 2019 ‘ 2020

Number of newly completed and registered housing (units)

1. Built by Developers
- Detached house 12,736 12,129 15,563 13,552 11,010
- Semi-detached house 1,895 2,535 2,101 3,024 2,472
- Townhouse and shop house 17,111 16,634 20,051 21,274 15,585
- Condominium 76,344 63,361 75,400 59,988 59,012

Total of building by developers 108,086 94,659 113,115 97,838 88,029
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2559 2560 2561 2562 2563
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sondszinnilszangudsnaiag 21,915 20,237 19,999 20,127 21,356
safietadaadraaiaaansfisuianun 130,001  114,896| 133,114 117,965 109,385
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- 8IANITA 58.73% 55.15% 56.64% 50.85% 53.95%
100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00%
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‘ 2016 ‘ 2017 ‘ 2018 ‘ 2019 ‘ 2020

2. Private construction
- Detached house 19,156 17,995 17,507 18,029 19,188
- Semi-detached house 119 142 107 130 83
- Townhouse and shop house 2,640 2,100 2,385 1,968 2,085
Total for private construction 21,915 20,237 19,999 20,127 21,356
Total of newly completed and registered housing 130,001 114,896 133,114 117,965 109,385
Rate of change (%)
1. Built by Developers
- Detached house 7.59% 4.77% 28.31% -12.92% -18.76%
- Semi-detached house -19.91% 33.77% -17.12% 43.93% -18.25%
- Townhouse and shop house -12.81% -2.79% 20.54% 6.10% -26.98%
- Condominium 11.99% -17.01% 19.00% -20.44% -1.63%
Total of building by developers 5.97% -12.42% 19.50% -13.51% -10.03%
2. Private construction
- Detached house -2.22% -6.06% -2.71% 2.98% 6.43%
- Semi-detached house 25.26% 19.33% -24.65% 21.50% -36.15%
- Townhouse and shop house -1.82% -20.45% 13.57% -17.48% 5.95%
Total for private construction -2.06% -7.66% -1.18% 0.64% 6.11%
Total of newly completed and registered housing 4.53% -11.62% 15.86% -9.84% -1.27%
Proportion of each registered residence
- Detached house 24.53% 26.22% 24.84% 26.77% 27.61%
- Semi-detached house 1.55% 2.33% 1.66% 2.67% 2.34%
- Townhouse and shop house 15.19% 16.31% 16.85% 19.70% 16.11%
- Condominium 58.73% 55.15% 56.64% 50.85% 53.95%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Summary of Overall Real Estate Industry

Based on the data on the number of housing fully constructed and registered in Bangkok and surrounding areas
of the Real Estate Information Center (REIC), the number of housing fully constructed, registered and built by operators
(subdivisions) in 2020, the total was 88,029 units, a decrease from the previous year by 10.03 percent. The number of
fully constructed, registered single homes in 2020 was 11,010 units, which was a decrease of 18.76%. At the same time,
the number of fully constructed, registered townhouses and commercial buildings in 2020 was 15,535 units, which is a
decrease of 26.98%. At the same time, the number of fully constructed, registered condominiums in 2020 was 59,012
units, a decrease from the previous year (59,988 units) or a 1.63% decrease. The aforementioned numbers are registered
numbers upon construction completion. Therefore, condominium registration numbers are for projects launched for
sale in the past 2-3 years before the condominium market was hard hit in the past 1-2 years from the beginning of LTV
measures which had impacts on sales for speculation and investment, most of which were in condominium projects.

Moreover, the COVID-19 pandemic caused foreigner demand to disappear, causing oversupply in many market locations.
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In terms of housing loan demand, the numbers of new loans for small housing (mortgages) collected by the Real
Estate Information Center (REIC) from commercial banks, government banks and financial institutes showed overall
new housing loans in 2020 to be at 612,084 million baht, a reduction by 28,175 million baht in the previous year or a
4.40-percent reduction. New housing loans have shrunk for the second consecutive year from the first contraction in
almost ten years in 2019 after 2011, which was caused by major floods in Thailand. Outstanding mortgage loans at
the end of 2020 were at 4,254,730 million baht, an increase from the end of the previous year by 244,495 million baht,
or a 6.10-percent increase. One of the reasons causing outstanding value to increase despite two consecutive years
of recession in new loans was government aid measures to support financial and capital markets by helping debtors
impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak with measures to suspend repayment of principal debts and interest, causing

overall unpaid loans in the system to continue to rise.

Value of New Home Loans Growth (%) Value of Outstanding Home Growth (%)
(million baht) Loans (million baht)
2015 577,844 0.38% 3,092,947 8.73%
2016 586,050 1.42% 3,320,469 7.36%
2017 633,990 8.18% 3,525,103 6.16%
2018 702,900 10.87% 3,795,009 7.66%
2019 640,259 -8.91% 4,010,235 5.67%
2020 612,084 -4.40% 4,254,730 6.10%

With regard to supply, survey data on new projects launched in Bangkok and surrounding provinces surveyed
and collected by Agency For Real Estate Affairs Company Limited found 71,429 units of supply to have been launched
for sale in 2020, a reduction from the previous year by 40.11 percent. The numbers for condominium housing declined
significantly or as much as 61.35 percent while horizontal housing had newly launched supply in the amount of 45,597
units overall, a 13.33-percent reduction from the previous year. When each type of product was considered, newly
launched single home supply numbered 10,060 units, a 23.11-percent reduction from the previous year which had
more units launched for sale than the average for the past 2-3 years. Supply for twin housing products had 7,265 units
newly launched for sale, an increase from 10.09 percent in the previous year while town house supply had 28,010 new

units launched for sale, a reduction from the previous year by 12.43 percent.

New Supplies in the Bangkok and Vicinities (Separated by types)

Launched in Launched in Launched in Launched in Growth (%)
2017 2018 2019 2020
Detached House 10,217 11,071 13,084 10,060 -23.11%
Semi-detached House 4,063 7,240 6,599 7,265 10.09%
Townhouse 35,462 31,717 31,987 28,010 -12.43%
Shop house 1,109 632 938 262 -72.07%
Total of Low rise 50,851 50,660 52,608 45,597 -13.33%
Condominium 63,626 74,380 66,367 25,652 -61.35%
Vacant land 0 0 0 0 -
Total 114,477 125,040 118,975 71,249 -40.11%

Source : Agency for real estate (AREA)
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In recently year, the ratios of projects opened by listed companies increased significantly, reflecting higher
confidence from consumers than unlisted companies. Furthermore, superior competitive ability of companies in the
market enabled companies in the market to increasingly take market shares from companies outside the market in the
past several years. In present, the number of new projects and units launched for sale by companies in the market

accounted for ober 80 percent of all units opened for sale.

Trends for the Real Estate Industry in 2021

Concerning real estate industry trends in 2021, this year is expected to be another challenging year for entrepreneur
professionalism. The real estate market has had to cope with many ongoing risks from 2020 such as economic recovery
risks, weaker consumer purchasing power, lower income and rising unemployment. Impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic
accelerated household debt and led to commercial banks needing stricter loan measures to control risks and prevent

non-performing loans (NPSs) from exceeding the criteria set by each bank.

The real estate sector is connected to the overall economy. In 2021, many parties expect the Thai economy to
recover slowly with a growth of three percent after entering recession in 2020 at -6.1 percent. Whether the aforementioned
recovery is higher or lower than estimated numbers is partly dependent on ability to quickly control the spread of
COVID-19. If vaccinations are delayed to the second half of the year or if a second or third wave of outbreaks occurs,
this will pressure and prevent economic recovery from achieving estimates. If the economy does not recover or recovers
slowly, real estate industry overviews will recover slowly. According to estimates, with good control of outbreaks from the
first quarter of 2021, the real estate industry should gradually recover overall in the second half of the year, particularly
for horizontal housing. Nevertheless, much supply remains in the vertical market from many entrepreneurs launching
units for sale in competition in the previous 2-3 years, causing many units to remain unsold including units from new
building constructions that have been completed. Although units have been sold, unfavorable conditions in the market
have caused consumers to decide to abandon down payments or cancel from failure to meet commercial bank loan
consideration criteria. Entrepreneurs would have to resell these units while consumer demand remains weak. Thus, in
2021, many entrepreneurs are expected to use significant price reduction strategies as in 2020 to increase product

outflows and return as much cash flow to the company due to tight liquidity.

Concerning the horizontal housing market, horizontal housing is expected to gain in popularity in 2021 after 2020
when many New Normals occurred. Changes in housing lifestyles are becoming visible. Previously, first jobbers were
found to have need for condominium housing due to travel convenience. However, the COVID-19 pandemic caused
many people to have to work from home. Living in small city condominiums was not practical when having to stay inside
for a long time, causing suburban town home products at similar prices to be given interest by this group of consumers
because of similar prices with 4-5 times more space, private space, parking spaces and more travel convenience from

electric train networks which will significantly expand in the near future.

Although the overview of 2021 shows several negative factors for the real estate business, some positive factors are
supporting the real estate business such as renewal of measures to reduce ownership rights transfer fees and mortgage
registration fees to 0.01 percent for housing valued at no more than three million baht, relaxation of LTV criteria of the
Bank of Thailand and interest rates which have remained low and are expected to remain low throughout 2021 despite
signs of increasing from US interest rates where the market sees signs of economic recovery and potential for faster

inflation after success in vaccinating the country’s population.
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Risk Factors

In the business operation of the Company, the potential risks affecting to the operation of the Company in the
future are as followed;

1. Risks from economic recession

The Thai economy contracted by 6.1 percent in 2020 after growing by 2.3 percent in 2019. This recession is the
most severe in the past 20 years or since the Asian Financial Crisis or the Tom Yum Gung Crisis of 1997 in line with
many countries worldwide due to the COVID-19 pandemic. When each component of the Thai economy was considered,
significant issues are outlined as follows:

*  Private sector consumption shrank by 1.0 percent for the first time since 1909. As a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, many economic activities have stopped, causing people sector income to recede with many people
becoming unemployed, particularly in businesses connected to the tourism sector. However, the government
launched various measures to encourage spending such as the Rao Tiao Duay Kan Project to support tourism,
the Kon La Krueng Shop Dee Mee Kuen Project and the Kon La Krueng Project to support spending, which
helped the private sector’'s consumption in Quarter 4 to return to a growth of 0.9 percent.

» Private sector investment contracted by 8.4 percent due to weak domestic and overseas demand including
high economic uncertainty, particularly before a vaccine was invented, which caused businesspeople to have
no confidence to invest. Furthermore, the business sector had to cope with liquidity problems without easy
access to funding due to anxiety about economic conditions in the commercial banking sector and stricter
loans, especially for small and medium enterprises (SMEs). Nevertheless, the government sector launched
measures to support and increase liquidity through projects such as the Soft Loan Project with a balance
of over five hundred billion baht , the loan suspension project to support SMEs impacted by COVID-19 and
reductions to contributions to the Rehabilitation and Development Fund for Financial Institution, etc.

*  The tourism sector is the most severely impacted sector. The number of foreign tourists who entered Thailand
at 40 million tourists per year dropped by more than 80 percent. Income from foreign tourists is normally 13
percent of Thailand’s gross domestic product (GDP). In addition, many workers were in the tourism industry,
causing impacts on other economic sectors.

The real estate development business sector is a closely connected business sector and moves in the same
direction as economic conditions. When the overall economy is in recession or slowing down, consumer confidence and
purchasing power will be impacted, because decisions to purchase housing create long term obligations. Therefore, if
the economy or future economic direct directions are in recession, these factors will cause consumers to delay housing
purchases to wait and see the situation. In 2020, the overall real estate development business sector was severely
impacted in the same direction as the overall economy. Many operators delayed new project launches and used
strategies to offload inventory.

In 2021, the overall Thai economy is expected to remain able to grow by 2.5 — 3.5 percent, depending on the ability
to control outbreaks including the government sector’s speed in procuring vaccines. The aforementioned growth is a
growth from a low base in 2020 when the Thai economy receded by 6.1 percent, meaning the Thai economy would not
be able to return to normal levels before the COVID-19 pandemic until 2022. The Thai economy in 2021 is supported
by improving directions for the global economy and trade after vaccinations begin and infection rates improve in many
countries worldwide. This will help the Thai export sector to improve and vaccinated foreign tourists may be allowed to
travel to Thailand in 2021.

However, economic recession risks in 2021 remain primary risk factors to be closely monitored and assessed
because economic recovery has risks in many areas such as slower global economic recovery than estimated, worldwide
financial market fluctuations with effects on international capital movement, interest rates and exchange rates, directions
of trade barrier policies between the United States and China under policies of the new US President, slower recovery of
the tourism sector than expected and recovery of the business sector, particularly SMEs impacted during COVID-19 and
the end of support measures from the government sector and financial institutions. All of these factors would pressure
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the global economy in 2021 to recover more slowly than expected with direct and psychological impacts which may
cause consumers to delay purchase decisions. However, the Company assesses economic risks closely for the domestic
economy and overseas economies. The Company meets at the level of risk management directors, executive directors
and company directors to assess the economy and future trends twice a month and includes assessed risks in planning
and modifying the organization’s strategies in order to be appropriately consistent with economic directions at each
time.

2. Risks from the Coronavirus Outbreak

The COVID-19 pandemic broke out in early 2020 with origins in China before rapidly spreading to other countries
worldwide, causing the entire world to be severe impacted in the economic and social aspects. At the end of 2020, over
81 million people were infected worldwide with approximately 1.8 million deaths. The aforementioned pandemic caused
each country to enact lockdown measures to prevent outbreaks from becoming severe and overwhelming domestic
public health systems. Cessation of economic activities caused wide-ranging and severe economic impacts and many
people became unemployed. However, in late 2020, the world was successful in manufacturing vaccine. However,
vaccine manufacturing and distribution coverage of the world remains limited. Delayed vaccine distribution or virus
mutations may cause vaccines to have insufficient prevention efficiency, which may cause global economic recovery
including Thailand’s recovery to be delayed. The real estate business was impact with no difference from other impacted
business sectors. Nevertheless, the Company held risk assessment meetings and closely monitored situations at the
level of risk management directors, executive directors and company directors. The Company modifies strategies to fit
situations based on risk assessments.

3. Risks from Increased Competition in the Real Estate Business

Overall, the real estate business contracted severely in 2020, particularly in the condominium market due to economic
recession. Furthermore, various New Normals in society caused changes to the lifestyles of some consumers and caused
consumers to have need for horizontal housing in place of vertical housing. This is because urban condominiums may
not be able to meet habitation needs from having small spaces. Consumers were unable to live in condominiums for an
extended period when many people had to work from home. The overall developed housing business had almost no
expansion in the past 2-3 years while market supply continues to increase from project expansions by many operators
in the past several years. In particular, condominium products are in oversupply in some locations. Furthermore, tight
financial conditions have caused many operators to begin to have liquidity problems, resulting in use of price strategies
and significant reductions in selling prices to increase inventory outflow in order to return cash flow to companies.
Therefore, in 2021 after 2020, competition will be strong in the real estate business. Many operators who focused in
vertical projects now have policies to delay vertical project launches and turn to focus on developing more horizontal
products along with expanding to other segments of the market. Some entrepreneurs who developed only upper-level
housing expanded to lower markets while most entrepreneurs who marketed mid-to-low level housing are making efforts
to increase upper-level housing ratios. In addition, overstocking and liquidity problems of some operators caused a
significant increase in use of discount price policies without expecting profits. This will cause the overview of competition
in 2021 to be likely to grow more intense after 2020.

Concerning the Company, the Company has been in this business for more than 30 years. Thus, the Company has
expertise in the real estate business. In addition, the Company’s policy is to focus on marketing in real demand groups.
The Company does not develop projects based on trends or projects in a speculative market, causing the Company
to be less impacted. Investments to develop each project are considered thoroughly by the Executive Committee,
which conducts feasibility studies on each project including in-depth market studies of location, supply and demand.
The Company has the Company’s own research, business development and product development sections. Thus, the
Company is able to reduce risks from increased competition in the real estate business.
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4. Risks arising from interest rate change

The financial situation in 2018 and 2019 showed significant fluctuations that differed from most market expectations.
In 2018, overall returns for US government and Thai government bonds rose, particularly in the second and third quarters.
In 2018, the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) decided to raise the policy rate four times, bringing the US policy
rate to 2.25 — 2.50 percent at the end of 2018 while the Financial Institutions Policy Committee (FIPC), Bank of Thailand,
raised the policy rate for the first time in seven years, causing Thailand’s policy rate to rise to 1.75 percent from 1.50
percent. In late 2018, many parties expected the market to have rising interest rates. However, in 2019, global interest
rate directions did not meet market expectations. Interest rates returned to a declining direction. The FIPC reduced
the policy rate twice to 1.25 percent. In 2020, the policy rate was reduced policy rate 3 times to support the economy,
which was expected to have severe recession, causing the policy rate to drop to 0.50 percent, the lowest level in history.
Regarding the minimum retail rate (MMR) of commercial banks, which affect consumers’ ability to purchase housing,
the minimum retail rate declined in line with the policy rate. The MMRs of four major commercial banks were at 6.87 —
6.875 percent at the end of 2019, before declining to 5.75 — 6.22 percent at the end of 2020.

If interest rates rise, this may have some effect on consumers’ ability to purchase residences; however, the interest
rate trend is in downturn in 2020. Therefore, it is a benefit for buyers who want to buy house. The Company has low
liabilities. Thus, the Company’s interest expenses are low when compared to the Company’s income. Furthermore, the
Company has strict management of risks from interest rate changes and liquidity. For example, the Company issues
long-term loans shares with fixed interest rates and adjusts loan share terms to be suitable to changing situations.
Moreover, the Company issues bills of exchange to adjust short-term liquidity and cut financial costs. The Company
negotiates with financial institutes to make long-term loan agreements with fixed interest rates, makes committed lines
with commercial banks as a reserve balance and the Company consistently monitors domestic and overseas financial
situations by inputting issues for consideration at every Executive Committee meeting in order to assess situations and
manage appropriately in a timely manner.

5. Risks from more stringent loan offerings by commercial banks

Commercial banks have recently become stricter in their consideration of credit and loans concerning both loans
for entrepreneurs (pre-finance) and loans for consumers (post-finance). In terms of pre-financing, commercial banks
began to increase stringency in financial support for projects during the past year by setting various additional terms,
particularly for groups of people with no previous experience in the real estate business and groups of non-listed
companies. Hence, those companies are finding it more and more difficult to access sources of financial support which
can be considered an advantage for the industrial sector in helping to increase market supply. Business-wise, risks are
incurred with such low access to monetary sources. Due to the Company’s strong financial status, our debt-equity ratio
is very low in comparison to the industry average. Furthermore, the Company has a good history of long-term financial
discipline without ever applying for debt restructuring or non-performing loans with any financial institution, even in
during the economic crisis in 1997. Hence, the Company is well-known by various commercial banks. Apart from this,
the Company has made succinct financial plans with preparation of sufficient liquidity and in concurrence with the
Company’s plans for business growth. Moreover, the Company has also prepared sufficient long- and short-term lines
of credit for business growth in line with the Company’s plans, including sufficient liquidity to handle severe economic
deceleration.

In terms of credit for consumers (post finance) last couple year, commercial banks have also been stricter in their
considerations, partly due to the figures for household debts which escalated late last year. The current conditions in
which the personal credit industry is enjoying rapid growth have had impact on consumer spending behavior where
consumers spend money in advance via personal credit, e.g. credit cards and various personal loans, and also the
Government’s first car buyer policy. This has had the effect of reducing the home buying power of consumers. At the
same time, commercial banks have stricter criteria in considering loans for people who want to buy homes. For home
purchases, most customers need to rely on loans from commercial banks for approximately 90 — 95 percent of the home
price. Therefore, the Company’s realized income inevitably depends upon the consideration of commercial banks in
granting loans. If commercial banks become stricter, the Company’s realized income may be reduced in conjunction
with sales due to some customers who are refused loans by commercial banks. Nevertheless, the Company has closely
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monitored consumer conditions and the policy of each commercial bank in granting loans in order to revise policy as
suitable for each period of time. In addition, the Company cooperated with some commercial banks in order to propose
special conditions for customers buying homes in the Company’s projects, e.g. granting loans for 100 percent of the
home price at a lower interest rate than the market and step payment programs, etc.

6. Risks arising from Housing Loan Governance Measures of the Bank of Thailand

At the end of 2018, the Bank of Thailand (BOT) issued criteria governing for housing loans and other loans related
to housing loans by setting controlling criteria to prevent financial institutes from allowing housing loans and related
loans exceeding the loan to value ratio (LTV ratio) specified by the Bank of Thailand. The aforementioned measures will
become effective on 1 April 2019 and onward.

According to the new criteria, in cases where residences are valued below ten million baht and the residence
is a first horizontal home, the LVT ratio is set at 95 percent. However, the LTV ratio for condominium residences is 90
percent. In the case of loans for a second home, the LTV ratio is 80 if the first home’s payments have been made for less
than three years. However, if the first home’s payments have been made for more than three years, the LTV ratio is set
at 90 percent. In the case of loans for a third home and up, the Bank of Thailand specified the LTV ratio at 70 percent.
Later in late 2019 to early 2020, the Bank of Thailand relaxed the old LTV criteria on the following issues: 1) The Bank
of Thailand relaxed criteria for syndicated loans from counting loans as shared by every person to considering cases
where co-borrowers have no ownership rights in housing as cases where housing loans were never taken out; 2) The
Bank of Thailand increased the LTV ratio in the case of first homes valued at no more than ten million baht to maintain
the old LTV ceiling at 100 percent and allowed loans to be take out at an additional ten percent for necessary living
expenses; and 3) In the case of a second house purchase valued at no more than ten million baht, the Bank of Thailand
reduced the repayment period for the first home from three years to two years and allowed an LTV ratio of 90 percent
to be used.

Effects from the aforementioned LTV control measures will require people who want to purchase homes to have
more savings before purchasing homes. Nevertheless, the Company believes issuance of the aforementioned LTV
control measures will have a positive effect on the overall housing industry in the long-term. The Company’s risks
of effects from the aforementioned measures are rather limited because most of the Company’s products are in the
horizontal group. Furthermore, the Company’s customers are real demand customers who make purchases to live in
and are first-home purchasers. Ordinarily, customers have some savings already before making a decision to purchase
a residence. Nevertheless, the Company will closely assess effects on the overall industry after the aforementioned
measure becomes effective and the Company will adjust business plans to be consistent with the situation.

7. Risks from the rise of construction cost

Demand Construction costs in 2020 fluctuated with overall main product prices declining from the beginning of
the year to the third quarter due to the global economic recession. Nevertheless, after the world began to see signs of
economic recovery and speculation in commodities, commodity prices rose quickly at the end of the year for oil and steel,
etc. Oil prices in 2020 fluctuated significantly. At the beginning of the year, oil was prices at 63 USD per barrel. However,
when the COVID-19 pandemic broke out, oil prices dropped to approximately 20 USD per barrel in April before rising
from the end of the year to the beginning of 2021. Currently, prices have returned to levels similar to prices in 2020. Oil
is a cost for almost every type of goods including construction materials. Furthermore, commodity prices usually move
in the same direction as oil prices, causing prices for certain types of construction materials to rise with oil prices. Steel
prices rose significantly in the last two months of 2020. Rebar prices rose by 35 percent in the last quarter of the year.
This was partly caused by significant increases in iron ore prices. In addition, China, the world’s top steel producer,
changed from being an exporter of midstream steel to importing large amounts of midstream steel in 2020, causing
a shortage in the world’s market and causing prices for every type of steel to rise worldwide. Nevertheless, prices for
other construction materials did not rise because the construction sector receded with the economy, causing demand
for construction materials to be low and causing construction material prices to stabilize after a condition where there
is more supply than demand. The company has compact management of construction material cost risks by making
independent purchases of main materials. And because the company has many projects on hand, the company has high
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

negotiating power with ability to make agreements with sellers on prices for large purchases. Furthermore, the company
closely monitors price movements of key construction materials including domestic and foreign market directions. If
the company considers price trends to be escalating, the company will make agreements on fixed prices in advance.
The company will negotiate with the company’s suppliers for key items such as steel, floor panels and roofs, etc., to set
appropriate purchasing prices. Moreover, the company attempts to seek other quality replacement materials in addition
to implementing new construction technologies as deemed fitting.

8. Risks arising from lack of skilled labors in construction works

The unemployed rate in Thailand has been in the low level for consecutive years which cause the lack of labors
in some fields of work. In addition, by reason of the expanding in construction and real estate sector, the expanding
investment in large public utility projects, both roads and railway mass transportation system, of the Government, and
also that of Thailand becoming aging society. As a result, the lack of labor in the construction sector was increasingly
severe in the past few years. However, the Company has the policy of risk management in this aspect by applying new
construction technologies to replace some previous construction system, which can reduce labors. For example, the
tunnel form construction system is applied to the construction of town houses and the precast system is applied to the
construction of single houses and condominiums. Moreover, the Company assigns the section responsible for supervising
and studying new construction technologies, both domestic and international, in order to consider the appropriateness
and application. Additionally, the Company plans to retain the former contractors by continuously and regularly
assigning construction works so that contractors are able to support their own labors, building the good relationship
with contractors of the Company; such as, holding banquets, awarding contractors having the best performance; and
distributing construction works based on skills and abilities of each contractor. The Company will also establish project
construction manager, project engineer, head of project construction supervisor, construction works supervisor, and
quality control officers to control and oversee construction works of contractors so that the quality of construction works
of each contractor will be assured.

9. Risks arising from the construction of pre-built homes

Following the economic crisis, most entrepreneurs apply the strategy of semi-pre-built homes to create the
confidence of consumers. Such strategy is necessary to spend the high cost which probably causes the risk of financial
liquidity and the risk arising from the changing behavior of consumers. However, the Company has the low level of such
risk because the Company has studied the behavior of consumers thoroughly and established the construction plan
efficiently. The plan is to combine the products, such as, pre-built home, semi pre-built home, and built-to-order home.
The beginning of the construction depends on the estimation of sales. In addition, since the Company has the low ratio
of liability per capital, the strict policy of cash flow management, and the large amount of excess equity in any financial
institutes, so the Company has the extremely low risk of inancial liquidity shortage.

10. Risks arising from natural disasters

At the end of the year 2011, Thailand suffered from the most severe flood crisis in 50 years, which widely caused
impacts and damages totaling over 1.2 trillion Baht. The real estate sector was affected directly and indirectly from this
situation, resulting to the buying decision of consumers, especially the project located in the severe flood-affected area.
In addition, some consumers decided to change locations from severe flood-affected area to no flood-affected area.
Some consumers changed their minds to buy accommodation in form of condominium instead. However, this risk factor
is limit in present situation.

Regarding to the Company, the risk management is provided to various aspects, such as, the project opening in
many areas, which is the original business operation principle of the Company. As a result, the impact of the flood is
limited to some projects only. Many projects of the Company are located in no flood-affected areas. It is considered to
be the management of risk sharing in terms of location which the Company is aware of this prior to the flood situation.
Additionally, the Company also shared the risk of products by expanding more vertical projects in 2012. Furthermore,
the Company also expanded the projects to the region market where 17 projects have been launched in the Eastern
part and North-eastern part of Thailand.
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11. Risks arising from land procurement for project development

Over the years, the price of lands in some locations, especially the location nearby sky train and areas providing
new developed utilities, such as, extension line of BTS, new line of BTS, extension line of roads and expressways, etc.,
dramatically increased since the economy and real estate business expanded by reasons of the increasing accommodation
demand of citizens and the expansion of regional market. This resulted to the higher price of lands in provincial areas
which increased rapidly in such period. However, Enforcement of land taxes have caused some major landowners to
not want to shoulder burdens from taxes on vacant and unused land. Furthermore, taxes will be continually increased
if the aforementioned land is not used, causing an increasing amount of vacant land to be in the purchase-sale market.
Thus, risk from higher land costs for project development was limited in the past 1-2 years.

In addition, land procurement for project development is necessary to carefully study the use of such land, including
the financial and marketing feasibility, and also consider relevant laws, such as, City Planning Act, etc. However, the new
City Planning Act which was announced in 2013 has been modified the use of land in some locations. In acquiring land,
it's necessary to study of land use act. Some types of accommodation may be unable to construct in some locations.
Also has to study the provisions of Floor Area Ratio — FAR and Open Space Ratio — OSR, including the provisions of
the environment permit. All of these are risks that may occur from land acquisition. Nevertheless, the Company strictly
manages the risk from land purchase by studying marketing feasibility, deeply analyzing returns obtained from the
investment of each land, and studying limitations of laws and other regulations of each land before buying. The decision
of land purchase will be considered carefully and approved by the Executive Committee.

12. Risks arising from Liquidity Risks

Based on the Company’s financial ratios at the end of 2020, the Company’s current ratio is 3.71 times and the
Company’s quick ratio is at 0.42 times. The aforementioned ratios may be considered low in line with the nature of the
real-estate development business, which has a high proportion of inventory out of all assets. According to consideration
of the Company’s interest bearing debt at the end of 2020, the Company’s liabilities were only at 3,372 million baht while
the Company’s cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2020 were at 1,048 million baht and Company’s equities were
at 7,472 million baht or Net Interest Bearing Debt / Equity ratio as low as 0.31 times.

At the end of 2020, the Company’s debt/equity ratio was 0.67 times, lower from 0.75 times showed at the end of
2019. This ratio is low when compared to the overall industry average which were at 1.40 times. The Company adheres
to financial discipline and has done so for over 30 years from the Company’s founding. The Company never creates
overwhelming and uncontrollable debts. The Company is one of only a few real-estate development companies in
Thailand to have not been required to enter a debt restructuring process with any financial institute during the economic
crisis of 1997. Thus, the Company receives good reliability and support from commercial banks. At the end of 2020, the
Company has approximately 2,200 million baht in unused committed lines with commercial banks, which is sufficient to
repay all loans due for payment in 2 — 3 years.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Shareholding Structure and Management

Corporate securities
1. Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had registered capital equivalent to 925,000,000 Baht, of which 924,999,441
Baht was paid-up. This comprises 924,999,441 ordinary shares carrying a par value of 1 Baht per share.

According to Thai NVDR Co., Ltd.’s data, 23,106,874 of the Company’s ordinary shares were held by investors
investing through non-voting depository receipts (NVDRs) as of August 28, 2020, representing 2.50% of all paid-up
shares. As such shares are not entitled to a voting right (except for a decision to delist the stock), the holders of non-
NVDR shares have 2.56% more of the voting right. As a result, holders of only 24.38% of the paid-up ordinary shares will
have a voting right equal to 25% of all voting shares. The investors can check the most updated names of company’s

stock holders investing through Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. at The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website (www.set.or.th)
2. Debentures

As of December 31, 2020, the company had 8 tranches of outstanding debentures which have total value at 3,025

Million Baht as below.

2.1) Unsecured debentures No.1/2018 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 1/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

500,000 Units

1,000 Baht

500 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
March 7, 2018

March 7, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 2.95%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on March 7, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

2.2) Unsecured debentures No.2/2018 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company

Limited No. 2/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures

100,000 Units

1,000 Baht

100 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
April 17, 2018

March 25, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 2.95%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on March 25, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

2.3) Unsecured debentures No.3/2018 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption
Underwriter
Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company

Limited No. 3/2018 Due B.E. 2021

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture

holder’s representative Debentures
400,000 Units

1,000 Baht

400 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor (I1)
August 10, 2018

August 2, 2021

Fixed coupon rate of 3.22%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on August 2, 2021
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Thai BMA
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

2.4) Unsecured debentures No.4/2018 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name : Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 4/2018 Due B.E. 2023

Types of Debenture : Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

Amount : 500,000 Units

Subscription Price : 1,000 Baht

Value : 500 Million Baht

Offering . Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
Issue Date : November 16, 2018

Maturity Date : November 16, 2023

Interest Rate . Fixed coupon rate of 4.50%

Interest Payment : Quarterly

Principal Payment . Bullet principal payment at maturity on November 16, 2023
Early Redemption . None

Underwriter : Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Registrar : Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market : Thai BMA

2.5) Unsecured debentures No.1/2019 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name : Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 1/2019 Due B.E. 2024

Types of Debenture : Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

Amount : 200,000 Units

Subscription Price : 1,000 Baht

Value : 200 Million Baht

Offering : Private Placement to Institute Investor (I1)
Issue Date . February 11, 2019

Maturity Date . February 11, 2024

Interest Rate . Fixed coupon rate of 4.20%

Interest Payment : Quarterly

Principal Payment . Bullet principal payment at maturity on February 11, 2024
Early Redemption . None

Underwriter : Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
Registrar : Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Secondary Market . Thai BMA
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

2.6) Unsecured debentures No.2/2019 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 2/2019 Due B.E. 2023

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

300,000 Units

1,000 Baht

300 Million Baht

Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
August 8, 2019

August 8, 2022

Fixed coupon rate of 3.40%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on August 8, 2022
None

United Overseas Bank Public Company Limited
Phatra Securities Public Company Limited

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

2.7) Unsecured debentures No.1/2020 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 1/2020 Due B.E. 2023

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

500,000 Units

1,000 Baht

500 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor (I1)

February 14, 2020

February 14, 2023

Fixed coupon rate of 2.90%

Semi - Annually

Bullet principal payment at maturity on February 14, 2023
None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Phatra Securities Public Company Limited
CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

Annual Report 2020
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

2.6) Unsecured debentures No.2/2020 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Types of Debenture

Amount
Subscription Price
Value

Offering

Issue Date
Maturity Date
Interest Rate
Interest Payment
Principal Payment
Early Redemption

Underwriter

Registrar

Secondary Market

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public Company
Limited No. 2/2020 Due B.E. 2023

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without debenture
holder’s representative Debentures

525,000 Units

1,000 Baht

525 Million Baht

Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
July 23, 2020

April 22, 2022

Fixed coupon rate of 3.00%

Quarterly

Bullet principal payment at maturity on April 22, 2022

None

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

Phatra Securities Public Company Limited
CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

Thai BMA

The Outstanding of Bill of Exchange as of December 31, 2020 is 350 Million Baht
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Top 10 major Shareholders as of August 28, 2020

As of August 28, 2020, the top 10 Shareholders as recorded in the Shareholder Registrar are presented as follows.

No ‘ Name of Shareholder ‘ Number of Shares

%
1 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 261,806,113 28.30
2 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 235,975,910 25.51
3 Mr.Churat Chakarakul 58,863,636 6.36
4 LGT BANK (SINGAPORE) LTD 40,576,257 4.39
5 Ms.Pornchanok Watcharakkawong 37,319,657 4.03
6 Miss.Usana Chakarakul 30,833,333 3.33
7 Mr.Tanakrit Saimuckka 29,440,690 3.18
8 Mr. Kenneth Rudy Kamon 25,628,778 2.77
9 Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. 23,106,874 2.50
10 UBS AG SINGAPORE BRANCH 19,957,575 2.16

Company has group of shareholder which might vote in the same direction as follow.

\[o} ‘ Name of Shareholder ‘ Number of Shares

Group of Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong

1 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 261,806,113 28.30
2 Ms.Pornchanok Watcharakkawong 37,319,657 4.03
3 Mrs.Paetai Watcharakkawong 5,606,060 0.61

Group of Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul

1 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 235,975,910 25.51
2 Mr.Churat Chakarakul 58,863,636 6.36
3 Miss.Usana Chakarakul 30,833,333 3.33
4 Mrs.Kannika Chakarakul 5,606,060 0.61

Dividend payment policy

The Company has a policy to provide dividends in the rate of not less than 30 percent of net profit after taxes,
barring any exceptional circumstances and so long as such payment does not significantly affect the normal operations
of the Company. The decision to offer dividends takes into account various factors, such as the Company’s operating
performance and financial status; liquidity; business expansion; and other factors relating to corporate administration.

The dividend pay-out must be approved by Shareholders as appropriate, as well as the Board of Directors.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

In 2020, the company proposed to the Annual General Shareholder’'s Meeting to consider and approve the allocation
of profits by paying cash dividend and extra dividend. The normal dividend is paid at the rate of 0.55 baht per share
which is approximately 564.25 million baht, and extra dividend is paid from profit from compensation for expropriation
at the rate of 0.06 Baht per share which is approximately 55.50 million baht; therefore, the total dividend for the year is
0.61 Baht per share. (or approx. 42.32% of net profit), details as follows.

Historical Dividend Payments

‘ 2013 ‘ 2014 ‘ 2018 ‘ 2019 ‘

Net Profit / Share (Baht) 0.51 0.52 0.43 0.61 0.74 0.84 0.96 1.44

Dividend Paid / Share

Cash Dividend / Share (Baht) 0.245 0.27 0.225 0.1385 0.30 0.34 0.385 0.55
Cash Extra Dividend / Share (Baht) - - - - - - - 0.06
Stock Dividend / Share (Baht) - - - 0.1212 - - - -
Paid ratio (Existing : New share) - - -1 8.25:1 - - - -
Dividend Paid / Share (Baht) 0.245 0.27 0.225 0.2597 0.30 0.34 0.385 0.61

Dividend Paid / Net Profit (%) 48.20% | 51.44% | 52.26% | 42.82% | 40.76% | 40.47% | 39.96% | 42.32%
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Management Structure

1) The Board of Directors

In 2020, the Board of Directors convened a total of 5 meetings and as of December 31, 2020, the Board had 7

members. Of this number, 3 were Independent Directors, with details as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong Chairman

2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Chairman of the Executive Board

3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
6. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Director & Executive Director

7. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director

Mr. Seri Sintuas serves as Company Secretary.

Name of directors authorized to enter into binding obligations

(1)

()

Two of these three directors, namely, Mr. Taveesak Wacharakawong, Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul and Mr. Nat

Sangarsongkogk, must sign together with company seal affixed. There are no limitations to director authority.

One of these three directors, namely, Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul or Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk or Mr.Churat

Chakarakul, signs with the company’s seal affixed on the following matters:

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Requests for temporary or permanent use of electrical power, extension of electrical power use, electrical
power use right transfer/receipt, requests to expand distribution area within/outside the land housing
project, requests for power guarantee refunds, transfers and receipt of power use security deposits
and power use termination.

Requests for temporary or permanent use of water, extension of water use, water use right transfer/
receipt, requests for plumbing system design and appraisal, requests for expansion of water distribution
area within/outside the land housing project, requests for water use security deposit refunds, transfer
and receipt of water use security deposit, water use termination, requests for permanent water use
transfer.

Filing of complaints about telephones, telephone number right rental, filing of general complaints to the
Thailand Post Company to take any action and requests for house numbers.

Requests for license renewal/license amendment/changes in license type with any public agency or
organization such as permits for construction, permits for building demolition, all types of building
modifications, land fill, requests to install signs, link roads, cut foot paths, drain wastewater, verify and
issue certificates, building construction and the placement of security deposits in the aforementioned
matters.

Requests for permission to do business with the Land Department or public agencies related to land
and housing, amendments of land housing diagrams and land housing project methods, all types of
land surveys, e.g., sub-divisions/merging, boundary checks, etc., boundary indicators and boundary
certification, reductions or cancelations of security deposits for utilities and/or utility maintenance,
documents concerning the setting of village housing juristic persons, condominium juristic person
registrations, condominium registrations, signatures to participate in village housing juristic person
meetings or condominium juristic person meetings, signatures in documents for the sale, mortgage or
termination of mortgage and records of late right transfer of the contract to purchase/sell residential

land/land with structures/condominium/ building structure.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Roles, Authorit

1.

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

The filing of complaints to interrogate officers, retract complaints, appoint attorneys, authorize the power
of attorney to file lawsuits, drafting letters to inquire about/cancel contracts, letter to explain to public
agencies, or individuals, or juristic persons.

Signing contracts to purchase/sell condominiums, condominium unit purchase reservation contracts,
contracts to purchase/sell land (in land housing projects), contracts to purchase/sell land with
structures (in housing projects), land rental contracts, building rental contracts, condominium unit rental
contracts, furniture rental contracts, contracts for the purchase/sale of kitchen furniture, equipment
and other related premiums and furniture installation, contracts for signing frame rentals, contracts
for advertisement services, contracts for construction employment, contracts for design employment,
letters of confirmation for service/merchandise receipts, purchase orders, documents for conducting
and presenting environmental impact assessment reports, the filing of local taxes/sign taxes/household
taxes/ security guards, maid/ messenger employment contracts, photocopier rental contracts, property
(clubhouse) rental contracts, memoranda of understanding (repair/remodeling utility systems) made
available for housing village juristic persons.

Purchase/sales/removal/renewal of inancial notes for purchasing material in normal business; letters to
request lines of credit, forms for financial transaction requests, request to use services/change internet
banking service information, requests to issue letters of guarantee/extend letters of guarantee, requests
for confirmation of balance for the auditor's annual audit.

Signing to receive privileges such as land deeds and/or any documents from banks, financial institutions,
individual or juristic persons.

Signing letter to inquire and/or verify any information, to make any requests or coordinate with public
agencies, government enterprises, private companies, associations, individuals or juristic persons on

business matters related to the company’s normal business operations.
ies, and Duties of the Board of Directors

Manage the Company in accordance with laws, the objectives, Articles of Association and resolutions

of Shareholders’ Meetings

Formulate policies and determine the direction for operations, financial management and business risk
management; oversee management operations in line with the predetermined policies with efficiency

and effectiveness

Consistent responsibility to Shareholders; protect the interests of Shareholders; disclose information with

accuracy, completeness, to standard and with transparency

Authority to appoint any number of Directors as Executive Directors for performing one or more tasks,

except those prescribed by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholder’s Meeting resolutions.

Transactions in which Directors or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested
interest, or any other form of conflict of interest with the Company obligate the said Director to refrain

from exercising or casting votes concerning the matter in question
Board of Directors’ Meetings are required to be held at least every 3 months

Regular Shareholders’ Meetings are to be organised within 4 months of the end of the Company’s

accounting year.

Directors may not engage in any business or have shareholdings in other juristic persons of a similar
nature with the Company’s business, or that are competitors to the Company, except as informed to

Shareholders prior to appointment as a Director
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Directors’ Approval Authority

1.

8.

Consider approval of the authority and duties of the executive board in performing various tasks in
managing business in compliance with the law, terms, rules and regulations of the Company, except

for issues in which the law stipulates the requirement of a resolution by a meeting of shareholders.
Consider approval of yearly goals and business operational plans for the Company.

Consider approval of risk management policy, corporate governance policy and other significant policies.
Consider approval of interim dividend payments to shareholders as deemed fitting.

Consider the scheduled dates for the Company’s annual general meetings of shareholders.

Consider approval of connected transactions and acquisition or distribution of assets in compliance

with the related specifications and practice guidelines prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Consider the appointment of properly qualified people and people with no prohibited characteristics
to hold the position of director in cases where directors’ positions are available. New directors will hold

the position for the remainder of the previous directors’ terms.

Consider approval of key transactions as prescribed by the law as the duty of the board of directors.

Roles, Authority and Duties of the Chairman of the Board

1.

Take responsibility as the chairman of the board in directing and presiding over meetings of the board

of directors in compliance with Company rules and regulations.

Responsibilities in directing and handling the work of the board of directors as well as various sub-
committees to meet their respective objectives as planned and in compliance with good governance

principles.

Serve as the chairman in meetings of the board of directors and meetings of shareholders by conducting

the meetings in compliance with Company regulations and to ensure that meetings are orderly.
Promote every director on the board in broad expressions of opinion.

Cast deciding votes in cases where the votes are tied in meetings of the board of directors and there

are only two equal sides.

2) Management

As of December 31, 2020, the Company’s Management Board comprised 7 individuals as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Chairman of the Executive Board

2. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Managing Director

3. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director, Deputy Managing Director

4. Mr. Seri Sintuas Director, Assistant Managing Director and Company Secretary
5. Mr. Wanchai Aranvutikul Assistant Managing Director

6. Mr. Kittichai Thitapanich Assistant Managing Director

7. Mrs. Kanittha Tumviseth Account Manager
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Roles, Authorities, and Duties of the Managing Director

The Managing Director is responsible for performing any ordinary operating activities as assigned by the Board of

Directors or the Executive Committee specified under the rules and regulations of the company. The ordinary operating

activities of the company are defined as follows:

» Toapprove the purchase of the construction material and any relevant services for the benefits of the company.

This shall not include the purchase of the land.

+ To approve the operating expenses, selling and administrative expenses and investments to be in accordance

with the budget approved by the Board of Director or the Executive Committee. This shall not include any

loans or guarantee.

Such Managing Director shall not perform any operations that may lead him or any person to have a conflict of

interest with the company or the subsidiaries.

3) Company Secretary

The appointment of the Company Secretary relies on the discretion of the Company’s board of directors because

the board of directors is responsible for the appointment of a Company Secretary to handle meetings of the Company’s

board of directors, shareholders’ meetings and various activities of the Company’s board of directors in order to help

the board of directors and the Company practice in compliance with related laws and regulations. At Board of Directors

Meeting 3/2556 on 13 August 2013 Mr. Seri Sintuas was appointed to the position of Company Secretary to replace Mr.

Nat Sangarsongkogk. The appointment became effective as of 14 August 2013 onward until the present.

Roles, Authorities, and Duties of Company Secretary

1.

Manages shareholders’ meetings and board of directors’ meetings in compliance with the law as well
as the Company’s rules and regulations as well as the code of best practice.

Reports resolutions and policy of the Company’s board of directors and shareholders to the executives
involved and monitors practice in compliance with resolutions and policies.

Offers preliminary advice to the Company’s board of directors on issues involving the law and the
Company'’s rules and regulations as required by the board of directors and monitors practice for accurate
and regular compliance, including reports on changes in legal specifications relevant to the directors.
Records minutes to the shareholders’ meetings and meetings of the Company’s board of directors,
including follow-up on practice in compliance with resolutions passed by the meetings of shareholders
and the Company’s board of directors.

Compiles and stores reports on stakeholders reported by the directors and executives in addition to
other important certificates or documents, e.g. company registration, letters scheduling meetings of the
Company’s board of directors, minutes to the meetings of the Company’s board of directors, annual
reports and letters scheduling shareholders’ meetings with the minutes to shareholders’ meetings.
Handles disclosure of information and informative reports under obligation to report to the agencies
regulating the Company in compliance with the official rules, regulations and specifications of those
agencies.

Contacts and communicates with general shareholders to inform them of various rights or privileges
granted to shareholders and to also keep them informed about Company news.

Handles the activities of the Company’s board of directors.

Performs other tasks as stipulated by the law or as assigned by the Company’s board of directors or

as notified by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

4) Remuneration for Directors and Management
1.  Monetary remuneration
(a)  The remuneration of the Company’s Directors in 2020

No. attended the meeting

Audit
Committee

Director Nomination Corporate
and management| governance

Position remuneration| committee and

Name of Directors

1. Mr.Taveesak
Watcharakkawong

Chairman

5/5

committee

sustainable
development
committee

2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul

Director /

Chairman of the
Executive Board /
Nomination and
remuneration committee

5/5

2/2

3. Mr.Suvarn Thansathit

Independent Director /
Chairman of the Audit
Committee /

Chairman of Nomination
and remuneration
committee

5/5

4/4

2/2

4. Mr.Niputh Jitprasonk

Independent Director /
Member of the Audit
Committee /

Member of Nomination
and remuneration
committee / Chairman of
corporate governance
and sustainable
development committee

5/5

4/4

2/2

- 2/2

5. Mr.Satit Chanjavanakul

Independent Director /
Member of the Audit
Committee /

Chairman of risk
management committee

5/5

4/4

2/2 -

6. Mr.Churat Chakarakul

Director/

Executive Director

/ Member of risk
management committee /
Member of corporate
governance and
sustainable development
committee

5/5

2/2 2/2

7. Mr.Nat
Sangarsongkogk

Director /

Executive Director /
Member of corporate
governance and
sustainable development
committee

5/5

- 2/2

8. Mr.Seri Sintuas

Executive Director

/ Member of risk
management committee /
Member of corporate
governance and
sustainable development
committee

2/2 2/2

9. Mr.Wanchai
Aranvutikul

Member of risk
management committee /

2/2 -
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Audit
o Committee
Position and
committee sustainable
development
committee

Director

Name of Directors

1.
Watcharakkawong

Mr.Taveesak

Chairman

0.10

0.10

2.

Mr. Chaiyan
Chakarakul

Director /

Chairman of the Executive
Board /

Nomination and
remuneration committee

0.10

0.10

Mr.Suvarn
Thansathit

Independent Director /
Chairman of the Audit
Committee /

Chairman of Nomination
and remuneration
committee

0.10

0.60

0.70

Mr.Niputh
Jitprasonk

Independent Director /
Member of the Audit
Committee /

Member of Nomination
and remuneration
committee / Chairman of
corporate governance and
sustainable development
committee

0.10

0.45

0.55

Mr.Satit
Chanjavanakul

Independent Director /
Member of the Audit
Committee /

Chairman of risk
management committee

0.10

0.45

0.55

Mr.Churat
Chakarakul

Director /

Executive Director

/ Member of risk
management committee /
Member of corporate
governance and
sustainable development
committee

0.10

0.1

Mr.Nat
Sangarsongkogk

Director /

Executive Director /
Member of corporate
governance and
sustainable development
committee

0.10

0.1

Mr.Seri Sintuas

Executive Director

/ Member of risk
management committee /
Member of corporate
governance and
sustainable development
committee

0.00

Mr.Wanchai
Aranvutikul

Member of risk
management committee /

0.00

Total

0.70

1.50

0.00

0.00

0.00

2.20

M r. Seri Sintuas has been nominated to be director from resolution of the board of director. He will be completely

directors by law after he has been approved by the annual general shareholder’'s meeting that will be held on April 28,
2021.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Details of the director’s remuneration for the year 2020 (Resolutions of the 2020 Annual General
Shareholder’s Meeting held on April 29, 2020) as follows :

1. Directors’ meeting allowance Baht 20,000 / Meeting
(No annual remuneration for directors)

2. Annual remuneration for Chairman of audit committee Baht 600,000 / year

3. Annual remuneration for Audit committee Baht 450,000 / person / year

(b) Remuneration for Executive Directors and management as of the end of 2020 was provided in the

form of salary, transportation allowance and bonuses, totaling 83.32 million Baht.
2. Other remuneration

- none

5) Personnel
The Company accords a high importance to its personnel and offers various benefits for employees, such as :
1. Housing loans, provided by the Government Housing Bank
2. Provident funds
3. Social security

4. Financial assistance for various events such as entering the monkhood, marriage, maternity leave, injury,

housing, natural disasters, or death of an employee or their immediate relatives and spouse.

Moreover, the Company values the importance of safety in the workplace. Consequently, the company has
organized annually fire drills and activities related to safety. Also, the company has promoted 5S activity in organization,

and arranged to check the elevator in company’s building monthly.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had a total of 643 employees (not including Directors and management),

categorized according to the major operations as follows.

‘ Full-time ‘ Part-time ‘ Part-time

Project Sites 170 - 170
Construction 226 70 296
Head Office 177 - 177

Total 573 70 643

In 2020, employees received remuneration in the form of salaries and bonuses totaling 294.68 million Baht.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Human Resources Development Policy

In today’s economic environment and intense competition, Lalin Property PCL. is determined to create quality
products under the slogan “Home Planted on the Roots of Goodwill.” Therefore, the company gives importance to
management and manufacturing resource preparations, which includes preparing people with sustainable competitive

potential.

Human resources development is considered one of the policies to which the company gives top priority. The
company has a systematic and continuous human resources development policy focused on potential development
for people to gain knowledge and skills consistent with their work responsibilities. A good attitude toward work and the
organization is fostered in conjunction with promoting values that form the foundation for the corporate culture. The
company is determined to develop human resources in all aspects. When employees start work, they are required to
pass a new employee orientation course with emphasis on service-minded people and direct understanding of work

roles for regular employees.

The company makes annual training plans by establishing courses that cover employee development on all
levels, e.g., knowledge management, strategic planning, etc. for management and operation employees, e.g., value
engineering, service excellence, etc., including basic courses to prepare employees for future effective work in various
positions. Moreover, the company has specifically arranged individual development programs for star employees in

order to further their knowledge and skills and allow them to perform work as company managers in the future.

Furthermore, the company organizes activities promoting attachments among employees and the organization
(Engagement) by fostering a good work atmosphere with safety and happiness. Closeness is established between
managers and employees through various activities, which are considered a means of building employee spirit and
morale, allow them to recognize their importance and value, and to foster work ethics and moral conscientiousness for

responsibility to work with care and attention to society.

Finally, the company gives importance to work-life balance. The company holds the view that good work-life quality

is a factor that will sustainably attract and retain skilled and knowledgeable employees in the organization.

Lalin Property PCL. believes that the company’s human resources development policy is an important foundation

that requires constant structured implementation in order to achieve sustainable growth for the organization.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Corporate Governance

1. Corporate Governance Policy

Lalin Property public company limited recognizes the essence of the good corporate governance as an important
factor to lead the company to have the efficient system and a foundation for the sustainable growth of the company.
The company abides by the principles of Good Corporate Governance for listed companies of the SET and SEC, and

has implemented the good corporate governance to be a practice guideline as follows:

1. Rights of Shareholders

The company always recognizes and respects the rights of the shareholders. These rights include the rights
to purchase/ sell or transfer the shares, profit sharing, sufficiently access to company’s information, attend the
meeting to vote at the shareholder’'s meeting.

The annual general meeting of shareholders shall be held annually within 4 months after the end of accounting
period. The notice of this meeting and the meeting agendas including the meeting document shall be sent to the
shareholders at least 21 days before the shareholders’ meeting and shall be advertised on the daily newspaper at
least 3 consecutive days. Moreover, the company shall have the notice of the meeting and the meeting document
posted on the website of the company (www.lalinproperty.com) not less than 30 days before the meeting. In this
case all shareholders shall have enough time to study and look through the entire meeting document and be well
preparing for the meeting. The Company encourages shareholders to attend in the shareholders’ meetings to fully
exercise their rights in delivering opinions and suggestions in participating in decision making on crucial issues,
and in inspecting the operations of the Board of Directors and Management.

The notice of meeting shall include information such as date, time and venue of the meeting, including location
map and all relevant supporting documents that shall be used for making decision at the meeting. Moreover, in
the notice of meeting, the company should also inform all shareholders the meeting rules, including the Articles
of Association on the Shareholder Meeting, meeting regulations and practice, procedures and documents to be
presented by shareholders before attending the meeting for both cases whereby the shareholders are attending the
meeting in person and by proxy. The proxy forms of type A, B and C are attached at the end of this notice letter as
for the convenience of the shareholder to appoint their proxy. Moreover, the postage is provided by the company
on the meeting date for the convenience of the proxy. For the shareholders who cannot attend the meeting, such
shareholders can appoint any independent director to vote on their behalf.

Furthermore, for the convenience of the shareholder meeting, the company has set the appropriate date,
time and venue of the meeting by not having the meeting on the bank holiday. The company also set the meeting
to be held during 8.00 a.m.- 4.00 p.m. and the venue to be located at the area whereby it is easy to access for all
shareholders. For the past meetings, the company has always chosen the venue which is nearby the BTS, MRT
station as for the convenience of the shareholders to commute. At the annual general meeting of shareholders,
the company shall open for registration at least 2 hours before the commencement of the meeting in order to
provide sufficient time for all shareholders to register and to hold welcome reception for shareholders attending
the meeting.

The company allows shareholders who join the meeting after the meeting has already commenced to vote
on agenda items that are in the process of being considered and do not yet have a resolution.

In the agenda of directors’ election, the company provides opportunities for shareholders to vote on individual
directors. The invitation letter will have accompanying documents with details of the directors nominated for election
including their education and working experience backgrounds, shareholding in the company, and the record of
their meeting attendance in the passing year. Shareholders; therefore, have sufficient information to support their
consideration in voting.

At each shareholder meeting, the company shall give all shareholders equal opportunity to present their
opinions and suggestion, including raise questions at the end of each agenda. Moreover, the company shall provide
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

sufficient time for further discussion whereby the chairman of the meeting, directors and the management shall
equally pay attention to every question and give the clear answers. A clear and complete minute shall be recorded
with total votes of each agenda. Company has invited auditors from C.W.W.P Company Limited to observe the
meeting and check transparency of voting summary every time. The company issued and submitted the minutes
of the meeting to Stock Exchange of Thailand and Ministry of Commerce within 14 days as specified by law, and
posted on company’s website for interested shareholders to read and examine the information.

At the 2020 annual general meeting of shareholders, All 7 directors are attending the meeting. Chairman,
Chairman of the Audit Committee, Managing Director, C.F.O. and high level management from each important
department whereby these people are required to attend the meeting in order to answer the inquiries of the
shareholders.

2. Equal Treatment to Shareholders

The company has treated all shareholders equally and fairly no matter the shareholder is the executive
director or non-executive director or has the alien nationality. The Company prepares the shareholders’ meeting
documents in both Thai and English.

The company offers the opportunity for shareholders who cannot attend the meeting in person by letting them
appoint other persons to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. When sending out the notice of meeting,
the company shall have the proxy form attached with the letter every time. Such shareholders can determine their
voting direction and appoint at least 1 person to be their proxy. Moreover, the company has provided the postage
at the registration area in front of the meeting room for the convenience of the proxy in case they have not affix the
postage.

For this annual general meeting of shareholders, after the details of each agenda have been explained
then the shareholders will be given equal opportunity to raise the questions and present their opinions to the
meeting. The voting ballots shall be distributed to shareholders attending the meeting for voting especially for the
disapproved votes or abstained votes. Moreover, the company has separated each agenda from one another so
that the shareholders can vote each agenda independently, for example, agenda on the election of directors. For
this agenda, the shareholders can vote for directors individually and then the voting ballots shall be collected from
all shareholders.

The company also sets the policy that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees shall not use the material
internal information of the company that has not been disclosed to the public for their own or other benefits, including
buying/ selling securities of the company. The company has a management procedure for the case whereby the
management uses the internal information of the company for their own or other benefits. The details of procedures
are as follows:

+ Inform the directors and the management their obligation to report on their holding securities including
those securities held by their partners and minors and report on the changes in securities investment
specified under Section 39 and the Determination of Punishment under Section 275 of the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

+ Circulate the memo to Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees informing that Directors, Executive,
Staffs, and Employees who have received the material internal information that may effect on the prices
of the securities, shall avoid or temporarily stop the purchase/ sale of the company’s securities for
1 month. Moreover, they shall not disclose material information to other persons before the financial
statement or such internal information has been disclosed to the public. In order to monitor and examine
the abovementioned operation, the company has set the policy that the management shall report the
holding securities and changes in securities as specified under Section 59 to the Board of Directors.

*  The company specifies that each director has duty to report transaction of buy and sell of company’s
share to the board of director.

« Failure to follow the rules above may result in disciplinary action by the company. This may range from

a verbal warning, a written warning, probation and all the way up to termination of employment.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

3. Roles of Stakeholders

The company is aware of the rights of each group of stakeholders, either internal stakeholders or external
stakeholders e.g. customers, shareholders, competitors, related government agencies and employees, including
social and environmental responsibilities. The company also encourages the cooperation between the company

and the stakeholders in order to promote the sustainable growth of the company in a long term. The details are

shown as follows

° Customers :

1.

The company has emphasized on promoting the satisfaction of the customers by offering customers with
good quality products and great service to be accordance with our determination “to build the house
with good willingness”.

The company has emphasized on developing the quality of the products. As such, the product research
and development unit has been established in order to study the requirements of the customers and
continuously develop quality of products.

The company has set the quality control for the houses built by the contractor. The inspection shall
be conducted by the supervisor, head of supervisor, engineers and project manager, respectively.
Moreover, to ensure the quality of the house, the company has set the centralized quality control unit to
inspect the quality of the houses.

To enhance the efficiency of the after sale service, the company has set the Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) unit to resolve any problems of the customers and organize the events of each
project of the company.

The company has communicated with the customers via the website of the company and the quarterly

newsletter to update the news and other activities to customers.

° Shareholders :

1.

The company determines to be a good representative of the shareholders by considering a good return
and maximizing long term shareholder’s wealth.

The company has communicated with the shareholders via the website of the company to update the
news of the company e.g. details and supporting document of the shareholder meeting, etc.

The company is welcomed any inquiries or questions raised by the shareholders and investors via the

telephone or at the meeting.

° Creditors :

1.

The company complies with the terms of loans and obligations to its creditors including business creditors,
financial institutes, and company’s bondholders.

The company always carefully considers and manages its risks in doing business. Thus, company is only
a few companies in property development sector that has never been NPLs with any financial institutes

during Asian financial crisis in 1997

e  Trading partners :

1.

The company continuously promotes the cooperation and maintains good relationship with their trading
partners e.g cooperating with the partners in producing the roof in the specific color of the company and
cooperating with the commercial banks to offer a special interest rate to the customers of the company.
The company has treated the partners fairly and appropriately under the condition and trade agreement.
The company has always made the payment to the partners on time every week.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Competitors :

1.

The company has operated under the competitive rules. As such, the company shall not destroy the
reputation of the competitors with some negative accusation.
The company operates its business with professional. There is no violation of competitor confidentiality

or deception to get the confidential information of the competitors. As for now the company has no

disputes with their competitors.

Employees :

1.

The company believes that employees are valuable assets and treats all employees equally and fairly
by offering the fair and appropriate remunerations and fringe benefits.

The company offers several fringe benefits to employees, for example, employee home loans with the
Government Housing Bank, Retirement Mutual Funds, health insurance card to all employees, including
some contribution money in the events of ordination, marriage, maternity, illness, disaster to your home
and funeral of the parents, child, partner or employee.

The company has continuously provided employees with training. The company shall study the
requirement and develop the annual training plan to employees in all level to enhance their knowledge
and capabilities. Apart from the annual training plan designed to employees in all levels, the company
has specially designed the individual development program for the high potential employees (star)
to enhance their knowledge and capabilities to a higher level and to become the management in the
future. All new employees must pass the orientation course. Employees will be trained on the Company’s
corporate governance principles, business morals and employee ethics to ensure that all employees
understand practice guidelines such as the anti-corruption policy and practice guidelines, awareness of
quality, natural resources and environment management, compliance with intellectual property laws and
complaint channels when wrongdoing is found, etc. (Details of training courses in recent year disclosed
in 56-1 report section Employee)

The company has emphasized on environment and safety issues in the workplace by organizing regular
fire drills, activities related to safety, 5S, and arranging for monthly elevator maintenance.

The company has remuneration policy related with company’s performance in each year. Also,

remuneration policy that related with company’s performance in long term such as ESOP program and

Balanced Scorecard.

Mass Medium :

1.

The company has emphasized on disclosure company’s information to mass medium; therefore, public
can receive the correct and timely information. The company also organizes various projects in order
to keep good relationship with mass medium such as arranging a company’s site visit and cooperating

in several social activities.

Community and Social :

1.

The company is responsible for the environment, social and community. Therefore, the company has
regularly involved in several social activities, such as, offering some contributions to disaster victims,
giving out the scholarships to students every year, etc. Some of activities in 2020 are revealed under

“Corporate social responsibility”section in Company’s 56-1 report.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

The Company is always aware of responsibility to the environment and operates the business with
consideration given to environment conservation beginning from the process of designing homes, selecting
and using environmentally-friendly materials, including the use of technology to reduce use of natural resources
including strict actions in various areas in the construction process to reduce potential impact on the environment
by complying with environmental laws such as by designing wastewater treatment systems in the household and
having treatment in a collective wastewater treatment tank to ensure that water quality is suitable before draining
water from housing projects (for more environmental information, see “Corporate Social Responsibility” in the
Company’s Report 56-1). To have confidence in employee knowledge and understanding of environmental topics,
new environment conservation technologies and build good awareness of the environment, the Company organizes
annual training on topics concerning the environment for company employees (See information on training in the
past year under “Personnel” in the Company’s Report 56-1).

In case shareholders, employees, and stakeholders didn’t received fair treatment from the company, the
company has established a channel for them to contact, fle complaints or provide information through the internal
audit department at the address below, in order to verify information, investigate the truth and proceed according
to the Company’s procedures and report to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors if any crucial issues

found.

Internal Audit Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited (Building 2)
222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 310 Fax: 0-2377-9656

For employees, the Company has management measures and processes concerning reports on clues and
mechanisms for protecting informants by allowing channels for communicating with the head of the internal audit
unit without revealing the informant. If employees find wrongdoing, corruption or breaches of the organization’s
ethics, the Company will bring the aforementioned complaint into the consideration process by appointing a
committee to investigate facts. If wrongdoing is found, the issue will be brought to a committee on consideration
of punishments, which will decide on punishments based on security of wrongdoing. The Company has a process
for protecting informants by keeping informant information and names secret along with revealing only necessary
information to the committee considering the wrongdoing or the assigned persons involved in order to reassure
complainants.

Disclosure and Transparency

The company has emphasized on equally disclosing the correct and transparent material information of the
company, including the financial statement and non-financial information to investors and related persons in a timely
manner. The company has set up one unit to be responsible for the investor relations. Its responsibility includes
communicating with the investors and related persons through several communication channels e.g. news release
via the Stock Exchange of Thailand, performance press release to the analyst, press release, telephone, e-mail
and website of the company.

The Investor Relations department will be responsible for disclosing important information and answering
queries to investors. Interested investors can view company’s financial statement as well as importance operating
performance from the Company’s website at www.lalinproperty.com or contact Investor Relations department for
more information at:

Investor Relations Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited

222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 202, 204 Fax: 0-2377-9656

E-mail : natthakrit.p@lalinproperty.com, akepol.r@lalinproperty.com
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

In the annual report, the company shall report the responsibilities of the Board towards the financial report
along with the auditor’s report, including the roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Executive Committee. This includes the number of the meeting and the number of attendance by each director
in the past year. Moreover, the company should disclose the remunerations (including those in money term and
other benefits) of the directors, Audit Committee and the management of the company in the annual report and
the report 56-1.

The Company'’s board of directors has set policy concerning directors’ stake holding reports by stipulating
the requirement for reports on the stock holdings of directors, spouses and children who have not reached legal
age on a regular basis every year. Policy has also been set for conducting related transactions whereby various
terms and conditions have to be set based on the characteristics of normal operations if related transactions are
conducted at market prices, which can be compared with prices occurring with outside parties. Thus, the Audit
Committee or the Company’s auditor or an independent expert will have to give consideration, examine and render
an opinion on the reasonability of conducting the transaction. Related transactions must be compliant with the laws
governing securities and the stock market as well as the regulations, notifications, directives or specifications of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including compliance with specifications involving the disclosure of information
about related transactions and the acquisition or sales of the main assets of the Company or its subsidiaries.

In 2020, the Company attended Opportunity day held by SET to present company’s operation and performance
in every quarter. Also, the Company disclosed information to analysts by analyst meeting and company visit; as
well as, published news by publication and sending press releases to journalists regularly. In 2020, Company held
a press conference to present company’s operating result for one time, and sent press releases about operating

result for 4 times.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors

5.1 Structure of the Board

The Board of Directors comprises of persons with good knowledge, capabilities and experience in various
areas. The Board is responsible for setting the vision, mission; and approval of the business direction, policy,
strategy and goal of the company in order for the management to use as a guideline in developing the annual
business plan, supporting plan and budget. The key performance indicators (KPIs) system is used to monitor the
performance. In 2020, the Board of Directors considered, reviewed and approved the Company’s vision, missions,
business morals, ethics and strategies in order or executives and employees to have purposes in the same direction
in addition to monitoring and assessing performance to ensure the management’'s compliance with set business
morals and ethics.

To clearly separate roles and duties, the Board of Directors designated clear roles, authority, duties and
responsibilities for the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee, the Recruitment and
Remuneration Consideration Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Corporate Governance and
Sustainable Development Committee and the Managing Director.

The Board of Directors comprises of 7 persons. Of that amount, 3 of them are the directors who are the
management and another 4 are not the management. Of those 4 directors who are not the management, 3 of
them are the independent directors and in the Audit Committee whereby this figure is more than one-third of total
directors, this gives them the authority in examining the operations of the company and balancing the power of
other directors. Moreover, the Chairman of the Board shall not be the same person as the managing director as
there should be a segregation of duties whereby the governance policy setting and the day-to-day operation shall
be separated from each other.

Independent directors are independent from the Company’s management and major shareholders while
having no business relationships which may cause lack of independent audits and expressions of opinion. The
Company’s three independent directors are completely qualified by the Company’s definition of independent
directors, which are equal to independent director qualifications specified by the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Concerning the Board of Directors’ structure, the Board of Directors specified qualifications of directors wanted
for recruitment by appointing three directors to the Recruitment and Remuneration Consideration Committee in
order to consider and recruit directors with criteria to consider qualifications in various areas including suitability in
the areas of qualifications, experience and expertise to have board diversity from many professions. The Board of
Directors prioritizes skilled, experienced and professional individuals with knowledge, ability and expertise in areas
that benefit the business without limiting or discriminating genders and ethnicities or any differences. Moreover,
the Board of Directors considers necessity for components missing from the Board of Directors’ structure by
considering the skill matrix in order to combine knowledge and abilities beneficial for the Company’s operations
in order for directors to have sufficient time for performing duties as a director. The Board of Directors’ Charter
requires directors to not hold director positions in more than three listed companies simultaneously. Currently, no
director reports being a director in more than three listed companies at the same time.

Under the Item 15 of the company regulation, it is stated that one-third of total directors, whereby currently
there are 7 directors, shall be released from the post at the annual general meeting of shareholders. Each director
has a term of 3-4 years. After the term is reached, the Board shall hold a meeting to consider the person with
qualification to be the director in order to propose to the shareholder meeting. The Board can reelect the director
who is released from the post back to be the director.

The company has prepared documents and described the overall image of the company’s business, along
with other information related to the company’s business for newly appointed directors to ensure that appointed

directors understand the company’s business.
5.2 Sub Committee

The Company created five sub-committees consisting of the Audit Committee, the Recruitment and Remuneration
Consideration Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Corporate Governance and Sustainable Development
Committee and the Executive Committee to monitor work in various area for greater efficiency. Sub-committees
make regular reports to the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors clearly designated authority, duties and

responsibilities of each sub-committee disclosed in the management section under the topic of “Sub-committees”.

5.3 Roles, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

5.3.1 The Board of Directors is under obligation to manage the Company in compliance with laws, objectives,
regulations and decisions of shareholder meetings by considering, approving and specifying visions,
missions, strategies, business goals and work directions to make executives and employees have the
same purpose. IN 2020, the Board of Directors set business goals, reviewed visions, missions and
strategies to be appropriate and monitors implementation of strategies specified by the Company.

5.3.2 The Board of Directors has prepared and approved the Company’s corporate governance policy, the
business morals policy, the ethics handbook for company directors, executives and employees in writing
in addition to creating the Corporate Governance and Sustainable Development Committee to review
and monitor compliance with policies along with summarizing reports to the Board of Directors on a
bi-annual basis. In 2020, the Board of Directors considered and reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance principles to be more appropriate at Board of Directors Meeting No. 5/2563. The Board of
Directors promotes compliance with business morals and the ethics handbook by requiring directors,
executives and employees to comply with ethics for company directors, executives and employees
along with communicating guidelines and monitoring compliance with ethics through channels and
guidelines such as new employee orientations, communication of practice guidelines to all employees
via e-mail, the Company’s journal and monitoring through work unit supervisors. Moreover, the Company
designated internal audit units to monitor and check compliance with the ethics handbook for directors,
executives and employees in addition to reporting and summarizing results for the Audit Committee in
the internal audit report.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

5.3.3 The Board of Directors made the risk management policy by considering the Company’s risks in various
areas and specifying risk prevention and management measures. The Board of Directors created
the Risk Management Committee to support and monitor risk management processes effectively by
presenting reports to the Board of Directors

5.3.4 The Board of Directors has regular duties and responsibilities to shareholders, maintains the interests
of shareholders and discloses data with accuracy, completeness, standards and transparency.

5.3.5 The Board of Directors has the authority to appoint a number of directors as directors in sub-committees
to perform any action except on topics where the law requires a decision from shareholder meetings.

5.3.6 On issues where directors or individuals may be in conflict, stakeholders or have any conflicts of interest
with the Company, stakeholder directors have no right to vote on that issue.

5.3.7 Board of Directors meetings are held once in three months.

5.3.8 The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders is held four months after the end of the Company’s fiscal
year.

5.3.9 Members of the Board of Directors are prohibited from engaging in businesses or becoming partners
or shareholders in other juristic persons that have the same conditions and are in competition with the
Company’s business unless members of the Board of Directors notifies the shareholder meeting before
a decision to appoint that member of the Board.

5.4 The Board of Directors Meeting

The company’s board of directors regularly organizes meetings. The chairman of the board promotes thorough
consideration and sufficient time allocation for each meeting. In preparing meeting agendas, the company offers
opportunities for directors to propose meeting agendas with the Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
as the people in charge of granting approval for meeting order and agendas. Hence, the corporate secretary
will coordinate with all directors and schedule meetings in advance throughout the entire year, sending meeting
invitations, agendas and minutes to the meetings to the company’s board of directors at least seven business
days before every meeting so that directors have time to study the information before each meeting. Furthermore,
directors are charged with attending the company’s board of directors’ meeting every time unless necessity
dictates otherwise. The minimum meeting quorum when the board of directors passes a resolution requires that
at least two-thirds of all directors be present.

Furthermore, the company offers opportunities for independent directors to organize their own meetings and/
or participate in a meeting with the internal auditor and/or with the company’s auditor without the presence of the
management to discuss any problems of interest each year, and fully at will. In 2020, there is a meeting between
independent directors and with company’s auditors without management for one time.

Each meeting is recorded in writing, and the board of directors is required to certify each of the aforementioned
minutes to the meeting every time in the subsequent meetings. In 2020, the company’s board of directors
organized a total of five meetings, four of which are meetings according to normal agendas, while another meeting
was organized near the end of the year in order to jointly evaluate the year’s performance along with making
considerations, reviews and setting visions or missions of the company in a period of 3-5 years, including making
approvals for the company’s business direction, policies, strategies and goals for the following year. Hence, the

details of attendance for each director are disclosed in the heading Directors and Executives’ Remunerations

5.5 Self-assessment of the Board of director

The Company has policy to make arrangements for the Company’s board of directors to have annual self-
performance evaluations, so the board of directors can consider their work performance and problems together.
Thus, the performance results can be used in consideration of corrections and improvements in the work of the
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board of directors. Evaluations are both individual and collective for the entire board by using the evaluation forms
recommended by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The assessment form on the performance of the Company’s
board of director contains content for evaluation covering the following six aspects of work performance: (1)
Structure and qualifications of directors; (2) Roles duties and responsibilities of directors; (3) Board of directors’
meetings; (4) Performance of duties by directors; (5) relationships with management and (6) personal development
of directors and executives. And in assessment forms for individual members of the Board of Directors have
assessment content covering three topics consisting of: (1) director knowledge, expertise and self-improvement;
(2) effective performance of duties by the Board of Directors; (3) transparency in accountable operations; (4) time
dedication and meeting attendance.

The process of assessing performance of directors as a committee and as individuals begins in November.
The Company Secretary sends Board of Director performance assessment forms to every director in order to assess
annual performance of committees and individuals. After assessment is complete, directors send assessment forms
back to the Company Secretary to collect assessment scores on each topic. Performance is summarized, analyzed
and presented to the Board of Directors meeting for consideration. In 2020, performance assessment results were
presented to Board of Directors Meeting No. 5/2563. Assessment criteria are calculated by percentage. Scores
higher than 85% = Outstanding. Scores at 75-85% = Excellent. Scores at 65-75% = Good. Scores at 55-65% =

Adequate and scores lower than 55% = Needs Improvement.

5.6 Self-assessment of sub-committees

In self-assessments by sub-committees, the Board of Directors requires performance assessments of sub-
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Recruitment and Remuneration Consideration Committee, the
Risk Management Committee and the Corporate Governance & Sustainable Development Committee. Directors
are assessed in separate committees with the same assessment content and processes as Board of Directors
assessments. The Secretaries of each committee compile assessment results to send to the Company Secretary
in order to summarize and present results to the Board of Directors meeting.

5.7 Remunerations

The remunerations of the Board are cautiously considered and set by the Board Meeting whereby these
remunerations are compared to those set by the same industry. The proposed remunerations shall be approved
at the shareholder meeting. As for the remunerations of 2020, the directors had the meeting allowances of THB
20,000 per meeting (No annual remuneration). The chairman of audit committee had the annual remunerations
of THB 600,000, and the member of audit committee had the annual remunerations of THB 450,000 per person.
Sub-committees didn’t receive remunerations. For the remunerations of the management, the management shall
receive the salary and bonus based on the performance of the company and their individual performance. Details
of the remunerations of the Management shall be disclosed and presented under the Remunerations of Directors
and Management.

5.8 Development of Directors and the Management

The Company supports and sends the Company’s directors to participate in training courses offered by
the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) on a continual basis in order to build credibility with shareholders
and investors in general that directors have knowledge and understanding about their performance of duties as
directors based on the principles of good governance. Thus, if new directors are appointed, the Company will
provide them with orientation. The Company’s board of directors has appointed a Company Secretary as the person
who summarizes various information for new directors, so they can understand the business overview, including
the Company’s structure and business operations. In addition, new directors are invited to visit the operations in
order to gain greater understanding about the Company’s business operations.

As for executives, the Company has policy for executive development by sending them to further their
educations in master’s degree courses (MBA) and Mini-MBA courses, etc.

The Board of Directors supports directors to be trained and attend seminars to increase work knowledge
continually. The Company sent Mr. Churat Chakarakul, Company’s Director, to attend Risk Management Program
for Corporate Leader (RCL) Program arranged by Thai Institute of Director (IOD).
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Complied results

The Company completely complies with the corporate governance principle of the Stock Exchange of Thailand

and the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission except on the following topics:

(1)  The Chairman is not an independent director because the Company remains dependent on the
Chairman’s business knowledge, ability and experience, which benefit the Company. Nevertheless,
the Board of Directors’ composition is properly balanced and operations are governed by the Board

of Directors.

(2) The Company’s independent directors have held positions for more than nine years because each of
the Company’s independent directors possess knowledge, ability, experience and dedication to work.
The independent directors audited the Company and provided highly beneficial recommendations for
the Company throughout the independent directors’ terms. The Company’s independent directors are
reputable persons and has well knowledge and experiences. The board of director has considered
and ensured that he can give an independent opinion and meet all qualification standard. Also, he has

well performance in serving as company’s independent directors in the past.

Sub-Committees

The Company's board committee comprises 5 committees, the Audit Committee, Nomination and remuneration
committee, Risk management committee, Corporate governance and sustainable development committee, and

Executive Committee, with details of names and scope of responsibilities as well as authorities presented below.

2.1) The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises 3 members as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
3. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee

All of the audit committee above has fully qualifications determined by the Securities and stock Exchange
Act, and has adequate expertise and experience to review creditability of the financial reports. In 2020 the audit
committee convened a total of 4 meetings. Ms. Prapasri Kittichalermliat, Internal audit Manager, serves as audit

committee secretary

Definition of an Independent Director

An independent director means a director who does not own a business or have any work related to the
company that will affect the director’s independent decisions. Hence, an independent director is required to
meeting the following qualifications:

1. A share holding of no more than one percent of the total number of issued shares entitled to vote of the
company; not a major shareholder or a person with directing authority in the company. Furthermore, the
shares of persons related to each respective independent director are also to be included.

2. s notor was not a director who participated in work management, employee, worker, salaried consultant,
person of the company with directing authority, major shareholder, or of a person of the company with
directing authority, unless removed from the aforementioned status for at least two years.

3. Nota person related by blood or legal registration as a father, mother, spouse, sibling, offspring, including
spouse of offspring, of other directors, executives, major shareholders, person with directing authority
or person nominated as a director, executive, or person with directing authority in the company.

4. Does not or never has had business relations with the company, the company’s major shareholders or
person with directing authority of the requester in a manner that could obstruct the director’s independent
judgment, along with not being or had not been a significant shareholder, or a person with directing
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authority of any person who has business relations with the company, the company’s major shareholder
or person with directing authority unless removed from the aforementioned status by at least two years.
Is not and never has been a company auditor, major shareholder or person with directing authority, and
is not a significant shareholder, person with directing authority, or partner with the audit office where
the company’s auditor or person with directing authority in the company, unless removed from the
aforementioned status for at least two years.

Is not or never has been a service provider in any profession, which includes legal consultation services
or financial consultation, that received a services from the company amounting to more than two million
baht per year from the company, the company’s major shareholders, or persons with directing authority,
and cannot be a significant shareholder, person with directing authority or partnership of the service
provider of the aforementioned professions unless removed from the aforementioned position for at
least two years.

Not a director appointed as a proxy for a company director, major shareholder or shareholder who is
involved with a major shareholder of the company.

Not engaged in the same business or in significant competition with the company’s business, or not a
significant partner in a partnership or a director participating in work management, employee, worker,
regularly salaried consultant, or a person who holds more than one percent of all shares with voting
privileges of another company operating in the same business and in significant competition with the
company’s business.

No other attributes preventing the director from rendering independent decisions about the company’s

performance.

Components and Appointment of the Audit Committee

The company’s board of directors and/or meeting of shareholders will appoint at least three people to form

the Audit Committee. Appointees are to be fully qualified in compliance with notifications by the Securities and

Exchange Commission and are to hold a 2-year term of office for each appointment.

Scope of Roles, Authority, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The audit committee of the company has the scope of duties and responsibilities to the Board of Directors on the

following matters:

1.
2.
3.

To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.
To consider approval for appointments, transfers and terminating employment of internal auditors.
To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable
and efficient, to determine an internal audit unit's independence, as well as to approve the appointment,
transfer and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit.
To review the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations,
and the laws relating to the Company’s business.
To consider selecting, nominating and terminating employment of company auditors; in addition to attending
at least one meeting with certified public accountants without participation from the management per year.
To consider the related transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure
that they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are presented accurately
and comprehensively.
To report the audit committee’s operation to the board of directors at least once a quarter.
To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit committee’s report which must be
signed by the audit committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information:
(a) An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report,
(b) An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system,
(c) Anopinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations,
or the laws relating to the Company’s business,
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9.

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

(d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,

(e) An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,

(f)  The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each
committee member,

(g) Anopinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of duties
in accordance with the charter, and

(h) Other transactions which, according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be known to the
shareholders and general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned
by the Company’s board of directors; and

To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, with the approval of the

audit committee.

2.2) The Executive Committee
In 2020 the Executive Committee convened a total of 94 meetings and as of December 31, 2020 had 4
Directors, as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Executive Chairman
2. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Executive Director
3. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Executive Director
4. Mr. Seri Sintuas Executive Director

Components and Appointment of the Executive Board

The company’s board of directors will appoint executive board by selecting a number of people from the

company'’s directors.

Scope of Roles, Authority, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Executive Committee

1.

7.

The Executive Committee is invested with the authority to carry out operations in accordance with the
policies of the Board of Directors, within the framework of the law and the Company Articles of Association.
Exceptions are made for conditions required by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholders’ Meeting
resolutions.

The authority to approve loans or other borrowings from financial institutions and/or the issue of financial
debt instruments and/or any other forms of financial promissory notes to general investors, specific
investors and institutional investors. This includes authorization to arrange settlements or payments for
the normal business operations of the Company, such as investment outlays, or for the purchase of land
or land with constructions and other activities. The limit for each transaction is determined at a maximum
of 700 million Baht, or an equivalent amount, or as assigned by the Board of Directors

Authority to appoint and remove Company officers from designations not above the level of Managing
Director

Authority to prepare, propose and determine policies, business direction and strategies for the Company
to the Board of Directors

Perform duties related to the general administration of the Company, including the determination of the
organizational structure and management, covering all details pertaining to the selection, training, hiring
and removal of Company employees.

Formulate business plans; facilitate administrative activities; approve the annual budget for business
operations and the annual expenditure budgets; carry out operations in accordance with the business
plans and business strategies to complement the policies and business direction presented to the
Board of Directors

Perform other duties as assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The delegation of authority to the Executive Committee requires that transactions in which Executive Directors

or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest, or any other form of conflict of interest

with the Company or its subsidiaries, obligate the said Executive Director to refrain from exercising or casting votes
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

concerning the matter in question. The authorization of transactions with a possible conflict of transaction must be
carried out in compliance with the Announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand concerning the guidelines,

method and disclosure of listed company related transactions.
2.3) The Nomination and remuneration committee

In 2020 the Nomination and remuneration Committee convened a total of 2 meetings and as of December
31, 2020 had 3 Directors, as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Chairman of the Nomination and remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul The Nomination and remuneration Director

3. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk The Nomination and remuneration Director

Components and Appointment of the Nomination and remuneration committee

The Board of Directors appoints the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. More than half of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee is composed of independent directors and the Chairman of the Committee is required

to be an independent director.

Scope of Roles, Authority, Duties, and Responsibilities of the nomination and remuneration committee

1. Make policies on director recruitment and remuneration for company directors, the Chief Executive Officer,
the Managing Director, and the Executive Committee to present to the Board of Directors for approval.

2. Recruitment of individuals suitable and beneficial for the Company’s business to become new directors
and/or replace directors whose terms are over and/or when a position becomes vacant in order to present
individuals to the Board of Directors for consideration of approval.

3. Consider the director names sent by shareholders in advance before presenting names to the Board
of Directors for consideration.

4. Consider the qualifications of independent directors to ensure independence meeting criteria prescribed
by the Company.

5. Consider setting appropriate monetary and non-monetary remuneration for the Board of Directors based
on duties and responsibilities by presenting information to the Board of Directors for consideration of
approval before requesting approval from the shareholder meeting.

6. Consider plans for improving knowledge of current and new directors to be suitable and consistent with
roles and duties of positions including roles and duties of the Board of Directors and developments
important for the Company’s business.

7. Perform any other work concerning recruitment and remuneration setting assigned by the Board of
Directors.

2.4) The Risk management committee

In 2020 the risk management committee convened a total of 2 meetings and as of December 31, 2020 had

4 Directors, as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Chairman of the Risk management committee
2. Mr. Churat Chakarakull The Risk management Director

3. Mr. Seri Sintuas The Risk management Director

4. Mr. Wanchai Aranvutikul The Risk management Director
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Components and Appointment of the Nomination and remuneration committee

The Board of Directors appoints the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Committee consists
of independent directors and/or executive directors and/or company executives in order to be able to consider
risks in various areas effectively.

Scope of Roles, Authority, Duties, and Responsibilities of the risk management committee

1. Set risk management policies, guidelines and frameworks to present to the Board of Directors for

consideration of approval.

2. Advise the Board of Directors and the management on risk management at the organization level with

coverage of the following risks:
* Business & Strategic Risks
*  Operational Risks
»  Financial Risks
*  Market Risks
» Social and Environmental Risks
*  Corruption & Fraud Risks
* Unforeseen Risks
*  Compliance Risks

3. Study, analyze and assess risks and potential trends with internal and external impact on the Company
by managing risks in compliance with policies and goals approved by the Board of Directors, leading to

practices in order to cover potential organization-wide risk factors of the Company’s business operations.

4. Specify corrective guidelines to mitigate risks to be at acceptable levels or manage risks to be at the

lowest level possible.

5. The Risk Management Committee has the authority to invite executives or associated persons to attend

meetings to provide more explanations and information.

6. Perform any other work related to risk management assigned by the Board of Directors.
2.5) The Corporate governance and sustainable development committee

In 2020 the corporate governance and sustainable development committee convened a total of 2 meetings

and as of December 31, 2020 had 4 Directors, as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Chairman of the corporate governance and sustainable development committee
2. Mr. Churat Chakarakull The corporate governance and sustainable development Director

3. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk The corporate governance and sustainable development Director

4. Mr. Seri Sintuas The corporate governance and sustainable development Director

Components and Appointment of the corporate governance and sustainable development committee

The Board of Directors appoints Corporate Governance and Sustainable Development directors by selecting
and appointing directors from company directors to govern the Company’s business. (Mr.Seri Sintuas has been
nominated to be director from resolution of the board of director; currently is on process to be approved by the

Annual general shareholder meeting which will be held on April 28, 2021)
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Scope of Roles, Authority, Duties, and Responsibilities of the corporate governance and sustainable de-
velopment committee

1.

Set policies, criteria and codes of conduct of the Company’s corporate governance and sustainable
development processes by presenting policies, criteria and codes of conduct to the Board of Directors
for consideration.

Govern operations of directors and the management in compliance with corporate governance principles
of governing institutions such as the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Develop and prepare corporate governance plans based on principles of corporate governance and
sustainable development along with modifying corporate governance guidelines and principles to be
suitable for the Company.

Review the director handbook to be suitable for the Company’s business and consider regulations,
scopes of authority and duty of the Board of Directors and sub-committees.

Consider and modify business moral and ethical requirements of directors, executives and executives
to present to the Board of Directors.

Report on the Company’s corporate governance and sustainable development along with providing
opinions on practice guidelines and recommendations to make appropriate corrections and modifications
for the Board of Directors.

Support a culture of corporate governance to be understood by executives and employees at every
level with practical results.

The Corporate Governance and Sustainable Development Committee has the authority to invite executives
or associated persons to attend meetings to provide more explanations and information.

Perform any other work related to corporate governance and sustainable development assigned by the

Board of Directors.

3) Selection of Directors and Executives

Appointment and removal of Company Directors

1.

In the appointment and removal of Company directors, Company directors are elected by the shareholders’
meeting whereby the appointment of directors must be approved by shareholders’ meeting with no
less than half of the total number of votes cast by shareholders in attendance and entitled to vote at the
meeting. The shareholders are entitled to exercise their rights to vote on an individual basis.
The Shareholders’ Meeting nominates Directors according to the guidelines and method as follows:
(1) Each Shareholder has voting rights of one vote per share
(2) Each Shareholder will have a total number of votes determined as per Item (1) to nominate one
or several persons as Directors. However, the shares may not be divided in favour of a particular
individual
(3) Individuals receiving the highest votes in descending order will be appointed as Directors
according to the number of Directors required, or to be voted in. In the event that there is a tie,
but the appointment of both candidates would exceed the number of Directors required or to be
voted in, the Chairman of the Meeting will cast the deciding vote.
At each Annual Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, a total of 1 in 3 of the number of Directors is required
to vacate their posts. If the number of Directors is not divisible by three, the figure closest to 1in 3 is to
be used. In the first and second years following the registration of the Company, the Directors to vacate
their posts will be decided by a lottery system. In successive years, the longest serving Directors will
be obliged to vacate their posts first.
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4)

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

4. In addition to completion of tenure, a Director may be considered to complete their terms due to
1) Death

2)

3) Lack of qualifications or possession of prohibited qualities as specified by the Public Companies Act
4)

(

( Resignation

(

( The Shareholders’ Meeting passes a resolution seeking the removal of a Director. A vote of not

less than 3 in 4 of the number of shares present and eligible for voting at the Meeting, representing

at least half of the votes in attendance and eligible to vote at the Meeting, is required

5. Any Director intending to resign must submit their formal resignation to the Company. The resignation
becomes effective upon the date the resignation document reaches the Company.

Nomination of Executive Directors

Executive Directors and management are nominated by the Meetings of the Board of Directors and are
reviewed by the Nominations Committee. The Board of Directors considers candidates based on their qualifications,
knowledge, capabilities and relevant working experience. This includes qualifications as specified by Measure 68
of the Public Limited Companies Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992) and the relevant Announcements of the Securities

and Exchange Commission. This is in the interests of ensuring the Company’s efficient operations.

Insider information controls

The Company has a policy forbidding Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees from using significant
insider information about the Company that has not yet been disclosed for the benefit of others, including the
trading of Company securities. The measures regarding executives’ use of insider information for personal gain
is outlined as follows.

(1)  Management in the various departments is clearly informed of their obligation to report their equity stake
in the Company; this also applies to their spouses and children who are minors. Changes in equity
ownership are likewise required to be reported, in accordance with Measure 59 and penalty Measure
275 of the Securities and Stock Exchange Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)

(2) Documentation is circulated to ensure that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees are informed
that Directors, Executive, Staffs, and Employees who access to significant insider information which
has the potential to impact changes in the price of the Company’s securities are advised to refrain
from trading in the Company’s shares for a period of 1 month. Such information is not permitted to be
disclosed to other parties prior to the disclosure to the general public of the financial statements or the
information in question. In order to control and monitor compliance in this regard.

(3) The company specifies that each director has duty to report transaction of buy and sell of company’s
share to the board of director by informing thru company secretary.

(4) Failure to follow the rules above may result in disciplinary action by the company. This may range from

a verbal warning, a written warning, probation and all the way up to termination of employment.

Policy on Reporting Asset Holdings

The Company set policy and notified every director and executive concerning awareness of the obligation to
report personal assets held by the directors, spouses and children who have not reached majority in addition to
notifying every director and executive of the obligation to prepare reports on asset holdings and changes in asset
holdings pursuant to Article 59 whenever executives and directors purchase, sell, transfer or accept transfers
of assets within three business days after the date of the asset purchase, sale, transfer or transfer acceptance
specified by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Furthermore, directors and executives are
required to make copies of the abovementioned reports to send to the Company Secretary in order to notify the
Board of Directors meeting every time.

Stakeholder Report Policy
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5)

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

The Company made a policy requiring every director and executive to send reports on stakes held by directors,
executives and associated persons who hold stakes related to the Company’s business operations or subsidiaries
pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act in order to provide the Company with information in business operations
according to specifications concerning connected transactions. The first report is required to be delivered within
15 days from the date of appointment as a director and/or executive according to the specified report form and
reports must be made within 15 days from the date of change in stake holding information according to specified
report forms. Reports are to be sent to the Company Secretary and the Company Secretary must send copies of
reports on stake holdings to the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit Committee within seven
days from the date of receiving that report and the Company Secretary has the duty to keep all reports on stake

holdings.

Audit fees

The 2020 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders passed a resolution to nominate Ms.Wanya Buddasathien,
Certified N0.4387 or Ms.Waraporn Intaraprasit, Certified No.7881 or Ms.Chonthicha Lertvilai, Certified No.12258 or
Ms.Waraporn Phanpakdeenupong, Certified No.12261 of C.W.W.P Company Limited to be the 2020 company’s
auditor. All the auditors listed above have no relationship or any interest with the company / subsidiaries / executives
/ major shareholders or related to such person in anyway. The audit fees were determined at 1,250,000 Baht,

Increasing 80,000 Baht from year 2019.

For non-audit item, in the last accounting period the company used the English translation service from this
auditing office which costs 60,000 baht.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Social and Environmental Responsibilities

The phrase of “Houses Built on Good Intentions” is the main philosophy of all executives and employees of
Lalin Property Public Company Limited who are committed to build a house with full intention, pay attention to the life
quality and create good environment to customers, support motivation of all employees in the organization and nearby
communities, and also return benefits to the society.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is one of the principles that Lalin Property Public Company Limited consistently
focuses on throughout its operation. The Company is aware of the sustainable growth of the organization which requires
visions, capabilities, together with morality and ethics in the operation under the good corporate governance principle
and corporate social responsibility. The Board of Directors made policies on corporate governance, business morals
and business ethics with consideration given to society and the environment by disclosing policies in Report 56-1 and

the Company’s website.

Respect for Human Rights

The Company strictly follows the policy on respect for human rights by not being involved in human rights
violations. The Company recognizes the importance of human dignity, rights, freedom and equality. The Company does
not discriminate based on ethnicity, citizenship, religion, gender or education by specifying human rights policies and
guidelines to prevent human rights violations.

Fair Business Operations

The Company operates the business correctly under the law, specifications, moral principles and corporate
governance. The Company’s business operations consider stakeholders whether if they were shareholders, employees,
customers, trade partners, competitors, society and the environment. The Company made the corporate governance
policy including business ethics and ethics for directors, executives and employees for all to adhere to strictly by
disclosing ethics in Report 56-1 and the Company’s website.

Combating Corruption and Bribery

The Company has an anti-corruption policy and engages in business with transparency without being involved
in any form of corruption. The Company specifies in business ethics for employees to not accept monetary and non-
monetary benefits that motivate employees to perform or neglect performing duties, which may lead to damage to the
organization. The Company disseminates business ethics for general acknowledgement by employees and executives
in addition to providing regular training and communication via the organization’s channels. All new employees are
required to pass training in order to be aware of the Company’s anti-corruption policy and guidelines.

Fair Treatment of Employees

The Company is committed to comply with the labor law and other laws related to employment by focusing on
care and attention to employees. In addition, the Company provides welfares to employees, such as provident fund,
educational scholarship for employees, group health insurance, annual holidays according to rules of the labor law, fair
salary payment, and annual bonus payment, in order to return a favor to employees’ intentions in operations. KPI (Key
Performance Indicator) is applies as the indicator representing the efficiency and effectiveness of performances of the
organization or sections in the organization.

However, the Company establishes the Welfare Committee to give advices and suggestions regarding to welfares,
inspect and audit welfares provided to employees, and provide comments and additional or necessary guidelines
relating to welfares. In addition, the Company also provides the annual employee survey relating to satisfaction on the
working environment, nature of work, executives, communication, and organizational commitment of the employees.
Such survey will be applied as the guideline for further development t and improvement.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Furthermore, Lalin Property also focuses on providing trainings continuously in order to enhance skills, knowledge,
and capabilities in the operation of employees. Annually, the Company will offer opportunities to supervisors and employees
to express their opinions relating to the demand of trainings for self-development and development of occupational
knowledge and abilities.

Regarding to the activities for strengthening good relationship in the organization, the Company organizes the
New Year Party at the end of every year, Annual Sport’s Day, and “Happy Hour” activity after office hours once a month,
in order to enhance happiness of employees in working, relax and reduce stress. These activities will lead to Happy
Organization and also create good relationship between employees, as well as employees and executives, including

support the organizational commitment of employees.

Customer Responsibility

The Company emphasizes on doing business by constructing qualified and standardized houses. Moreover, the
Company is aware of services which create the best impression to customers with the following practices.

1. Providing complete and fair information to customers and considering benefits of customers, such as, no
exaggerated advertising, providing clear information with simple and easy-to-understand language

2. Developing products and services of the business which respond the social and environmental demand to
customers and have the standard in order to create customers” satisfaction. The Company establishes the
Quality Control section (QC) for inspecting and controlling the production process or services so that all
products are in accordance with the requirements of the organization, including the corrective action system

which helps detect non-conforming products.

3. Listening to a problems and rapidly and willingly resolve problems without bias and mainly considering

benefits of customers

Organizing Activities under Project

The Company greatly pays attention to create good relationship with members under the Lalin Project by building
participation and interaction through any activities, such as New Year Party, Children’s Day, Loy Kratong Day, making
merits on Buddhist Festivals, etc. Additionally, the Company also focuses on the quality of life of all members in the
project by providing the medical checkup, vaccination for dogs, Big Cleaning event, etc.

Developing Community and Society

Strong communities and society with sustainable development are very significant as the supporting factor for the
business operation of the Company. As a result, the Company promotes social activities continuously and participates in
enhancing strength for communities by creating qualified society, reducing or stopping negative impacts on communities
and society, especially impacts arising out of the operation of the Company. In addition, the Company also supports
volunteering activities relating to community and society development.

Nature and Environment Conservation

The Company recognizes the importance of nature and environment conservation and the Company is committed
to join with society to conserve nature and solve increasingly severe environmental problems. The process begins
with housing design, choosing nature friendly material, and inventing technology to reduce using of nature resources.
Also strictly on construction process to reduce any harmful to environment by complying with environment law; as for
example, installing wastewater treatment system both in household and whole project before release treated water out
form the project. The Company’s carries out the following environment conservation policies at all times:

1. Fostering employees to save and consume energy valuably, such as turning off lights during lunch break
and all computers after finishing using, adjusting the temperature of air conditioners at the saving-energy

temperature and turning them off after finishing using.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

2. Realizing energy problems and global warming by fostering awareness of employees to help save and
support re-use of resources, such as using recycled paper for photocopying

3.  Communicating to all employees, customers, and associated persons to be aware of the energy saving and
energy consumption with the highest worthwhileness

4. Using benefits from technologies in order to reduce transportation and energy consumption

5. Considering environment and impacts on society surrounding the construction sites, providing preventive
measures for dust and safety, noise pollution, managing wastes arising out of the construction, and providing
wastewater treatment before releasing out of the construction sites

6.  Designing houses which help save energy and cause no impact on environment. All housing projects of the
Company are planned, managed, and controlled in terms of all production process. In addition, the Company
designs houses according to the principles of the nature by selecting and using materials which save the
energy and help reduce the global warming, such as, green tinted glasses, which help reduce the intense
and heat of the light, including filter UV and reflect heat, so the heat inside the house reduces and help less
consumption of air conditioners.

7. Communicating knowledge and information relating to impacts on environment and safety to all employees,

customers, and the public

Furthermore, to ensure that the Company’s employees have knowledge and understanding of the environment,
new environment conservation technologies and build good conscientiousness on topics concerning the environment,
the Company has set policies to promote knowledge about the environment among the Company’s employees by
organizing annual training on the environment for company employees (details on training over the past year are under
“Personnel” in Report 56-1 of the Company). In addition, the Company organizes activities in the organization to build
conscientiousness in nature and environment conservation. The following activities were performed in 2020: an activity
to reduce paper use by using technology to replace certain types of documents, activities to reduce traveling to reduce
energy consumption by using electronic media conferences for meetings between projects and the main office and
activities to campaign for reduced plastic use by distributing cloth bags to employees, etc.

Safety Operation
The Company is aware of the life, health, and property safety of employees and customer under the projects by
implementing the following operations;
1. Installing CCTV in the Company for the safety of employees and around the housing projects of the Company
foe the safety of residents in the projects
2. Providing 24-hour security guards who have no criminal records and drug use
3. The Company provides the training of “Firefighting and Evacuation” once a year so that employees acknowledge
the basic preventive measures, fire exit routes, fire extinguishers usage, and safe evacuation out of the

building. This activity is the preparation in case real situations take place.

Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSRs)

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is always mindful that we are a part of society and conscious of our important
responsibility to society as well as the community. The Company therefore regularly organizes activities to benefit
society and has consistently done so throughout. This takes the form of educational assistance with the presentation of
scholarships to schoolchildren and students; monetary donations to various charities; donations of funds and necessities

to victims of natural disasters such as floods; and including holding community activities through the Company’s projects.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

At the board of directors’ meeting No. 1/2021 held on February 24, 2021, the board of directors approved the audit
committee in line with the assessment form for the sufficiency of the internal control systems for 2020. In summary, the
Company has sufficient internal controls covering 5 areas, namely, internal control, risk assessment, operation control,
information system and communication, and monitoring systems. The details are as follows:

1. Internal Control

The Company has set a goal for business operations approved by the board of directors, which is clear, reasonable and
measureable in order to be used as an operational guideline for employees. The Company requires executives and employees
to perform their duties with integrity and moral ethics in writing and also communicates this matter to all employees in the new
employee orientation. The Company has established complete policies and rules in writing, appropriate corporate structure,
clear chain of command, and relationship between internal sections, including properly assigned authorities, duties, and
responsibilities to personnel. Main duties are divided to provide check-and-balance. A chain of command has been set in
place that is clear and appropriate. Employee roles and duties are established in writing so that all employees are aware
of the authority, duties and responsibilities and properly execute duties with full ability. Employees are continuously
educated and trained with the skills necessary for operations. In addition, an efficient internal control system is established,
including an independent internal audit reporting directly to the Audit Committee.

2. Risk Assessment

The Company focuses on risk assessment. At the board of directors’ meeting, risks with potential impact on the
Company’s business operations are assessed and considered in terms of internal and external factors from all sections
in order to establish the strategy on risk management which may cause impacts and damages to the Company. At
the bi-weekly board of directors’ meetings, each line of work reports problems, issues and opportunities for potential
corruption and presents the measures taken in line with the risk management guidelines. The Company’s executives
assess situations, analyzes and prioritize the risk level, determines risk control methods and preventive and corrective
measures, and monitors situations that are the root cause risk factors as well as those measures in order to mitigate
potential impacts on the Company’s business operation.

3. Operation Control

The Company has set significant control activities of each work system and regularly reported performances. The
management structure is established to divide and separate duties and responsibilities of each unit, consisting of the
duty of approval, information and transaction recording and asset maintenance. However, the Company develops its
information technology to support its efficient operations. In addition, policy and operational procedures are regularly
reviewed and the Company also participated in the announcement of intention and commitment to prevent corruptions
in the projects of collective action coalition of the private sector to fight against corruptions organized by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.

4. Information System and Communication

The Company has arranged sufficient key information available for decision-making and submits it to the board
of directors within the period stipulated by the law. Minutes of the board of directors’ meetings are prepared in detail
and kept available for proper review of directors’ execution of duty. Documents supporting the accounting records
are completely stored and categorized. The Company develops and updates the computer system for the Company’s
database management so that data collection and management as well as report preparation are efficient and suitable.
Data is always reported rapidly, timely and accurately. Communication channels are available throughout the entire
company via an intranet system. Department meetings are held on a monthly basis. For external communications, the
Company provides the section of investor relations via its website (www.lalinproperty.com) as a communication channel

between the Company and external investors and agencies.
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5. Monitoring System

The Company monitors business performances to determine achievement of set goals. Meetings
are held with the Management once a week. Executive board meetings are held bi-weekly to closely monitor
performances. Furthermore, the board of directors’ meetings are held at least 5 times a year to consider,
analyze and evaluate whether performances meets the established strategies, goals and business plans
and to solve potential problems and adjust action plans to meet changing situations. In addition, the Company also has
an Internal Audit Department which has the duty of auditing the Company’s operations in order to assess and report audit
results directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee then reports performances to the board of directors at the
boards’ meetings every time. Regarding to financial data, independent auditors perform audits and render opinions. At

present, no errors in internal control system on accounting have been found to significantly affect the financial statement.

As of December 31, 2020, the head of internal audit unit is Ms. Praphasri Kittichaloemkiat. Her brief profie is as

follows;
Educational Background
» Bachelor of Business Administration (Accounting) Hua Chiew Chalermprakiet University (1997-2001)
» Master of Science (Information Technology Management) Rangsit University

Working Experience

* Internal Audit SeniOor Officer Summit Auto Seat Industry Company Limited,
Year 2003- 2008

» Section Head of Internal Audit Department Modernform (Public) Company Limited,
Year 2008-2015

* Internal Audit Manager Lalin Property (Public) Company Limited,

Year 2015 — current
Training Program
« Anti-corruption in Organizations of the Federation of Accounting Professions
* Internal Audit Operation in Information System of the Federation of Accounting Professions
» Evaluating Internal Control: A COSO Based Approach of the Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
» Risk Based Audit of the Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
Certificate
* Tax Auditor
« Executive Mini MBA class 15 — NIDA Business School
* RE - Junior class 4 — NIDA Business School

The Audit Committee has opinion that Ms. Praphasri Kittichaloemkiat, Head of Internal Audit Unit of the Company,
has adequate qualifications and experience to efficiently perform internal audits. In addition, Company’s internal audit
unit is independent. The Audit Committee has the duty to approve the appointment, transfer, and dismiss of the head

of internal audit unit or any other units relating to an internal audit.
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Related party transactions

The Company currently does not have any related party transactions. However, if company will do any related
transactions in the future, the company will determine any terms as normal commercial practice at market prices,
which may be compared with prices in transactions occurring with outside parties. The Company will assign the Audit
Committee, the corporate auditors, or independent experts to review the transactions and provide their opinions as to

the suitability of pricing and justification of such items.

The Board of Directors must ensure that any future related party transactions comply with the Securities and Stock
Exchange Act, regulations, announcements, orders or conditions of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Furthermore,
compliance is required with regulations governing the disclosure of related party transactions and the significant

acquisition, or divestiture of securities in the Company or its subsidiaries.

The Company’s board of directors has set policy for conducting related transactions whereby various terms and
conditions have to be set based on the characteristics of normal operations if related transactions are conducted at
market prices, which can be compared with prices occurring with outside parties. Thus, the Audit Committee or the
Company'’s auditor or an independent expert will have to give consideration, examine and render an opinion on the
reasonability of conducting the transaction. Related transactions must be compliant with the laws governing securities
and the stock market as well as the regulations, notifications, directives or specifications of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, including compliance with specifications involving the disclosure of information about related transactions

and the acquisition or sales of the main assets of the Company or its subsidiaries

Furthermore, related party transactions for the Company or its subsidiaries which may occur with individuals
having potential conflict of interest, vested interest or future conflict of interest, require the Audit Committee to review
and provide their opinion as to the necessity and suitability of the transaction. In the event that the Audit Committee does
not possess the expertise to consider the particular transaction in question, the Company will assign an independent
expert or the corporate auditors to provide an opinion. The feedback will be used in the decision making of the Board
of Directors’ or Shareholders, as may be the case. The Company will disclose details of related party transactions in

the Notes to the Financial Statements, which have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Explanation of Performance and Financial Status Analysis

The year of 2020 was an extremely challenging for professionalism in management. In 2020, the world was
confronted with the Covid-19 pandemic, which caused heavy social and economic impact. Economically, the pandemic
caused severe and wide-ranging economic impact worldwide. Thailand was also severely impacted. In 2020, GDP
growth shrunk by 6.1% compared to a 2.3-percent growth in the previous year. Tourism, one of the steering forces for
the Thai economy, was drastically affected. Over two million people employed in the tourism industry, airlines or hotels
were laid off or suspended from work with subsequent impact on other industries. More than five million people are
estimated to have lost jobs. The real estate business, a business sector connected to the overall economy, was severely
impacted. Overall sales declined among more than two-thirds of all real estate development companies listed on the
Stock Exchange and many companies operated at a loss. Nevertheless, Lalin Property Public Company Limited was
able to manage work according to goals and recognized an income growth of 24.35%, while net profit grew by 49.54%.

In 2020, the Company acknowledged a total sales income of 5,748.82 million baht, an increase of 1,125.79 million
baht from the previous year or a growth of 24.35%, which is stronger than industry conditions that have shrunken overall,
and better than the industry as a whole for the fifth consecutive year. Furthermore, in the second quarter of 2020, the
Company acknowledged special income from one of the Company’s projects within the area of expropriation for the
construction of the Bang Yai — Kanchanaburi special inter-city highway project (motorway). The Company received
financial compensation from expropriation. When deducted from the project’s sale costs, profit from expropriation (before
income tax deduction) was 155.65 million baht. In 2020, the Company was able to manage costs better than the industry
average through direct cost management. Gross profit was higher than 39% and sales and service cost management
was more effective. Thus, in 2020, the Company had a net profit of 1,333.17 million baht, an increase by 49.54% from
the previous year and a higher growth than the overall industry for the fifth consecutive year.

In 2020, the Company continued to expand the business and launched a total of seven projects with a total value
of 5,200 million baht. All of the projects are horizontal projects and part of ongoing business growth. The Company
launched a total of 45 new projects valued at 30 billion baht in the past 5-6 years. Some of the projects were launched
to replace sold out and closed projects and some projects were launched in areas with new capacity and product
models to meet consumer needs and support business expansion for sustainable growth.

One of the factors supporting the Company to acknowledge sales income at a total of 5,748.82 million baht or a
growth of 24.35% was from the Company’s emphasis on the horizontal market and clear focus on real demand customers.
This market is less impacted. In addition, the Company selects areas with capacity and continually develops product
models by using big data to study and truly gain customer insight along with using lifestyle marketing strategies and digital
marketing to reach target groups with more accuracy. Moreover, the Company develops new product models and uses
new innovations to build on Lalin’s Quality of Living standards in order to improve quality of living. These improvements,
whether if it was the IL-Smart & Security system, the IL-Ecosystem and the IL-Lively & Healthy system, enabled the
Company to manage through difficult years while having growth in performance despite a slowdown in the overall real
estate market. Furthermore, in the last quarter of the year, the government applied measures to reduce transfer fees
and mortgage fees for housing valued at no more than three million baht which expired on 24 December 2020, causing
some customer groups to decide to purchase and transfer ownership rights in order to be entitled to discounts in the
aforementioned fees, causing the Company to have a significantly higher recognized income in Quarter 4 at 1,745.92
million baht or a growth of 42% from the same period last year. However, concerning extensions to the aforementioned
discount measures from the end of 2020, the Council of Ministers approved to extend the aforementioned measures,
effective from 3 February 2021 to 31 December 2021.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Not only did the Top Line grow well in 2020, the Bottom Line grew at a higher rate than the Top Line because the
Company maintains effective cost management reflected in the Company’s profitability ratios, which have been higher
than the industry average since the Company was listed in the Stock Exchange in 2002. In 2020, The Company had
a gross profit margin of 39.08%, a level higher than the industry average of 33.00%, which reflected good direct cost
management such as land procurement ability and construction cost management. The Company continually develops
construction systems and new innovations in addition to developing more effective construction management systems,
which improved product quality and enabled better cost management. Selling, general and administrative expense to
revenue (SG&A/Revenues) was at 9.20%, an improvement from 11.0% in the previous year and a continual improvement
in the past 4-5 years.

Net profitin 2020 was at 1,333.17 million baht or a growth of 49.54% compared to the previous year. This increase
is the fifth consecutive increase in the last five years. However, in 2020, the Company perceived income from land
expropriation in Quarter 2, which is a one-time transaction and not profit from normal business operations. When the
aforementioned transaction was deducted to consider only profit from normal business operations, net profitin 2020 was
at 1,208.65 million baht or a growth of 35.57%. When considering the net profit margin in 2020, the net profit margin as
at 23.13%. However, after deducting special profit transactions, the net profit margin (only normal profit) was at 20.97%,
an improvement from 19.21% in the previous year at a level above the overall industry average.

In terms of capital structure, the Company retains a strong financial status with strict risk management. Although
the Company continually expanded the business in the past several years, the Company maintains a better capital
structure level than the market average. At the end of 2020, the Company’s debt to equity ratio (D/E ratio) was 0.67
times, a reduction from 0.75 times from the previous year. This is extremely low when compared to the industry average
of 1.4 — 1.5 times. Moreover, at the end of 2020, the Company had over a billion baht in cash reserved for business
expansion. If the net debt to equity ratio was considered, the net debt to equity ratio (Net D/E ratio) would be at a low
level of 0.31 times. The Company’s ability to maintain a low debt to equity ratio despite investments to expand new
projects valued over 30 billion baht in the past 5-6 years was partly due to management to create economy of speed,
allowing the Company to be able to turnover more investments along with managing inventory with greater efficiency.
The Company practices careful financial risk management and uses diverse loan sources for the short term and the
long term. In addition, the Company diversified financial institute allies without depending on any single institute while
maintaining sufficient reserves by setting sufficient committed lines with commercial banks. In cases with abnormal
financial market conditions causing the overall market to be unable to issue debentures, the Company can draw on cash
reserves to cover all debts due for payment in the next two years without including incoming cash flows from housing
transfers. When the balance sheet as of 31 December 2020 was considered, the Company has total assets valued at
12,454.36 million baht, an increase of 952.48 million baht from the end of the previous year or an increase of 8.28%. Of
these increases, 43.80 million baht or 0.89% was from liability accounts and 908.68 million baht or 13.84% was from
increases in shareholders’ equity. Significant changes in assets consisted of other non-current financial assets with an
increase of 900 million baht. The aforementioned account is an excess liquidity used by the Company to purchase
investment units in mutual funds which focus on investments in government bonds with better returns than normal bank
deposits. Investment units were sold as T+1, enabling the Company to convert units back into cash within one business
day when the Company needs money.

With regard to liabilities, at the end of 2020, the Company has a total liability of 4,981.93 million baht divided into
current liabilities totaling 2,712.65 million baht and non-current liabilities at 2,269.28 million baht. When only liability from
loans was considered, at the end of 2020, total liability from loans was 3,372.39 million baht, similar to 3,387.46 million
baht at the end of 2019. In 2020, the Company issued two sets of debentures valued at 1,025 million baht consisting of
Debenture Lot No. 1/2563 with a period of 3 years, a value of 500 million baht and a fixed interest rate of 2.90% per year,
and Debendure Lot No. 2/2563 with a period of 1 year and 9 months, a value of 525 million baht and a fixed interest rate
of 3.00% per year. Debentures were issued to be used in the Company’s business expansion. Overall average interest
cost in 2020 declined continually in the past several years.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Concerning shareholders’ equity, at the end of 2020, shareholders’ equity was 7,472.43 million baht, an increase of
908.68 million baht from the end of 2019 or an increase of 13.84% from the Company’s increases in profits from operations.
At the end of 2020, the Company’s debt to equity ratio (D/E ratio) was at 0.67 times, a reduction from 0.75 times at the
end of 2019. The aforementioned numbers reflected a concise financial risk management policy. The Company has
adhered to financial discipline for over 30 years from the Company’s founding. The Company never creates debt up to
an uncontrollable level. This enabled the Company to be one of few real estate development companies in Thailand to
not be required to enter a debt restructuring process with any financial institute after the economic crisis of 1997.

In 2020, the Company paid dividends to shareholders in two lots. On 8 November 2020, the Company paid a cash
dividend with a par value of 0.21 baht and a total cash payout of 194.25 million baht (for performance in the second
half of 2019) and the Company paid an interim dividend on 11 September 2020 by paying another cash dividend with
a par value of 0.25 million baht (for performance in the first half of 2020) or a total cash payout of 231.25 million baht,
bringing the total cash dividend paid out in 2020 to 425.00 million baht. In addition, Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2564
approved proposing for the Annual General Meeting of 2021 to approve another dividend payout to shareholders for
performance in the second half of 2020 at a par value of 0.30 baht along with paying extra dividends from expropriation
profit at a par value of 0.06 baht or a total cash payout of 333.00 million baht. If the Annual General Meeting approves,
dividends will be paid on 14 May 2021, causing the Company’s dividend payouts for performance in all of 2020 to have
a par value of 0.61 baht or a payout ratio of 42.32%.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Statement of the Board of Director’s Responsibilities
to the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements of Lalin Public Company Limited, as well as the
financial information presented in the 2020 Annual Report. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, using appropriate accounting principles that are applied on a consistent basis.
Furthermore, cautious judgment and the best estimates for financial projections are exercised in the preparation of the
statements. Every care is taken to ensure adequate disclosure of information in the Notes to the Financial Statements,

for the benefit of Shareholders as well as general investors and in the interests of transparency.

The Company’s Board of Directors has implemented an appropriate risk assessment system, as well as a system
of internal controls, to engender confidence in the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of accounting information
to maintain the Company’s assets. Moreover, this serves as a safeguard against dishonest or other abnormal activities

of a significant nature.

In this regards, the Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee to review the quality of the financial statements,
the internal audit report and including the system for risk management. The recommendations of the Audit Committee

in this regard are presented in the Report of the Audit Committee as shown in the Annual Report.

The Company'’s Financial Statements have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors, Ms. Wanraya Puttasatiean
(Certified N0.4387) of C.W.W.P. Co., Ltd. As part of the audit process, the Board of Directors determined the policy
guidelines for management to provide adequate supporting information and documentation, thereby allowing the auditors
to conduct the audit and provide their opinions in line with auditing standards. The auditors’ opinions are shown in the

Auditors’ Report section of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company’s overall internal control systems are
of a satisfactory standard and are able to offer reasonable confidence that the annual Financial Statements of Lalin
Property Public Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2020 are credible and comply with generally accepted

accounting standards, as well as the relevant regulations.

=7 (Ml -

(Taveesak Watcharakkawong) (Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Chairman Chairman of the Executive Board
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Lalin Property Public Company Limited is composed of three independent directors. Name

as below.
1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Assoc. Prof. Niputh Jitprasonk Audit Committee member
3. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Audit Committee member

The Audit Committee performed operations independently and in full capacity as assigned by the Company’s
board of directors and the charter of the Audit Committee. The main duty is to review the financial statements of the
Company to be accurate and disclosed adequately, review the Company’s internal control system and supervise the
good corporate governance of the Company. In 2020, a total of four meetings were held. At each meeting, the Audit
Committee participated in discussions with the Company’s executives, internal auditor and auditor. The essential details

can be summarized as follows:

1. Reviewing the Company’s financial statement

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly financial statement and financial statement for the year 2020 including
the disclosure of related transactions which were reviewed and audited by the auditors before presenting them to the
Company’s board of directors for approval. In addition, the Committee attended in the meeting with auditors without the
presence of the Management to consider scope of audit plan and auditor’s results, and freely discuss important issues
in the preparation of the financial statement and disclosure of information which is beneficial to users of the financial
statement. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the aforementioned financial reports are correct, complete and
credible and that substantial information was sufficiently and timely disclosed in accordance with accounting standards

and related rules.

2. Reviewing the Company’s corporate governance procedure, internal control, risk
management, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Audit Committee audited the Company’s good corporate governance, ensured the effectiveness and efficiency
of internal control system, and risk management according to the audit standard and guidelines set by the Office of
Securities and Exchange Commission and compliance with relevant laws and regulations. In addition, the Audit Committee
considered the internal audit results according to the annual plan prepared pursuant to the rules of risk standard,
listened to explanations of the auditor about the internal control system, and commented and exchanged knowledge
and information relating to risks that may affect the Company with the board of directors regularly every quarter. The
Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the Company has adequate and effective internal control system and risk

management, including intention and commitment to prevent all kinds of corruption.

3. Reviewing compliance with the laws on securities and the Stock Exchange

The Audit Committee reviewed the compliance with laws on securities and the Stock Exchange, regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and laws relating to the Company’s business. The Audit Committee commented that the
Company complied with laws on securities and the Stock Exchange, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
laws relating to the Company’s business, and found no business transactions fitting the criteria for related transactions

or transactions with potential conflicts of interest.
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Lalin Property Public Company Limited

4. Supervising internal audit functions

The Audit Committee monitored internal audit functions which cover missions, scope of operation, duties and
responsibilities and independency to ensure that the operational process is effective and there is sufficient internal control
system. The meeting with the Audit Department is held at least once per quarter in order to consider the annual audit
plan and acknowledge the audit results, as well as provide recommendations that are beneficial to the improvement of
operations of the Audit Department and the Management. According to the internal audit results, it is considered that
the internal control has been conducted in an appropriate manner with sufficient information without any important errors
or defects. The Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the Company has adequate internal control system and risk

management.

5. Reporting performances

The Audit Committee reported performances of the Audit Committee to the Company’s board of directors quarterly
and provided comments and suggestions which were beneficial to the management. The Management has appropriately

taken corrective actions according to the suggestions.

6. Consider and select the Company’s auditor for the year 2021

The Audit Committee considered, selected, nominated an independent person to be company’s auditor and
proposed the remunerations for the auditors in 2021 based on their knowledge, skill, independence, performance and
appropriateness of audit fee in order to propose it to the Company’s board of directors for further approval of auditor
appointment at the shareholders’ meeting. The Audit Committee proposed to nominate Ms.Wanya Buddasathien, Certified
No0.4387 or Ms.Waraporn Intaraprasit, Certified No.7881 or Ms.Chonthicha Lertvilai, Certified No.12258 or Ms.Waraporn
Phanpakdeenupong, Certified No.12261 or Ms.Ratchanok Jansuwan, Certified No.13765 of C.W.W.P Company Limited
to be the Company’s auditor for the year 2021.

During the year 2020, the Audit Committee has fully performed its duties as assigned by the Company’s board of
directors. The committee fully exercised its knowledge and skills independently and sufficiently and without limitations
in regards to information access, and the Committee has rendered its opinion on the overall picture that the Company
reported its financial information and actions correctly and appropriately in accordance with the accounting standards,
has an internal control system in place with internal audits and proper risk management that are sufficient and in
compliance with laws, regulations and obligations. In addition, the Company continuously promotes good corporate
governance, transparency and credibility. Moreover, the Company continuously improves work systems for the equal

benefits of stakeholders.

(Suvarn Thansathit)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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QWMIRUTIN WMIRURWIZRIMS
HneLme 31 5421AN 2563 31 5uAN 2562 31 5U21AN 2563 31 5U21AN 2562
U U U U
Funind
FunSndnadeoy
Ruaauazsiemsifounituas 7 40,733,456.52 23,030,839.49 35,926,985.06 22,665,220.08
gnwﬁmuﬁﬂuﬁu 8 81,858,230.75 88,679,141.45 81,858,230.75 88,679,141.45
dudnuwie 9 9,944,704,287.93 10,063,121,869.57 9,953,089,287.93 10,066,121,869.57
smFunIndvapdou 10,067,295,975.20 10,174,831,850.51 10,070,874,503.74 10,177,466,231.10
FunndhinspuIou
Funindmamsiuhivuidousu 10 1,007,496,763.75 - 1,006,748,466.48 -
Guasquiilente 10 - 101,423,899.64 - 100,678,867.06
Quasuluuitndey 11 - - 24,996,000.00 24,996,000.00
fausemarian 12 962,584,311.03 768,084,135.03 962,584,311.03 768,084,135.03
fiau ewmsuazgnsal 13 345,695,429.74 364,904,765.43 334,467,348.25 361,351,954.33
Funindhifidanudy - qnd 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Aunsndmiiduldsemsdaiind 14 13,202,192.78 12,123,675.20 13,202,192.78 12,123,675.20
Funindhivyudousy 15 58,085,529.36 80,513,484.15 58,085,529.36 80,513,456.79
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2,387,064,228.66

1,327,049,961.45

2,400,083,849.90

1,347,748,090.41

12,454,360,203.86

11,501,881,811.96

12,470,958,353.64

11,525,214,321.51
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17

20

343

343

20

21

1

351,102,252.18
465,280,514.32

999,820,972.96

141,817,776.94

754,633,086.41

1N

450,411,790.21
464,138,907.15

939,871,754.54

101,403,730.61

764,891,084.23

1

351,102,252.18
465,437,254.45
999,820,972.96

11,000,000.00
141,385,490.76

754,633,086.41

I

450,411,790.21
464,758,139.98

939,871,754.54

101,370,817.16

764,891,084.23

2,712,654,602.81 2,720,717,266.74 2,723,379,056.76 2,721,303,586.12
- - - 18,000,000.00
100,000.00 100,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00

2,021,467,651.91

58,928,153.30
307,656.13

188,476,363.61

1,997,175,555.48

53,535,565.30
5,460.97

166,604,222.68

2,021,467,651.91

58,928,153.30
301,898.16

188,476,363.61

1,997,175,555.48

53,535,565.30
355.94

166,604,222.68

2,269,279,824.95

2,217,420,804.43

2,274,174,066.98

2,240,315,699.40

4,981,934,427.76

4,938,138,071.17

4,997,553,123.74

4,961,619,285.52
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925,000,000.00

U

925,000,000.00

1n

925,000,000.00

I

925,000,000.00

924,999,441.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
18,000,000.00

5,937,710,808.16

924,999,441.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00

5,047,006,928.92

21,843.93

924,999,441.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
18,000,000.00

5,938,690,261.96

924,999,441.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00

5,046,878,644.25
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-3,502,129,133.46
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-2,812,262,777.03
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1,333,171,373.78 891,511,834.46 1,334,299,532.38 891,254,126.53
- -348,655.39 - (355,818.67)

1,009,334.39 133,913.60 1,009,334.39 133,913.60
1,009,334.39 -214,741.79 1,009,334.39 -221,905.07
1,334,180,708.17 891,297,092.67 1,335,308,866.77 891,032,221.46
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31 suman 2561 lumls@nanu) lumls(@nanu) 31 FUAY 2562
° o A ] 3 A
a sl WaaTaou
STRY 17N STRL STRE)
16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
- 1,400,000.00 - 1,400,000.00
7,195,980.88 3,544,610.60 (33,478.40) 10,707,113.08
7,212,543.00 4,944,610.60 (33,478.40) 12,123,675.20
(92,624.82) - 87,163.85 (5,460.97)
(92,624.82) - 87,163.85 (5,460.97)
7,119,918.18 4,944,610.60 53,685.45 12,118,214.23
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1,400,000.00 - - 1,400,000.00
10,707,113.08 1,330,851.19 (252,333.61) 11,785,630.66
12,123,675.20 1,330,851.19 (252,333.61) 13,202,192.78

(355.94)

(301,542.22)

(301,898.16)

(355.94)

(301,542.22)

(301,898.16)

12,123,319.26

1,029,308.97

(252,333.61)

12,900,294.62
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U TUN

31 FUIAN 2562

VN VN

Rud vy 1,102,252.18 411,790.21

Fuanidu 350,000,000.00 450,000,000.00
3 351,102,252.18 450,411,790.21

o A @ a Y @ a o <
Ul 31 Sunaw 2563 Rudouszozdunnan1iumstudiuau 350.00 arwum Huns dou
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31 FUNAN2563 31 FUNAN2562 31 FUNAN2563 31 FUNAN 2562

VN VN UM UM
L%WWﬁﬂﬁﬁH 73,748,718.59 136,329,869.01 73,748,718.59 136,329,869.01
L%mfjmuﬁausu 391,531,795.73 327,809,038.14 391,688,535.86 328,428,270.97
37U 465280,51432  464,138,907.15 46543725445  464,758,139.98
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20. Huf
Usgnoudae
AUNMIRUIIWAUMIRURWIZAINS
o Sud  Suft
31 FUNAY 2563 31 FUNAY 2562
UM UM
yudwiia lidesdns uaz lutivandsziu afait 1/2560 - 500,000,000.00
yudwiia luidesdns uaz hillivanisedu a%aft 2/2560 - 70,000,000.00
Hudwila lidesdns uaz hutinanisziu afait 3/2560 - 370,000,000.00
Fudwiialidesdns was Wifindnusziu aded 12561 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Fudviialidosans uazhifimandseiu afadt 22561 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
Fudviialidosdnt uazhifimandseiu adadt 32561 400,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
Fudwiiahidosdns uas lifindnisziu adadt 42561 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Fudviiahidesdnd uaz lifindnisziu adadt 12562 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Fudwiiahidosdng uas lifndnisziu adadt 212562 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
Fudwiialidosdnd uas Wifndnisziu adadt 1/2563 500,000,000.00 -
Fudwiiahidosdng uaz lifindnisziu adadi 22563 525,000,000.00 -
39 3,025,000,000.00 2,940,000,000.00
#in ldnelumseeniulsedmin® (3,711,375.13) (2,952.689.98)
yamauLiny® 3,021,288,624.87 2,937,047,310.02
in drundeimuadisznelumnilll (999,820,972.96) (939,871,754.54)
qns 2,021,467,651.91 1,997,175,555.48
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ponRuiiinIEHINIA 1,025,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
NIFITLAUTLHIN9I9 (940,000,000.00) (800,000,000.00)
ml¥selumsesniudsodalin® (2,768,625.00) (802,500.00)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of LALIN PROPERTY
PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries (“the Group™) and of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the consolidated and separate statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated and separate statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated and separate statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the consolidated
and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of the Group and the Company as
at 31 December 2020, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and
separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards

(TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidate and Separate Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the
Group and the Company in accordance with the Federation of Accounting Professions, Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most
significance in my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as
a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Recognition of revenues from sales of real estate

The Group Companies recognize the revenues from sales of real estate per the accounting
policies disclosed in the note to financial statements No.6.14 Comparing to the total revenue, the amount
of the revenues from sales of real estate recognized by the Group Companies is significant. Furthermore,
the Group Companies have large number of real estate development projects for sale. Therefore, I
considered the recognition of revenues from sales of real estate the key audit matter for the actual

occurrence of revenues and the period for the recognition of revenues from sales.
My audit methods on the Group Companies’ recognition of revenues from sales of real estate are:

- Assess and test the efficiency of the information system and the internal control system’s general
control in respect to the revenue cycle by interviewing responsible staff, obtaining an understanding,
and selecting random sample to test the compliance to the control designed by the Group Companies.

- Review randomly selected transactions to check the sales agreements, supporting documents of sales
transactions and ownership transfer document to ensure that recognition of revenues comply with the
terms and conditions stipulated in the land sales agreements and correspond with the Group
Companies’ revenue recognition policy.

- Review randomly selected samples the supporting documents of sales transactions incurred during the
year and approaching the end of the accounting period.

- Apply analytical procedure on the breakdown information of revenues from sales of real estate to

check for abnormality that may incurred under the sales transactions during the accounting period.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and separate financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made available to me after the date

of this auditor’s report.
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My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other
information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or my knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When I read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, [ am
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the correction be

made.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and
separate financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs), and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matter relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group and the Company’s

the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
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the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs), I exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

® [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group and the Company’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report by attention to the disclosures in the related consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

® Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
and business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I
am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely

responsible for my audit opinion.
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I communicate with those charged with governance in various importance matters, including
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control if I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, [ determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

information.

(Miss Wanraya Puttasatiean)

Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 4387

CWWP Company Limited
Bangkok,

24 February 2021
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Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2020

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht Baht Baht
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 40,733,456.52 23,030,839.49 35,926,985.06 22,665,220.08
Other Current Receivables 8 81,858,230.75 88,679,141.45 81,858,230.75 88,679,141.45
Inventories 9 9,944,704,287.93 10,063,121,869.57 9,953,089,287.93 10,066,121,869.57
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,067,295,975.20 10,174,831,850.51 10,070,874,503.74 10,177,466,231.10
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 10 1,007,496,763.75 - 1,006,748,466.48 -
Investments Held as Available-for-Sale 10 - 101,423,899.64 - 100,678,867.06
Investment in Subsidiary 11 - - 24,996,000.00 24,996,000.00
Land Held to Development 12 962,584,311.03 768,084,135.03 962,584,311.03 768,084,135.03
Property, Plant and Equipment 13 345,695,429.74 364,904,765.43 334,467,348.25 361,351,954.33
Other Intangible Assets - Net 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Deferred Tax Assets 14 13,202,192.78 12,123,675.20 13,202,192.78 12,123,675.20
Other Non-Current Assets 15 58,085,529.36 80,513,484.15 58,085,529.36 80,513,456.79
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,387,064,228.66 1,327,049,961.45 2,400,083,849.90 1,347,748,090.41

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

12,454,360,203.86

11,501,881,811.96

12,470,958,353.64

11,525,214,321.51
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2020

C lidated Fi ial St: t: Separate Financial Statements
Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht Baht Baht

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from

Financial Institutions 17 351,102,252.18 450,411,790.21 351,102,252.18 450,411,790.21

Trade and Other Current Payables 18 465,280,514.32 464,138,907.15 465,437,254.45 464,758,139.98

Current Portion of Debenture 20 999,820,972.96 939,871,754.54 999,820,972.96 939,871,754.54

Short-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary 343 - - 11,000,000.00 -

Accrued Income Taxes 141,817,776.94 101,403,730.61 141,385,490.76 101,370,817.16

Estimate Short-Term of Liabilities 19 754,633,086.41 764,891,084.23 754,633,086.41 764,891,084.23
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,712,654,602.81 2,720,717,266.74 2,723,379,056.76 2,721,303,586.12
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-Term Borrowings from Subsidiary 343 - - - 18,000,000.00

Long-Term Borrowings from Related Person 34.3 100,000.00 100,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00

Debenture 20 2,021,467,651.91 1,997,175,555.48 2,021,467,651.91 1,997,175,555.48

Non-Current Provisions of Employee Benefits 21 58,928,153.30 53,535,565.30 58,928,153.30 53,535,565.30

Deferred Tax Liabilities 14 307,656.13 5,460.97 301,898.16 355.94

Estimate Long-Term of Liabilities 19 188,476,363.61 166,604,222.68 188,476,363.61 166,604,222.68
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,269,279,824.95 2,217,420,804.43 2,274,174,066.98 2,240,315,699.40
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,981,934,427.76 4,938,138,071.17 4,997,553,123.74 4,961,619,285.52

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

222 Annual Report 2020



Lalin Property Public Company Limited

LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2020

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements
Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht Baht Baht
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share Capital 22
Authorized Share Capital
925,000,000 Ordinary Shares, at Baht 1.00 each 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital
924,999,441 Ordinary Shares, at Baht 1.00 each 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00 924,999,441.00
Shares Premium on Ordinary 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94 499,215,526.94
Retained Earnings
Appropriated
Legal Reserve 23 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00 92,500,000.00
Other Reserves 24 18,000,000.00 - 18,000,000.00 -
Unappropriated 5,937,710,808.16 5,047,006,928.92 5,938,690,261.96 5,046,878,644.25
Other Components of Shareholders' Equity - 21,843.93 - 1,423.80
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 7,472,425,776.10 6,563,743,740.79 7,473,405,229.90 6,563,595,035.99
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12,454,360,203.86 11,501,881,811.96 12,470,958,353.64 11,525,214,321.51

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements Of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

C lidated Fi

ial St £

Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December2019 31 December 2020 31 December2019
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Revenue from Sale 27 5,748,821,605.00 4,623,036,288.00 5,748,821,605.00 4,623,036,288.00
Cost of Sales (3,502,129,133.46) -2,812,262,777.03 (3,502,129,133.46) -2,812,262,777.03
GROSS PROFIT 2,246,692,471.54 1,810,773,510.97 2,246,692,471.54 1,810,773,510.97
Gain from Expropriation 155,654,787.06 - 155,654,787.06 -
Other Incomes 15,738,218.39 17,889,615.15 15,731,430.96 17,888,140.22
Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee (201,123,739.00) -174,471,387.50 (201,123,739.00) (174,471,387.50)
Distribution Costs (279,263,245.92) -265,454,670.93 (279,263,245.92) (265,454,670.93)
Administrative Expenses (252,623,364.42) -244,991,173.80 (252,294,892.45) (244,952,583.80)
Finance Costs (16,523,762.49) -21,653,202.25 (16,782,255.62) (22,013,202.23)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,668,551,365.16 1,122,092,691.64 1,668,614,556.57 1,121,769,806.73
Income Tax (Expenses) Revenue 28.1 (335,379,991.38) (230,580,857.18) (334,315,024.19) (230,515,680.20)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,333,171,373.78 891,511,834.46 1,334,299,532.38 891,254,126.53
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE)
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale 28.2 - (348,655.39) - (355,818.67)
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined

Benefit Plans 28.2 1,009,334.39 133,913.60 1,009,334.39 133,913.60

Total Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the Year - Net of Tax 1,009,334.39 (214,741.79) 1,009,334.39 (221,905.07)

Total Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the Year - Net of Tax

Basic Earnings Per Share

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements Of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

C lidated Fi

1 St

Notes 31 December 2020

31 December2019

Separate Financial Statements

31 December 2020

31 December2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the Year
Adjustment to Reconcile Profit Before Income Tax with
Cash Provided (Used) from Operating

Income Tax (Expenses) Revenue
Depreciation
Gain from Expropriation
Gain from Disposal of Unit Trust
Gain from Unit Trust Unrealized
Loss on Written-off of Property, Plant and Equipment
Loss on Write-off of Deferred Tax Assets
Estimated of Liabilities (Reversal)
Employee Benefit Expenses
Interest Income
Interest Expenses

Profit from Operating Before Changes in

Operating Assets and Liabilities

(Increase) Decrease in Operation Assets
Other Current Receivables
Inventories
Other Non-Current Assets

Increase (Decrease) in Operation Liabilities
Trade and Other Current Payables
Non-Current Provisions of Employee Benefits

Cash Received (Paid) from Operating Activites
Cash Paid for Interest Expenses Recorded as Cost of Inventories
Cash Received from Expropriation
Cash Received from Interest Income
Cash Payment form Income Tax

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Baht

1,333,171,373.78

335,379,991.38
50,910,327.91
(155,654,787.06)
(148,125.17)
(1,604,738.94)
233,695.09
27.36
11,614,143.11
8,065,456.00
(154,887.54)

16,523,762.49

Baht

891,511,834.46

230,580,857.18
50,987,606.36

(2,111,265.38)

335,546.84

251,236,431.06

18,966,753.00
(231,559.41)

21,653,202.25

Baht

1,334,299,532.38

334,315,024.19

50,910,327.91
(155,654,787.06)
(148,125.17)
(1,601,474.25)

25,740.48

11,614,143.11
8,065,456.00
(151,364.80)

16,782,255.62

Baht

891,254,126.53

230,515,680.20
50,987,606.36

(2,111,265.38)

335,546.84

251,236,431.06

18,966,753.00
(230,084.48)

22,013,202.23

1,598,336,238.41

9,197,957.67
819,014,226.03

727,927.43

(2,794,929.84)

(1,411,200.00)

1,462,929,406.36

(18,805,616.56)
(1,157,048,942.78)

(2,240,021.81)

79,224,814.19

(1,243,700.00)

1,598,456,728.41

9,197,957.67
813,629,226.03

727,927.43

(2,794,929.84)

(1,411,200.00)

1,462,967,996.36

(18,805,616.56)
(1,157,048,942.78)

(2,240,021.81)

79,225,076.69

(1,243,700.00)

2,423,070,219.70
(64,231,022.75)

261,415,977.00

154,887.54
(295,994,601.08)

362,815,939.40
(96,752,362.63)

231,559.41
(209,011,789.08)

2,417,805,709.70
(64,231,022.75)

261,415,977.00

151,364.80
(295,329,659.56)

362,854,791.90
(96,752,362.63)

230,084.48
(208,946,741.90)

2,324,415,460.41

57,283,347.10

2,319,812,369.19

57,385,771.85

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statements Of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

C lidated Fi ial St ) Separate Financial Statements

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December2019 31 December 2020 31 December2019

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Paid for Purchase of Unit Trust

Cash Received from Sale of Unit Trust

Cash Paid for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

Cash Paid for Purchase of Land Held to Development

Cash Paid on Deposit for Land
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) in Overdrafts

Cash Received from Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Cash Paid for Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Cash Paid for Borrowings from Subsidiary

Cash Received from Disposal of Debenture

Cash Paid for Settle of Debenture

Cash Paid for Debenture Issued Expenses

Cash Paid for Interest Expenses

Cash Paid for Dividends
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCREASE (DECREASE)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENDING OF THE YEAR

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Baht

(1,595,000,000.00)

Baht

(1,065,000,000.00)

Baht

(1,595,000,000.00)

Baht

(1,065,000,000.00)

690,680,000.00 1,392,000,000.00 690,680,000.00 1,392,000,000.00
(34,070,810.04) (46,874,247.52) (26,187,585.04) (46,874,247.52)
(865,980,925.00) (138,492,350.00) (865,980,925.00) (138,492,350.00)
(44,800,000.00) (66,600,000.00) (44,800,000.00) (66,600,000.00)

(1,849,171,735.04) 75,033,402.48 (1,841,288,510.04) 75,033,402.48
690,461.97 (19,003,536.36) 690,461.97 (19,003,536.36)

1,695,000,000.00
(1,795,000,000.00)

1,025,000,000.00
(940,000,000.00)
(2,768,625.00)

2,248,000,000.00
(1,798,000,000.00)

500,000,000.00
(800,000,000.00)
(802,500.00)

1,695,000,000.00
(1,795,000,000.00)
(7,000,000.00)

1,025,000,000.00
(940,000,000.00)
(2,768,625.00)

2,248,000,000.00
(1,798,000,000.00)

500,000,000.00
(800,000,000.00)
(802,500.00)

(14,998,328.72) (25,989,343.33) (15,719,314.55) (25,989,343.33)
(425,464,616.59) (323,376,999.77) (425,464,616.59) (323,376,999.77)
(457,541,108.34) (219,172,379.46) (465,262,094.17) (219,172,379.46)

17,702,617.03 (86,855,629.88) 13,261,764.98 (86,753,205.13)
23,030,839.49 109,886,469.37 22,665,220.08 109,418,425.21
40,733,456.52 23,030,839.49 35,926,985.06 22,665,220.08
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. General Information
1.1 Company Information
The Company was registered under the Civil and Commercial Code as a corporate entity on 8
November 1988, registration number 8781/2531 and convert to The Public Company Limited held on 3
September 2002, new registration number 0107545000233. It is registered office located at 222/2 Srinakharin
Road, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok, Thailand. The Company’s major sharcholder is Chakarakul family and
Watcharakawong family in 35.81% and 34.33%, repectively.
The Company is principally engaged in property development.
1.2 Coronavirus disease 2019 Pandemic
The Coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic is continuing to evolve, resulting in an economic
slowdown and adversely impacting most businesses and industries. This situation may bring uncertainties
and have an impact on the environment in which the group operates. The Group’s management has
continuously monitored ongoing developments and assessed the financial impact in respect of the
valuation of assets, provisions and contingent liabilities, and has used estimates and judgement in respect

of various issues as the situation has evolved.

2. Basis in Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards
including related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting
Professions, applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and The Stock
Exchange of Thailand.

2.2 The financial statements were presented in compliance with the notification of Department of Business
Development relating to determination of abbreviated items in the financial statements.

2.3 In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, the
management of the Company has to make some estimates and assumptions which may have an effect
on the amount shown for revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and also on the disclosures
concerning to assets and contingent liabilities, therefore the actual result may differ from the estimated
amount.

2.4  The financial report in Thai language is the official statutory financial report of the Company. The

financial report in English language has been translated from the Thai language financial report.
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3. Basis in Preparation of the Consolidation Financial Statement
3.1  Inpreparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Company will only take its subsidiary which
are under the control of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED into account, after having
eliminated the remaining balances and transactions among themselves, with the percentage of

shareholdings in subsidiary as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of
Shareholdings Shareholdings
Company’s Name Type of Business
As at 31 December 2020  As at 31 December 2019
% %
Prosper Property Co., Ltd. Property development 99.98 99.98
Prosper Precast Co., Ltd. Property development 99.00 99.00

3.2 The accounting period of the subsidiary is end on the same date as LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED.

3.3 In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, significant inter-assets and liabilities and inter-
transactions were already eliminated.

3.4 Accounting policy for subsidiary for the same type of transactions will utilize the same policy as the
Company.

3.5 Inpreparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Company is treated shareholding at 99.00%

of the subsidiaries, as holding of 100%.

4. Applied New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted the new and revised financial reporting standards which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The adoption of these financial reporting standards does
not have any significant impact on the financial statements. The adoption TFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
TFRS 16 Leases on the Group’s financial statements and discloses the new accounting policies that have been
applied from 1 January 2020 as in Note 4.1

The Group has adopted these financial reporting standards from 1 January 2020 under the modified
retrospective approach and the comparative figures have not been restated. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the changes in accounting policies are therefore recognised in the statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2020. However, the Group has adjustment with the retained earnings as at 1 January
2020. There is material impacts of the change in accounting policies due to the adoption these financial reporting

standards.
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4.1 The new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 January 2020
4.1.1  Financial Instruments
®  (lassification and measurement:
- Financial assets that are unit trust are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
Group make an irrevocable election to recognize the fair value change in profit or loss.
- Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost.
®  The impairment requirements relating to the accounting for expected credit losses on its
financial assets measured at amortised cost. It is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognized. The Group applies general approach for credit-
impaired consideration. Except for trade receivables, they are permitted to measure by
simplified approach for credit-impaired consideration.
4.1.2  Leases
Where the Group is the lessee, leases are recognised as a right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities at the commencement date. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of income over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The right-of-use assets is measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The right-of-use assets is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis.
The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate.
Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a

straight-line basis as expense in the statement of income.
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4.2 Impacts on the Financial Statements
The impact of first-time adoption of new financial reporting standards on the consolidated and
separate financial position as at 1 January 2020 are as follows:
Consolidated Financial Statements
The impacts of
As at TFRS 9 TFRS 16 As at
31 December 2019 1 January 2020
Baht Baht Baht Baht

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Other Non-Current Financial Assets
Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

Shareholders’ Equity

101,423,899.64

101,423,899.64
(101,423,899.64)

101,423,899.64

Retained Earnings - Unappropriated 5,047,006,928.92 21,843.93 5,047,028,772.85
Other Components of Shareholders' Equity 21,343.93 (21,843.93) -
Separate Financial Statements
The impacts of
As at TFRS 9 TFRS 16 As at

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
Other Non-Current Financial Assets
Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

Shareholders’ Equity

Retained Earnings - Unappropriated

Other Components of Shareholders' Equity
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31 December 2019

Baht

100,678,867.06

5,046,878,644.25

1,423.80

Baht

100,678,867.06

(100,678,867.06)

1,423.80

(1,423.80)

1 January 2020
Baht

100,678,867.06

5,046,880,068.05
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4.2.1 Financial Instruments

Classification and Measurement

As at 1 January 2020 (the date of initial application), the Group’s management has assessed
which business models applied to the financial assets and liabilities held by the Group and has classified
the financial assets and liabilities as below.

Consolidated Financial Statements
Classification and Measurement

FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total

As at 1 January 2020
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Baht

101,423,899.64

Baht

Baht

23,030,839.49

Baht

23,030,839.49

101,423,899.64

Overdrafts - 411,790.21 411,790.21
Bill of Exchange - 450,000,000.00  450,000,000.00
Debenture - 2,940,000,000.00 2,940,000,000.00

Separate Financial Statements

Classification and Measurement

FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
As at 1 January 2020
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 22,665,220.08 22,665,220.08
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 100,678,867.06 - 100,678,867.06
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts - 411,790.21 411,790.21
Bill of Exchange - 450,000,000.00  450,000,000.00

Long-Term loan

Debenture

23,000,000.00

2,940,000,000.00

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost approximate fair value.

23,000,000.00

2,940,000,000.00
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4.2.2  Leases

On adoption of TFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases, which had
previously been classified as operating leases under the principles of TAS 17 Leases. The right-of-use
assets were measured at amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. These liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using incremental borrowing rates.

The management of the Company and its subsidiaries are considered that not impact of these

standards to the financial statements in the year when they are adopted.

5. Financial Reporting Standards that became effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January
2021
The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting standards
and interpretations, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2021. These financial
reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards
with most of the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for
users of the standards.
The management of the Group is currently evaluating the impact of these standards to the

financial statements in the year when they are adopted.

6. Significant Accounting Policies
6.1  Measurements bases used in the Preparation of Financial Statements
Measurement bases used in the preparation of financial statements are historical cost measurement
basis and combination of variety measurement bases used. Some assets and liabilities that use other
measurement bases have been disclosed the measurement bases used in the particular accounting policies.
6.2  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposit in type of current accounts, savings accounts,

and 3 months fixed accounts without guarantee obligation.
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Inventories

Finished Goods is reflected according to the cost price or net realizable value whichever is
lower. Cost price is composed of cost of land acquisition, land development, project construction cost
and public utility system and direct other expenses.

Development in Progress is reflected according to the cost price or net realizable value whichever is
lower. Cost price is composed of cost of land acquisition, land development, project construction cost and
public utility system is recognized under the percentage of completion method which determined by the
project engineers, and direct other expenses of the project and interest expenses. Interest expenses will be
stopped to recognize as cost whenever the construction project have been completed or ceased.

Financial Instruments
Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification of financial assets depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are subsequently measured in the following categories:

®  Financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.

®  Financial assets measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss or through other

comprehensive income.

- Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate (“EIR”) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

- Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Group measures financial liabilities at fair value and reclassifies all
financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset and liabilities at its fair value plus
or minus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset and liabilities. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL

are expensed in profit or loss.
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6.5

6.6

6.7

Impairment of financial assets

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. and recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. It is based on its historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

Investments in subsidiary according to the separate financial statements are recorded in cost method
deducted by allowance for impairment of investments (if any).
Land Held to Development
Land held for development means the land the Company aims to hold for the future benefit and

recorded as non-current asset by reflecting according to the cost price which may adjust by allowance for
asset impairment. The cost price is composed by land cost and other related expense so as to acquire the
land.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Land are stated at cost on date the transaction occur, plant and equipment are stated at cost on date
the transaction occur less accumulated depreciation and accumulated loss on impairment (if any).

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on their estimated useful life as follows:

Land Improvements 20 Years
Buildings 20 Years
Buildings-Clubhouses and Swimming Pool 5 Years
Office Equipment 3and 5 Years
Office Furniture 5 Years
Vehicles 5and 10 Years

For central utility, clubhouses buildings, garden and playgrounds which were built before the Land
Allotment Act B.E. 2000 was enforceable, the Company will record as part of property, plant and equipment.
For central utility, clubhouses buildings, garden and playgrounds which were built after the Land Allotment
Act B.E. 2000 was enforceable and the Company intended as public service, the Company will record as part
of inventory and will amortize as cost of sales in proportion to saleable areas of each project.

Repair and maintenance is recognized as expense in profit or loss during the period that it is
incurred. Replacement cost is recognized as a part of carrying amount of assets when it is probable that
the Company will obtain the future economic benefits from that transaction and able to measure the cost
of that transaction reliably. Replacement cost will be depreciated by the basis of estimated useful life.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is computed from discrepancy
between net proceed and carrying amount and recognized as revenue or expense in the profit or loss

when incurred.
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6.9
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Intangible Assets and Amortization
Computer Software Licenses

Acquired specific computer software licenses are recognized as assets, are stated at initial cost
deducted by accumulated amortization and accumulated loss on impairment (if any). Amortization is
calculated by straight-line method over the estimated useful life for the period of 5 years.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production or
development of each project an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale. The Company will record to deferred interest and present as a part of inventories of
each project. The Company will cease the record when the project is complete for sale or faced with
problem of delay while the proceeding of further development incurs. For the interest incurred from loan
to acquire land held to development but not yet developed. The Company will record such interest expense
as expense in the profit or loss.

Impairment of Assets of Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of property plant and equipment other intangible assets of the Group are
assessed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated of asset or its cash-

generating unit to which the asset is included in the recognition of an impairment loss when the

recoverable amount less than the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit.

Impairment loss is recognized as expenses in profit or loss immediately.

Calculation of Recoverable Amount

- The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell of asset or the cash-
generating unit or its value in use.

- In assessing value in use of an asset by estimating the present value of future cash flows generated
by the asset, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

- The asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of Impairment Loss

- The loss on impairment of assets recognized in the prior period will be reversed if the estimation
for indicated net realizable value changes since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
carrying amount of the asset not exceed just to be the carrying amount that would have been (net of
accumulated depreciation or amortization), if no impairment loss had been recognized.

- Reversals of impairment loss will be recognized as income in profit or loss immediately.
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6.11

Leases

Leases - where the Group is the lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

the Group recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, initial direct costs and estimated costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any incentive received.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if the rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are as follows:

® fixed payments including in-substance fixed payments;

® variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the

index or rate as at the commencement date;

® amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

® the exercise price, under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to

exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period; and

® payments of penalties for early termination of a lease if the Company is reasonably certain

to terminate early.

To apply a cost model, the Group measures the ROU asset at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
ROU asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of the lease term. However, if
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term
or if the cost of the ROU asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option, the Group
depreciates the ROU asset from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the
underlying asset. The useful life of the ROU asset is determined on the same basis as those of

property, plant and equipment.
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The lease liability is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from the following items:

® a change in an index or a rate used to determine those payments.

® 3 change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual

value guarantee.

® the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or

termination option.

When the lease liability is re-measured to reflect changes to the lease payments, the Group
recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the ROU
asset. However, if the carrying amount of the ROU asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of
the remeasurement in profit or loss.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

the Group has elected not to recognise ROU assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. the Group recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

6.12 Employees Benefit
Short-term Employee Benefits
- The Company is recognized salary, wage, bonus and social security fund are expenses on the date
that the transaction occur.

Post-employment Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plan

the Company operates a provident fund which is funded by payments from employees and by the
Company. The assets for which are held in a separate trust fund. Contributions to the provident fund are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
- Defined Benefit Plan

the Company has the employee benefit obligation in case of retirement or termination under the
labor law by an actuary to calculate on an actuarial technique the said employee benefit obligation. The
said employee benefit obligation is discounted using the projected unit credit method and presents as non-
current liabilities. Hereby, the costs associated with employee benefits will be recognized as expense in
profit or loss so as to spread the cost over the employment period. All actuarial gains and losses are

recognized in other comprehensive income.
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6.13

6.14

6.15

Provision

The Company recognized provision when it is probable that there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset when, and only when, the reimbursement is virtually certain after the provision is settled.
Recognition of Revenues
- Revenues from sales of land and houses and condominium

the Group is recognized revenues from sales of land and houses and condominium as income
when control of the real estate is transferred to the buyer that the Company retains neither continuing
managerial involvement nor effective control over the land and house and condominium sold, directly
and indirectly. The recognized amount revenue and cost incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably. The initial down payment and the installment received that have not yet fit the
criteria for revenue recognition shall be record under deposits received from sales of land and houses
condominium.

Consideration paid to customers, the Company is recongnized registration fee for the transfer
of houses or paids common area fee to the juristic person of house projects on behalf of customers as
net offsetting with revenue from sales.

- Costs to obtain a contract

the Group is recognized commission paid to obtain a customer contract as an asset and
amortised to expenses on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition.
An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset recognized exceeds
the remaining amount of consideration that the entity expects to receive less direct costs.

- Interest income is recognized on the effective interest rate.
Recognition of Cost of Sales

Cost of land and houses and condominium sold consist of cost of land, land improvement, design
fees, construction, public utilities and other related cost.

the Group is recognized cost of land and houses and condominium sold, the Group allocates cost of
the entire development anticipated to incur of each project (considering actual cost) to land and houses add in
accordance with selling area of each project and recognized as cost of sales in percentage of sold area of each
project.

Promotion expenses specified in the contracts with customers are given to customers when they
register the transfer of houses, including free of charge items are component parts of houses, which are the
main performance obligations under the contracts. Therefore, the Company is to record these costs as costs of

sales when the customers register the transfer of houses.

242 Annual Report 2020



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Selling expenses directly associated with projects, such as specific business tax and transfer fee are

recognized when sale incurred.
Recognition of Expenses

Expenses are recognized on accrual basis.
Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax Income tax expense is recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that related to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
recognized directly in equity which will recognize in other comprehensive income or recognized directly in
equity as same as that items.

Current Tax

The Group Current tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation, using the tax
rates enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred Tax

The Group Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted
at the end of reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares held by outside shareholders outstanding during the year.

There is no calculation of the fully diluted earnings per share since it has no ordinary share
equivalents.

Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The appropriation of retained earnings is attributable to the Public Company Act B.E.1992.

The Company will appropriate the retained earnings when it is approved at the board of directors

meeting which will be reported to the shareholders’ meeting.
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6.20 Fair Value Measurement

6.21

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Group applies a quoted market
price in an active market to measure the assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by
relevant financial reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or
when a quoted market price is not available, the Company will measure fair value using valuation technique
that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categories of input to be used in fair
value measurement as follows:

Level 1 in put are quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 in put are other observable inputs either directly or indirectly, for the assets or liabilities
other than quoted price included within Level 1 inputs.

Level 3 in put are unobservable inputs for the assets and liabilities.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group will determine the necessary of any transfers
between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with financial reporting standards, the
Company’s management had to make some judgment and estimates which may have an effect on the
amount shown in financial statements and notes to financial statements, therefore the actual result may
differ from the estimated amount. Significant estimates and provisions are as follows:

Project Development Costs Estimation

In calculating cost of land and houses residential condominium units sold, the Company have
to estimate all project development costs, comprising land and land improvement costs, design and
construction costs, public utility costs and other related costs. The management estimates these costs
based on their business experience and revisit the estimations on a periodical basis or when the actual

costs incurred significantly vary from the estimated costs.
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Property, Plant and Equipment, Land Held to Development and Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make
estimated useful lives and residual values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to review
estimated useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment and land held
to development for impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in the period when it
is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments
regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, and are subject to impairment
if there is an indication they may be impaired.

Deferred Tax Assets

The management has to use judgment in the consideration to recognize deferred tax assets by
estimating the future taxable profit in each period and assess the probable that the Company will have
sufficient future taxable profit which can be utilized.

Post-Employment Benefits

The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuations.
Inherent within these calculations are assumptions as to discount rates, future salary increases, turnover
rate, mortality rate and other demographic factors. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management selects an interest rate that reflects the current economic situation, and the mortal ity rate
from mortality rate table which is publicized in Thailand. Actual post-retirement costs may ultimately
differ from these estimates.

Provision for Maintenance of Project Utilities
The Company estimates the contribution to the housing juristic persons using the rate specified

by the regulator and the budgeted public utilities costs as a basis for the calculation.
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7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consist of:
Consolidated Separate
Financial Statements Financial Statements
As at As at As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Cash 4,888,440.24 7,113,848.83 4,860,337.74 7,082,101.33
Current Accounts Deposit 6,991,971.48 10,041,301.41 6,991,971.48 10,041,301.41
Savings Accounts Deposit 23,133,704.57 5,875,689.25 18,355,335.61 5,541,817.34
Cheque on Hand 5,719,340.23 - 5,719,340.23 -
Total 40,733,456.52 23,030,839.49 35,926,985.06 22,665,220.08

8. Other Current Receivables

Consist of:
Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements
As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht
Prepaid Expenses 67,816,209.44 71,509,144.23
Advance Payment 8,358,138.86 8,926,943.15
Advance Payment for Goods 2,329,809.30 5,409,238.82
Others 3,354,073.15 2,833,815.25
Total 81,858,230.75 88,679,141.45
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9.

Inventories

Consist of:

Finished Goods
Demonstration Land and
Houses for Sale
Land and Houses
Development in Progress
Land
Work in Construction
Deferred Borrowing Costs
Deferred Land Development Cost
Deferred Utilities
Work in Process — Furniture

Total

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2020

Baht

95,668,429.65
176,799,145.80

2,305,321,294.39
3,265,905,656.90
444,449,615.99
586,329,849.96
3,066,383,793.84

3,846,501.40

As at
31 December 2019

Baht

106,884,674.78
224,731,641.35

2,394,508,238.93
3,305,652,565.10
408,111,902.66
609,469,541.47
3,009,916,803.88

3,846,501.40

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2020

Baht

95,668,429.65
176,799,145.80

2,305,321,294.39
3,265,905,656.90
444,449,615.99
594,714,849.96
3,066,383,793.84

3,846,501.40

As at

31 December 2019

Baht

106,884,674.78
224,731,641.35

2,394,508,238.93
3,305,652,565.10
408,111,902.66
612,469,541.47
3,009,916,803.88

3,846,501.40

9,944,704,287.93

10,063,121,869.57

9,953,089,287.93

10,066,121,869.57

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had mortgaged land and construction, the carrying

amount in amount of Baht 3,893.31 million and in amount of Baht 4,299.48 million respectively, as collateral

against credit from financial institution as in Note 16.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company has capitalized the borrowing costs as

development in progress in amount of Baht 64.23 million and Baht 96.75 million, respectively, which it is the

borrowing costs that are incurred from the borrowing for the project development.
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10. Other Non-Current Financial Assets/Investments Held as Available-for-Sale
For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, other non-current financial assets/ investments held
as available-for-sale are unit trust, which have the movement as follows:
Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended  For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Beginning Carrying Amount 101,423,899.64 426,748,453.50 100,678,867.06 426,012,375.02
Purchase of Unit Trust 1,595,000,000.00 1,065,000,000.00 1,595,000,000.00 1,065,000,000.00
Disposal of Unit Trust (690,680,000.00)  (1,392,000,000.00) (690,680,000.00) (1,392,000,000.00)
Gain from Disposal of Unit Trust 148,125.17 2,111,265.38 148,125.17 2,111,265.38
Change of Fair Value 1,604,738.94 (435,819.24) 1,601,474.25 (444,773.34)
Ending Carrying Amount 1,007,496,763.75 101,423,899.64 1,006,748,466.48 100,678,867.06

The fair value measurement of other non-current financial assets/investments held as available-for-sale
which are investments in opened-end mutual fund using the net asset value that disseminated by the fund as at

the date of statement of financial position which are Level 1 inputs.

11. Investments in Subsidiary

Consist of:
Separate Financial Statements
Name of Entities Nature of business Paid-up Investment Cost Method Dividend Income
Share Capital ratio As at As at For the year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
Million Baht % Baht Baht Baht Baht
Prosper Property Property development
Co., Ltd. for sales 20,000,000.00 99.98 19,996,000.00 19,996,000.00 - -
Prosper Pecast Property development
Co., Ltd. for sales 5,000,000.00 99.00 5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00 - -

24,996,000.00 24,996,000.00 - -
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12. Land Held to Development

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, Land held to development has movement as follows:

Beginning Balance
Purchase during the year
Sale during the year
Transfer during the year

Ending Balance

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht
768,084,135.03 830,686,035.03
932,480,925.00 138,492,350.00
(737,980,749.00) (201,094,250.00)
962,584,311.03 768,084,135.03
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As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had mortgaged land and building of head office,
the carrying amount in amount of Baht 41.33 million equally for both periods, as collateral against credit

from financial institutions as in Note 16.

14. Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences, using the liability method
and applying a principal tax rate of 20%. The deferred taxation related to the temporary differences between

the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities of the Company are summarised belows:
Consolidated Financial Statements
As at Recognized Recognized As at

31 December 2019 in Profit (Loss) in Other 31 December 2020

for the year Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

Deferred Tax Assets
Inventories
Estimate Repair Cost
Non- Current Provisions of
Employee Benefit
Total
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Other Non-Current Financial Assets
Total

Net
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Baht Baht Baht Baht
16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
1,400,000.00 - - 1,400,000.00
10,707,113.08 1,330,851.19 (252,333.61) 11,785,630.66
12,123,675.20 1,330,851.19 (252,333.61) 13,202,192.78

(5,460.97)

(302,195.16)

(307,656.13)

(5,460.97)

(302,195.16)

(307,656.13)

12,118,214.23

1,028,656.03

(252,333.61)

12,894,536.65
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Consolidated Financial Statements

As at Recognized Recognized As at
31 December 2018 in Profit (Loss) in Other 31 December 2019
for the year Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred Tax Assets
Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
Estimate Repair Cost - 1,400,000.00 - 1,400,000.00
Non- Current Provisions of
Employee Benefit 7,195,980.88 3,544,610.60 (33,478.40) 10,707,113.08
Total 7,212,543.00 4,944,610.60 (33,478.40) 12,123,675.20
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Investments Held as Available-for-Sale (92,624.82) - 87,163.85 (5,460.97)
Total (92,624.82) - 87,163.85 (5,460.97)
Net 7,119,918.18 4,944,610.60 53,685.45 12,118,214.23

Separate Financial Statements

As at Recognized Recognized As at
31 December 2019 in Profit (Loss) in Other 31 December 2020
for the year Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Deferred Tax Assets

Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12

Estimate Repair Cost 1,400,000.00 - - 1,400,000.00

Non- Current Provisions of

Employee Benefit 10,707,113.08 1,330,851.19 (252,333.61) 11,785,630.66

Total 12,123,675.20 1,330,851.19 (252,333.61) 13,202,192.78
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Other Non-Current Financial Assets (355.94) (301,542.22) - (301,898.16)

Total (355.94) (301,542.22) - (301,898.16)

Net 12,123,319.26 1,029,308.97 (252,333.61) 12,900,294.62
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Deferred Tax Assets
Inventories
Estimate Repair Cost
Non- Current Provisions of
Employee Benefit
Total

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Investments Held as Available-for-Sale

Total

Net

15. Other Non-Current Assets

Consist of:

Deposit

Deposit for Land
Electric Insurance
Other

Total
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As at

31 December 2018

Separate Financial Statements

Recognized
in Profit (Loss)

for the year

Recognized

in Other

Comprehensive

Income (Expense)

As at

31 December 2019

Baht Baht Baht Baht
16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
- 1,400,000.00 - 1,400,000.00
7,195,980.88 3,544,610.60 (33,478.40) 10,707,113.08
7,212,543.00 4,944,610.60 (33,478.40) 12,123,675.20
(89,310.61) - 88,954.67 (355.94)
(89,310.61) - 88,954.67 (355.94)
7,123,232.39 4,944,610.60 55,476.27 12,123,319.26

As at

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

Separate Financial Statements

As at

As at

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht Baht Baht
4,139,888.62 4,397,601.47 4,139,888.62 4,397,601.47
44,900,000.00 66,600,000.00 44,900,000.00 66,600,000.00
6,875,227.83 6,925,730.27 6,875,227.83 6,925,730.27
2,170,412.91 2,590,152.41 2,170,412.91 2,590,125.05
58,085,529.36 80,513,484.15 58,085,529.36 80,513,456.79
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16. Credit Facility and Guarantee

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has credits in form of letter of guarantee in amount of Baht
3,344.70 million, credits in form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 1,534.70 million, credits in form of
overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million and credits in form of long-term borrowings in amount of Baht
592.05 million, the Company had mortgaged land and construction as in Note 9 and 13 as collateral.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has credits in form of letter of guarantee in amount of Baht
2,890.90 million, credits in form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 1,072.30 million, credits in form of
overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million and credits in form of long-term borrowings in amount of Baht

1,015.50 million, the Company had mortgaged land and construction as in Note 9 and 13 as collateral.

17. Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Consist of:
Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht
Overdrafts 1,102,252.18 411,790.21
Bill of Exchange 350,000,000.00 450,000,000.00
Total 351,102,252.18 450,411,790.21

As at 31 December 2020, short-term borrowings from the financial institution in amount of Baht
350.00 million, respectively as in form of bill of exchange which has maturity in 149-184 days respectively,
carried the interest rate of 2.05-2.15 percent per year

As at 31 December 2019, short-term borrowings from the financial institution in amount of Baht
450.00 million, respectively as in form of bill of exchange which has maturity in 124-182 days respectively,

carried the interest rate of 1.83-1.85 percent per year

18. Trade and Other Current Payables

Consist of:
Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

As at As at As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Trade Payables 73,748,718.59 136,329,869.01 73,748,718.59 136,329,869.01
Other Current Payables 391,531,795.73 327,809,038.14 391,688,535.86 328,428,270.97
Total 465,280,514.32 464,138,907.15 465,437,254.45 464,758,139.98
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As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other current payables as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2020

As at As at As at

31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Accrued Expenses 321,071,114.54 273,583,705.72 321,059,114.54 273,571,705.72
Accrued Interest 17,115,917.41 13,213,436.67 17,284,657.54 13,844,669.50
Retention Payable 12,614,600.12 14,982,322.93 12,614,600.12 14,982,322.93
Deferred Revenues 8,940,000.00 2,685,000.00 8,940,000.00 2,685,000.00
Others 31,790,163.66 23,344,572.82 31,790,163.66 23,344,572.82
Total 391,531,795.73 327,809,038.14 391,688,535.86 328,428,270.97

19. Provision of Liabilities

Consist of:

Short-Term Provisions for
Construction Cost of Project Utilities

Long-Term Provisions for
Maintenance of Project Utilities

Total

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht
754,633,086.41 764,891,084.23
188,476,363.61 166,604,222.68
943,109,450.02 931,495,306.91

Long-term provisions for maintenance of project utilities are provisions for guarantee the

maintenance of project utilities according to the Land Allocation Act B.E. 2000 in the rate of 7% from

estimated construction cost of project utilities which the Company will settle such provision to housing

juristic person to spend in the maintenance of project utilities when the housing juristic person has been

established according to the Land Allocation Act B.E. 2000.
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20. Debenture
Consist of:
Consolidated/ Separate
Financial Statements
As at As at

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2017 - 500,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2017 - 70,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 3/2017 - 370,000,000.00

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2018 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2018 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 3/2018 400,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 4/2018 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2019 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2019 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2020 500,000,000.00 -

Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2020 525,000,000.00 -

Total 3,025,000,000.00 2,940,000,000.00

Less Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses (3,711,375.13) (2,952,689.98)

Carrying Amount 3,021,288,624.87 2,937,047,310.02

Less Current Portion (999,820,972.96) (939,871,754.54)

Net 2,021,467,651.91 1,997,175,555.48
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, Debenture has movement as follows:

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht

Beginning Balance 2,937,047,310.02 3,236,338,179.59
Issued Debenture During for the Period 1,025,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Repayment During for the Period (940,000,000.00) (800,000,000.00)
Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses (2,768,625.00) (802,500.00)
Amortization of Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses 2,009,939.85 1,511,630.43
Ending Balance 3,021,288,624.87 2,937,047,310.02

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, debentures are classified by redemption maturity as follows:

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht
Less than 1 year 1,000,000,000.00 940,000,000.00
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 2,025,000,000.00 2,000,000,000.00
Total 3,025,000,000.00 2,940,000,000.00

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, totally debentures was unsubordinated secured and holder name
definable debentures. The maturity of debentures for 1 years to 5 years from issued date with interest rate is
2.90-4.50 per year, debentures have fair value in amount of Baht 3,057.55 million and Baht 2,983.24 million
respectively, Hereby, the fair value measurement of debentures using the value that disseminated by the Thai
Bond Market Association as at the date of statement of financial position which are Level 2 inputs.

The Company have to maintain the debt to equity ratio not exceeding 2:1 equally for two the year.
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21. Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits has detail as follows:

Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits at Beginning of Year
Included in Profit or Loss:
Past Service Costs
Current Service Cost
Interest Expenses
Included in Other Comprehensive Income:
(Gain) Loss on Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
Experience Adjustments
Experience Demographic Assumptions
Experience Financial Assumptions
Paid Employee Benefits During the Year

Non-Current Provisions for Employee Benefits at End of Year

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht
53,535,565.30 35,979,904.30
- 10,504,426.00
7,194,395.00 7,256,853.00

871,061.00 1,205,474.00

(968,052.00) (167,392.00)
(1,248,268.00) -
954,652.00 -

(1,411,200.00) (1,243,700.00)

58,928,153.30 53,535,565.30

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the weighted average duration of the non-current provisions for

employee benefits is 9 years and 10 years respectively.

The key assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation are summarized as follows:

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

Discount rate
Average salary increase rate
Turnover rate

Retirement age

For the year ended
31 December 2020
1.49% per annum
6.00% per annum
5.00 - 35.00% per annum

55 and 60 year

For the year ended

31 December 2019
2.65% per annum
6.00% - 7.00% per annum
15.00 —30.00% per annum

55 and 60 year
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Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes to each relevant actuarial assumption, holding other assumptions constant,

would have affected non-current provisions for employee benefit which are summarized as follows:

Mortality rate
Rate increase 1.00%
Rate decrease 1.00%
Discount rate
Rate increase 1.00%
Rate decrease 1.00%
Average salary increase rate
Rate increase 1.00%
Rate decrease 1.00%
Turnover Rate
Rate increase 10.00%

Rate decrease 10.00%

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2020

Baht

(84,612.30)

76,107.70

(4,237,983.30)

4,673,765.70

5,464,094.70

(4,997,036.30)

(1,478,979.30)

1,811,208.70

As at

31 December 2019

Baht

(490,180.00)

446,451.00

(2,990,220.00)

3,358,710.00

4,133,670.00

(4,583,248.00)

(1,650,261.00)

1,384,108.00

Although this analysis does not take into account the full distribution of expected cash flows under

the said project But showing estimates of sensitivity of various assumptions

22. Share Capital

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Consist of:
Par Value
Baht
Authorized Share Capital
Beginning Ordinary Shares 1.00
Ending Ordinary Shares 1.00

Issued and Paid-up Share Capital
Beginning Ordinary Shares 1.00

Ending Ordinary Share 1.00
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Number of Share Amount
Share Baht
925,000,000 925,000,000.00
925,000,000 925,000,000.00
924,999,441 924,999,441.00
924,999,441 924,999,441.00

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Par Value

Baht

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Number of Share Amount
Share Baht
925,000,000 925,000,000.00
925,000,000 925,000,000.00
924,999,441 924,999,441.00
924,999,441 924,999,441.00




23.

24,

25.

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Legal Reserve
In accordance with the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 1992, the Company must allocate a
portion of its annual net profit as legal reserve not less than five percent of the annual net profit less any
accumulated losses brought forward (if any) until this reserve has Not less than ten percent of the registered

capital

Other Reserves
In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held 26 February 2020, it had
passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit in the rate of 1-1.5 percent per quarter, this is to

support various events that may occur from factors beyond expectations.

Dividends Payment

25.1 In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 13 August 2020, it had passed a
resolution to pay a dividend of Baht 0.25 per share from the Company’s performance in before half year
(on 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2020) totaling Baht 231.25 million to be paid within on 11 September 2020.

25.2 In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2020, held on
29 April 2020, it had passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2019 to pay cash
dividend at the rate of Baht 0.385 per share, totaling of Baht 356.12 million which the Company had
already paid the interim dividend payment at the rate of Baht 0.175 per share, totaling of Baht 161.87
million on 13 September 2019, and will pay the final payment at the rate of Baht 0.21 per share, totaling
of Baht 194.25 million, will be paid on 8 May 2020.

25.3 In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 14 August 2019, it had passed a
resolution to pay a dividend of Baht 0.175 per share from the Company’s performance in before half year
(on 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019) totaling Baht 161.87 million to be paid within on 13 September 2019.

25.4 In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2019, held on
24 April 2019, it had passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2018 to pay cash
dividend at the rate of Baht 0.34 per share, totaling of Baht 314.50 million which the Company had
already paid the interim dividend payment at the rate of Baht 0.165 per share, totaling of Baht 152.62
million on 7 September 2018, and will pay the final payment at the rate of Baht 0.175 per share, totaling
of Baht 161.88 million, will be paid on 10 May 2019.
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26. Capital Management

The objectives of the Company’s capital management are to maintain its abilities to continue as a going

concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the consolidated financial statements present debt to equity ratio as

0.67:1 and 0.75:1, respectively and separate financial statements present debt to equity ratio as 0.67:1 and 0.76:1,

respectively.

27. Revenue from Sale

Consist of:

Revenue from Sale
Discount

Net

28. Income Tax (Expense) Revenue

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended
31 December 2020
Baht
5,765,468,521.64

(16,646,916.64)

For the year ended
31 December 2019
Baht
4,653,805,529.90

(30,769,241.90)

5,748,821,605.00

4,623,036,288.00

28.1 Income tax which is recognized in the profit for the year consist of:

Current tax

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue for the Current Year
Deferred tax

Deferred Income Tax (Expense) Revenue
Income Tax (Expense) Revenue with is

Recognized in Profit for the Year
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Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Bath Bath

(336,408,647.41)  (235,525,467.78)

1,028,656.03 4,944,610.60

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Bath

(335,344,333.16)

1,029,308.97

Bath

(235,460,290.80)

4,944,610.60

(335,379,991.38)  (230,580,857.18)

(334,315,024.19)

(230,515,680.20)
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The differences between income tax (expense) revenue which were calculated from accounting

profit at the tax rate for year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 in 20%, equally, can be presented as follows:

Profit before Income Tax

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue calculated

at the Tax Rate of 20%
Expenses that are not Deductible for Income Tax
Income Tax (Expense) Revenue which is recognized

in the profit for the year

For the year ended

Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2020 31
Baht

1,668,551,365.16

For the year ended

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended  For the year ended

December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht

Baht

1,122,095,691.64  1,668,614,556.57 1,121,769,806.73

(333,710,273.03)
(1,669,718.35)

(224,419,138.33)  (333,722,911.31) (224,353,961.35)

(6,161,718.85) (592,112.88) (6,161,718.85)

(335,379,991.38)

(230,580,857.18)  (334,315,024.19) (230,515,680.20)

28.2 Tax (Expense) Income which is recognized in other comprehensive income (expense) consist of:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined

Benefit Plans

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans

Total

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount
Before Tax

Baht

1,261,668.00

Income Tax
(Expense) Revenue

Baht

(252,333.61)

Net of Tax

Baht

1,009,334.39

(435,819.24) 87,163.85 (348,655.39)
167,392.00 (33,478.40) 133,913.60
(268,427.24) 53,685.45 (214,741.79)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined

Benefit Plans

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring Investments Held as
Available-for-Sale

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined
Benefit Plans

Total

29. Provident Fund

Separate Financial Statements

Amount Income Tax Net of Tax
Before Tax (Expense) Revenue
Baht Baht Baht
1,261,668.00 (252,333.61) 1,009,334.39
(444,773.34) 88,954.67 (355.818.67)
167,392.00 (33,478.40) 133,913.60
(277,381.34) 55,476.27 (221,905.07)

The Company established a contributory registered provident fund in accordance with the Provident

Fund Act.B.E. 1987, which comprise of the employees’ contribution to the fund minimum 5% of their basic

salary and the Company also contribute to the fund at 5%. The provident fund is managed Provident Fund.

The benefit will be paid to the employees whom retire in accordance to the fund’s regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has paid contribution to provident fund in the

amount of Baht 5.26 million and Baht 4.56 million, respectively.

30. Earnings Per Share

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company has calculated basic earnings per share

by dividing profit for the year with the weighted average number during the year of ordinary shares as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended

31 December 2020

Baht
Profit for the Year 1,333,171,373.78
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary
Share During the Year (Shares) 924,999,441
Basic Earnings per Share 1.44
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For the year ended

31 December 2019

Baht

891,511,834.46

924,999,441

0.96

Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht
1,334,299,532.38 891,254,126.53
924,999,441 924,999,441
1.44 0.96
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31. Expenses by Nature
Consist of:
Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht Baht
Change in Finished Goods and Work in Construction 98,395,648.88 (506,085,954.83)
Construction Materials Used and Construction Other Expenses 3,226,552,654.11 3,158,651,580.98
Employees Expense 336,516,323.26 296,120,730.24
Depreciation and Amortization 50,910,327.91 50,987,606.36
Management Remuneration Expenses 55,134,479.00 50,975,502.55

Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee
Billboard Rental Expenses

Selling Promotion Expense

32. Segment Information

201,123,739.00
80,627,264.37
142,548,494.62

174,471,387.50
75,291,448.55
141,911,677.71

The Company and subsidiary operates in only one main sector, namely business of real estate

development in type of allotted house for sale and operate in one geographic which is Thailand. Thus all income

profit and assets as shown on the financial statements were related to the business sector and geographical area

as already said and for the year 2020 and 2019, the Company have no major customer with revenue of 10

percent or more of the Company’s revenues in the consolidated financial statements.
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33. Financial Instruments

33.1 Financial Risk Management Policy

The Group is not hold or issue financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

33.2 Interest Rate Risk

Risk on interest is derived from fluctuation of interest rate in the future which affect the

financial performance and cash flows of the Group. The Group had assets and liabilities which is

exposed for interest rate risk as follows:

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts

Bill of Exchange

Debenture

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts

Bill of Exchange

Debenture
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Floating

Interest Rate

23,133,704.57

1,102,252.18

Floating

Interest Rate

5,875,689.25

411,790.21

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2020

Fixed

Interest Rates

350,000,000.00
3,025,000,000.00

17,599,751.95

Total

40,733,456.52

1,102,252.18
350,000,000.00
3,025,000,000.00

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2019

Fixed

Interest Rates

450,000,000.00

2,940,000,000.00

17,155,150.24

Total

23,030,839.49

411,790.21
450,000,000.00

2,940,000,000.00

Interest Rates

(%)

0.125-2.000

5.84-5.95

2.05-2.15
2.90-4.50

Interest Rates

(%)

0.05-2.25

6.95

1.83-1.85

2.95-4.50



Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts

Bill of Exchange
Short-Term Borrowings
Long-Term Borrowings

Debenture

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts

Bill of Exchange
Long-Term Borrowings

Debenture

33.3 Credit Risk

Floating

Interest Rate

18,355,335.61

1,102,252.18

Floating

Interest Rate

5,541,817.34

411,790.21

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Separate Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2020

Fixed

Interest Rates

350,000,000.00

11,000,000.00

3,025,000,000.00

Non-interest

bearing

17,571,649.45

5,000,000.00

Total

35,926,985.06

1,102,252.18
350,000,000.00
11,000,000.00
5,000,000.00

3,025,000,000.00

Separate Financial Statements

Fixed

Interest Rates

450,000,000.00

18,000,000.00

2,940,000,000.00

Non-interest

bearing

17,123,402.74

5,000,000.00

As at 31 December 2019

Total

22,665,220.08

411,790.21
450,000,000.00

23,000,000.00

2,940,000,000.00

Interest Rates

(%)

0.125-2.000

5.84-5.95
2.05-2.15
2.00

2.90-4.50

Interest Rates

(%)

0.05-2.25

6.95
1.83-1.85
2.00

3.25-4.50

The Group constitutes low risk from credit provision since given the sale of property is sale

which determined that liability from customers is fully repayable before the delivery of property is

fulfilled.

33.4 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Owing to mainly financial assets and financial liabilities were classified as short-term type

and several borrowings have an interest rate nearby the market rate, thence the management of the

Group believes that the fair value of such financial assets and liabilities do not materially differ from

the carrying amount.
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33.5 Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
As at 1 January 2020 (the date of initial application of new financial reporting standards), the
Group’s management has assessed which business models applied to the financial assets and financial
liabilities held by the Company and has classified the financial assets and financial liabilities as below.
(The balances as at 1 January 2020 has disclosed in Note 4.2.1.)
Consolidated Financial Statements

Classification and Measurement

FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
As at 31 December 2020
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 40,733,456.52 40,733,456.52
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 1,007,496,763.75 - - 1,007,496,763.75
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts - - 1,102,252.18 1,102,252.18
Bill of Exchange - - 350,000,000.00  350,000,000.00
Debenture - - 3,025,000,000.00 3,025,000,000.00

Separate Financial Statements

Classification and Measurement

FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
As at 31 December 2020
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 35,926,985.06 35,926,985.06
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 1,006,748,466.48 - - 1,006,748,466.48
Financial Liabilities
Overdrafts - - 1,102,252.18 1,102,252.18
Bill of Exchange - - 350,000,000.00  350,000,000.00
Short-Term Borrowings - - 11,000,000.00 11,000,000.00
Long-Term Borrowings - - 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
Debenture - - 3,025,000,000.00 3,025,000,000.00
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As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has financial assets which are recognized at fair

value are categorized by the fair value hierarchy as follows:

As at 31 December 2020
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss.
Debt Instruments
As at 31 December 2019
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Debt Instruments

As at 31 December 2020

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Debt Instruments

As at 31 December 2019

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Debt Instruments

Carrying
Amount

Baht

1,007,496,763.75

101,423,899.64

Carrying
Amount

Baht

1,006,748,466.48

100,678,867.06

Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Inputs Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht

1,007,496,763.75

1,007,496,763.75

101,423,899.64 - - 101,423,899.64
Separate Financial Statements
Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Inputs Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht

1,006,748,466.48

100,678,867.06

1,006,748,466.48

100,678,867.06
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As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has financial short and long term liabilities which have

fair value disclosures are categorized by the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Consolidated/ Separate Financial Statements

Fair Value
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Amount Inputs Inputs Inputs Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
As at 31 December 2020
Current Financial Liability
Bill of Exchange 350,000,000.00 - 346,560,448.00 - 346,560,448.00
Non Current Financial Liability
Debenture 3,025,000,000.00 - 3,057,554,914.00 - 3,057,554,914.00
As at 31 December 2019
Current Financial Liability
Bill of Exchange 450,000,000.00 - 447,578,865.50 - 447,578,865.50
Non Current Financial Liability
Debenture 2,940,000,000.00 - 2,983,240,330.50 - 2,983,240,330.50

34. Transactions with Related Parties

The Company has significant business transactions with the related parties. Such transactions, which

have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company and those related

parties are in ordinary course of business, which are summarized as follows:

34.1 Relationship with the Company

Name Nature of Relationship
Prosper Property Co., Ltd. Subsidiary by direct shareholding
Prosper Precast Co., Ltd. Subsidiary by direct shareholding
Related Persons Director of the Company

34.2 Inter-transactions

Pricing Policies
Annual Interest Rate
Inter-Transaction with Subsidiary

Interest Expense at 2.00%
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Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Baht Baht

258,493.13 359,999.98



34.3 Inter-outstanding balances

Borrowings

Subsidiary
Beginning Balance
Increase During the Period
Decrease During the Period
Ending Balance

Related Person
Beginning Balance
Increase During the Period
Decrease During the Period
Ending Balance

Less Long - Term Loan to
Related Person

Net
Accrued Interest

Subsidiary

31 December 2020

Consolidated Financial Statements

As at As at

31 December 2019

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2020

As at

31 December 2019

Baht Baht Baht Baht
- - 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
- - (7,000,000.00) -
- - 11,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00

(4,900,000.00) (4,900,000.00) - -

100,000.00 100,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
- - 168,740.13 631,232.83

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the borrowings from subsidiary was in type loan agreement

of repayment for 2 years, with the interest rate at 2.00% per annum, due at 21 December 2021.

344 Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

Short-Term Employee Benefits
Post-Employee Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plans
- Defined Benefit Plans

Total

For the year ended
31 December 2020
Baht

50,294,441.00

1,830,192.00
3,009,846.00

For the year ended
31 December 2019
Baht

39,507,380.00

1,722,568.55
9,745,554.00

55,134,479.00

50,975,502.55
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35. Cash Flows Information
35.1 Non-Cash Flow Transactions

Consist of:

Transfer Land Held to Development to be Inventories
Transfer Deposit to be Land to Inventories
Transfer assets to be Inventories
Amortized Debenture Issuance Expenses
to be Inventories
Gain from Unit Trust Unrealized

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Employee Defined that

will be Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

(Expenxe)

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht

671,480,749.00
66,500,000.00

2,136,122.73

2,009,939.85

1,604,738.94

1,261,668.00

35.2  Changes in Liabilities arising from Financing Activities

Baht

201,094,250.00
74,650,000.00

2,680,620.26

1,511,630.43

(435,819.24)

167,392.00

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Baht

671,480,749.00
66,500,000.00

2,136,122.73

2,009,939.85

1,601,474.25

1,261,668.00

Baht

201,094,250.00
74,650,000.00

2,680,620.26

1,511,630.43

(444,773.34)

167,392.00

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

have the movements as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings
from Financial Institutions
Debenture
- Current
- Non Current
Accrued Interest
Accrued Dividend

Total
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As at
1 January 2020

Baht

450,411,790.21

939,871,754.54
1,997,175,555.48
13,213,436.67
1,148,695.08

Changes from

Financing Cash Flows

Baht

(99,309,538.03)

(940,000,000.00)
1,022,231,375.00

(14,998,328.72)
(425,464,616.59)

Other Changes

Baht

999,949,218.42
(997,939,278.57)
18,900,809.46

425,498,672.86

As at
31 December 2020

Baht

351,102,252.18

999,820,972.96
2,021,467,651.91
17,115917.41
1,182,751.35

3,401,821,231.98

(457,541,108.34)

446,409,422.17

3,390,689,545.81




As at

1 January 2019

Baht
Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings
from Financial Institutions 19,415,326.57
Debenture
- Current 799,803,120.25

- Non Current 2,436,535,059.34

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Changes from
Financing Cash Flows

Baht

430,996,463.64

(800,000,000.00)
499,197,500.00
(25,989,343.33)

(323,376,999.77)

Other Changes

Baht

940,068,634.29
(938,557,003.86)
24,250,067.68
323,749,458.76

As at
31 December 2019

Baht

450,411,790.21

939,871,754.54
1,997,175,555.48
13,213,436.67
1,148,695.08

(219,172,379.46)

349,511,156.87

3,401,821,231.98

Accrued Interest 14,952,712.32
Accrued Dividend 776,236.09
Total 3,271,482,454.57

As at

1 January 2020

Baht
Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from
Financial Institutions 450,411,790.21

Borrowings from Subsidiary 18,000,000.00

Debenture
- Current 939,871,754.54
- Non Current 1,997,175,555.48

Accrued Interest 13,844,669.50

Accrued Dividend 1,148,695.08

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Changes from
Financing Cash Flows

Baht

(99,309,538.03)
(7,000,000.00)

(940,000,000.00)
1,022,231,375.00

(15,719,314.55)
(425,464,616.59)

Other Changes

Baht

999,949.218.42
(997,939,278.57)
19,159,302.59

425,498,672.86

As at
31 December 2020

Baht

351,102,252.18
11,000,000.00

999,820,972.96
2,021,467,651.91
17,284,657.54
1,182,751.35

Total 3,420,452,464.81

(465,262,094.17)

446,667,915.30

3,401,858,285.94
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36.

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from
Financial Institutions
Long Term Borrowings from Subsidiary
Debenture
- Current
- Non Current
Accrued Interest
Accrued Dividend

Total

As at
1 January 2019

Baht

19,415,326.57
18,000,000.00

799,803,120.25
2,436,535,059.34
15,223,945.17
776,236.09

Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Changes from
Financing Cash Flows

Baht

430,996,463.64

(800,000,000.00)
499,197,500.00
(25,989,343.33)

(323,376,999.77)

Other Changes

Baht

940,068,634.29
(938,557,003.86)
24,610,067.66
323,749,458.76

As at
31 December 2019

Baht

450,411,790.21
18,000,000.00

939,871,754.54
1,997,175,555 48
13,844,669.50
1,148,695.08

3,289,753,687.42

(219,172,379.46)

349,871,156.85

3,420,452,464 .81

Obligations from Project Development on Hand

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, number of project development on hand have

Change as follows:

Beginning Number of Projects on Hand

Number of Closed Projects
Number of New Projects

Ending Number of Projects on Hand

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended

31 December 2020

For the year ended

31 December 2019

55 50
(4) ©)

7 10
58 55

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company has commitment to payment for construct in

accordance with several contracts of project construction as follows:

Remaining Amount of Contracted Construction
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Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at

31 December 2020

Million Baht

1,501.18

As at

31 December 2019

Million Baht

1,382.30
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37. Obligations
In addition to the liabilities presented in the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2020
and 2019, the Company has obligations as follows:
37.1 Bank Guarantee, as follows:

Consolidated/Separate Financial Statements

As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Million Baht Million Baht
Bank Guarantee 1,978.19 1,606.19

37.2 As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company constitutes obligation from hiring security for the
headoffice and real estate of the Company. The obligation to pay under the agreement is in amount of

Baht 33.82 million and Baht 31.86 million, respectively.

38. Events After the Reporting Period

In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 24 February 2021, it had
passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2020 to pay dividend totaling of Baht 564.25 million
by pay an annual dividend of 2020 from net profit (before gain from expropriation) of Baht 0.55 per share,
totaling of Baht 508.75 million, and pay the special dividend on from gain from expropriation at Baht 0.06 per
share, totaling of Baht 55.50 million which the Company had already paid the interim dividend payment at Baht
0.25 per share, totaling of Baht 231.25 million on 11 September 2020, and will pay the final payment at Baht 0.36
per share, totaling of Baht 333.00 million, will be paid on 14 May 2021. However, it will be further proposed for

the shareholders’ approval in the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders for fiscal year 2021.

39. Approval of the Financial Statements
These financial statements have been approved to issue by the Board of Directors of the Company

on 24 February 2021.
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Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
333 Silom Road, Silom, Bangrak

Bangkok 10500

Tel : (66 2) 231 - 4333

Fax : (66 2) 231 - 4890

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
44 Lang Suan Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan
Bangkok 10330

Tel : (66 2) 626 - 7329

Fax: (66 2) 657 — 3333
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Bangkok 10310

Tel : (66 2) 305 - 9000
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